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WELCOME TO BARRATT DOEVELOPMENTS PLC

Our aim s to be recognised
as the nation’s leading
housebuilder, creating
communities where
people aspire to live.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

* Group revenues up 14 1% to
£2,323 4m (2011 £2,0354m)

+ Completions, excluding jomt
ventures, up 14 1% to 12,637
(2011 11,078)

+ Group operating profit before
operating exceptional items up
4] 6% to £191 1m (2011 £135 Om)

» Group operating margin before
operating exceptional items n the
second half was 9 5% (2011 79%)
and for the full year was 8 2%
(2011 66%)

* Private average selhng price up
1 5% to £201,800 (2011 £198,900)

* Group profit before tax was
£100 0m (2011 loss of £11 5m)
after exceptional costs of £10 7Tm
(2011 £54 2m)

* Year end net debt significantly

reduced to £167 7m (2011 £322 6m)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP OVERVIEW

AT A GLANCE

ABOUT US

Barratt Developments PLC 1s one of

the nation’s largest housebuilders with
around 4,500 employees and 25 divisions
throughout Great Britain In 2011/12 we

sold over 12,500 homes We operate across
a broad spectrum of the market from f{lats
to farmly homes and urban regeneration
schemes We also have a focused
commercial developments business

OUR HOMES

We build a vanety of homes ranging from those for first-time
buyers, family homes, high-nse flats and social housing

We seek to match our products with custemer demand

and local regulation
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OUR CUSTOMERS

Our customers include first-time buyers, families, investors and
Registered Social Landlords Customer service and satisfaction
are of paramount importance to us Our local teams seek to
ensure that our customers are satisfied with their rew homes




1 The Moore family purchased a 5 bedroom
detached house at Farndon Fields Market

Harborough

Our brands

Our housebulding busness trades under the Barratt Homes,
Dawd Wilson Homes and Ward Homes brands Commercial
developments are delivered by Wilson Bowden Developments

=) Also see Land and Planning
puges!! 25

OUR GEOGRAPHIC SPREAD

We are a national housebuilder committed to operating

throughout Great Britam Our commercial developments
business also has a national footprint, with a particular

focus on the Midlands and the North of England

201112 completions by region

Completions  Completions %
@ Northem 2,3% 18%
@ Central 2,153 7%
€ East 2,359 19%
@ southem 2103 17%
@ London 1,233 0%
O west 2,463 19%

We operate throughout Great Britain under the Barratt
Homes and Dawvid Wilson Homes brands, and in Kent
and the South East also under the Ward Homes brand
In 2011/12 we operated from an average of 387 acive
sites (2011 364) across 25 dvisions

OUR DELIVERY

Qur focus 1S on optimising selling prices, dnving profitability

and reducing debt, whilst ensuning we mantain sufficient

land supply to meet the future needs of the business

Completons

12,03/

o1 11,078)

Operating profit before operating excepbional tems

> 1971m

(2011 £1350m)

Average sefing price

7180000

(2011 £178,300)

[wned and controtled land bank years {based on 2011/12 volurmes)

4.3 years

(2011 4 8 years)
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REPORT OF THE DIREGTORS
GROUP OVERVIEW

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

THE WAY WE WORK

Our strategy remains to rebuild profitabihty and
reduce overall indebtedness This is underpinned
by our busmess model of targeted land buying,
delivering effective planning, designing
outstandmg homes backed by construction
excellence and providing an industry-leading
customer experience

Increasing returns

We aim to deliver increasing
returns for our shareholders

QOperating profit”

191 Im
Up 416%

2011 £1350m

* excluding operating excepbonal items

(4 +« BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Aeport and Accounts 2012

Targeted land buying

We aim to secure high margin
land in targeted locabons

Proposed land scquisiions
must mest profit and retum
on capdal hurdles in order to
recaenve Board approval

Terms agreed plots n 2011/12

12085

Industry leading
customer experience
We provide a first class

expenence for customers
buying the homes we build

The only regor housebuider o win
HBF 5-Star status three years nmning

‘Recommend us to a Frend® score
201112

9%




1 An aenal photograph of our partnershuy 4 Holmesgate Place Hayes
scheme at Scotswood Newcastie upon Tyme 5 First tme buyers, Sopiwe Du Casse and

2. A public consultaton undertaken n Cottenham lan Wison Capstone Hesghts Chatham
ty Barratt Eastern Countes  July 2011

3. Showhomes at the encrgy-efficent Hanham
Hall develcpment in Bristol

Effective planning

We work closely with local
communrbes and local
authorthies to deliver effective
planning permissions

Plots required for 2012/13
completons with & detaled
planning consent

J0% =

Qutstanding design

We design homes and places
where customers wilt aspire
to live

The Group won its latest design
award in June 2012

A-raling

awarded for Innovative design by

North West Leicestershire Distnct
Council to our Bentley Meadows

scheme 0 Castle Donngton

Construction excellence
and efficiency
We focus on improving

quality and ekminating
the cost of poor quahty

NHBG ‘Pride n the Joby' Qualty
Awards 2012

(e

We also offer an industry-leading
five year Fodurss and Fittngs
warranty

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accoonts 2012
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP GVERVIEW

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ANOTHER YEAR
OF SUBSTANTIAL
PROGRESS

Thus has been a year of significantly
improved financial performance for the
Group, and we continue to lead the industry
n levels of quality and customer service

* BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annuzl Report and Accounts 2012

his has been a ysar

of rapid progress and

we have agam delveared

on our kay cbjectves
of ncreasng profitabiity and
reducing overall indebtedness
Profit before tax and exceptional
tems ncreased by 159 3% to
£110 7rn and net debt reduced
ty nearty 50% to L167 7m This
has been achieved aganst
a challenging backdrop of
economic and consumer
uncertamty, coupled with
continuing restnctions onthe
availability of adequate morigage
finance, particularty with higher
lcan to value ('LTV') products

The market
The UK housing market has
remained broadly stabie, although
there were regional variations in
demand and pncing Whilst the
country’s housing needs continue
to grow, the number of new
homes being built will only see a
sustainable ncrease with a step
change N mortgage lending
Some progress was made
dunng the year in terms of the
avallability of finance for our
customers, with higher LTV in the
new build sector seang a gradual
improvement The launch in July
2011 of the Govemment-backed
FirstBuy shared equity scheme
has helped to stimulate improved
demand from first-ime buyers
The launch, in March 2012, oi the
Government-backed NewBuy
morigage Indemnity scheme
should ensure that this progress
continues by effectively increasing
0 95% the LTV available {0 buyers
of new homes

Our performance

Dunng the year we made
signficant financial and operational
mprovermnents across every
aspect of our business We have
turther increased our capability
and our efficiency We are
financially stronger and the qualty
of our land bank has improved
The objectives of rebuilding
profitability and reducng overall
ndebtedness, independent



of further market improvement,
are progressing well

Ensurng that we achieve
the best pnce for the homes that
we buld remans a pnonty and s
dependent on getting the location,
product mix, design, branding,
quality, marketing of our homes
and customer service absolutety
right We have continued 1o Invest
in all of these arsas and our
industry leadership in the way
our sites are managed and the
customer ratings we achieve have
been externally acknowledged
For the third consecutive year
the Group has been awarded
Home Builder Federation ({HBF)
5-Star status Thrs 15 the highest
achievable level in terms of
customer satisfaction and
recommendation in addition,
under the National House-Bulldng
Council (NHBC') '‘Pnde in the Joby
scheme our site managers have
won more quality awards than any
other housebuilder for the eighth
consecutive year

Our new housse types are
even more in tune with customer
preference and our sales teams
are supported by an enhanced
online sales and marketing
capability We raman cormnmutted
to the prnciples of gettng it nght
first tme, enhancing the customear
expenence and reducing the cost
of dong business

tnvesting in fand
for higher retums
The pnmary drver of the Group's

profit growth was the ncreased
proportion of completions from
newer, higher margm land Dunng
the penod 4,381 completions
{35%) were on newer, higher
margn land and n 201213 we
expect this to increass 1o just over
50% of completions The land we
have bought since re-entenng the
land market i 2009 cumrently
rmeets or exceeds the menimum
hurdle rates set on acquisition —
namely, a 20% gross margm and
a 25% retum on capital based on
operating profit

Dividend policy
No dvidend will be paid in respect
of the 2011412 financial year
However, the Board recognisas
the mportance of both caprtal
growth and dmdend ncome
to our existing and potential
shareholders and 15 committed
to re-introducing the payment of
dmvdends Assuming a continuing
stable housmg market, the Board
expects 1o recommence dvdend
payments, with a conservatve
dndend cover, by proposing
a final dwidend in respect of the
financtal year to 30 June 2013,
payable i the final quarter of
2013 The Board rtends to
adopt a progressive dwvidend
pohcy as profitabulity grows, with
the am, over tme, of actrevng a
target dwdend cover of around
three trmas

In addition, we reman
committed to operating with
an appropnate land bank and

contmuing to reduce overall
indebtedneass

The Board
In Apnl 2012, Richard Akers jomed
us as a Non-Executve Director
He has bmad busnass expenence
and a deep knowledge of the
property market from a
commercial and retail perspectve,
complementing the existing
skills of the Board

In July 2012, Clive Fenton
resigned as a Director of the
Company and we apponted
Staven Boyes to a new role
of Chief Operating Cfficer
responsible for housebulding
operations Steven, who joined
the Board in 2001, 15 one of the
most expenenced housebuiiding
executives in the UK

n Juty 2012, we also announced
that Bob Dawvies, after eight years
of service, wilt step down as a
Non-Executve Director at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM')
in November this year Subject
o therr glection and re-election at
the AGM, Mark Roffe wil tale over
as Senwor Independent Director
and Richard Akers will take ovar
as Charman of the Remunaration
Commuttee | would liks to thank
Bob for the outstanding
contribution that he has made
to the Group dunng a penod
of immense changs

Our employees
The rapid progress we have made
this year, n a market that remans

1 The Mannng frve bedroom showhome

ak Newberry Comer Churchmiord A smad

development set i an attractve vilage
n the Blackdown Hills Taunton

& For the third
consecutive year

the Group has been
awarded Home Bulder
Federation 5-Star status
Thus 15 the ighest
achievable level in terms
of customer satisfaction
and recommendation 9

challenging, 1s a great credit

to the management of the
Group and 1its employees There
15 a wealth of expenence withn
the leadership team, ably
supported by our employees
across the country On behalf
of the Board t would like to thank
themn for therr commitment and
outstanding contnbution to the
Group's performance

The future
Inevitably there 1s ongong
economic uncertainty i the UK
market and as such we do not
expect to see significant growth
In customer demand over the
next year Howenver, the strategy
we are pursuing s capable of
delivenng significantly enhanced
retums without an iImproverment
In market concdiions

Wa operate throughout
Great Brtain and across a broad
spectrum of the markst We are
able to deiver a wide range of
housng projects from traditonal
housing to complex high-nse
apartrment buldings, such as those
we buid in London We believe
that this capatxity, coupled with
our focus on Improving the
efficiency of everything we do and
hawng the best pecple 10 deal with
an ncreasngly compilex regutatory
and planning emvironment, offer us

Bblok

Bob Lawson
CHAIRMAN
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROLIP OVERVIEW

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

SUSTAINED DELIVERY
OF OBJECTIVES AND
STRONG GROWTH

Our objectives of rebulding profitability
and reducing overall mdebtedness
have delivered a rapidly improving
performance across the Group

08 e BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012

ith a rapidly Improving
performance across
the Group we have
magde substantial
progress in achieving our
abjectves of rebuidng profitabiity |
and reducing overall ndabtedness !
In the year we have achigved
a 14 1% ncrease m revenues,
a 16% ncreass in operating
margins before operating
exceptional costs, a 159 3%
nerease n pra-exceptional pre-tax
profits and we have almost haved
our net debt Despite continued
uncertanty surrounding the wider
UK market and constraned levels
of mortgage finance, we expect
1o make further good progress
n 2012/13 with more than haf
our cornpietions forecast to be ‘
detivered from recently acquired
higher margmn land

Performance
Group revenues for the year
were up 14 1% to £2,323 4m



1 Montreal House and Toronto House wewed from
the Altwon Cana! a1 Maple Quay Southwalk

{2011 £2,035 4m), with
completions {excluding jont
ventures) up 141%to
12,637 units We have enjoyed
more stable trading conditicns
throughout the year and were
able to delver a strong stari to
our second hatf followang a small
mprovenent in mortgage landing
We have seen higher sales rates
as an nereasng proportion of
completions are berng defverad
from our more recently acquired
stes Asat 30 June 2012, wehad a
substantially strengthened forward
sales postion, with prvate forward
sales (excluding joint ventures) up
35 5% to £366 9m (2011 £270 8m)
Profit from operations before
operating exceptional tems
increased by 416% from £1350m
to £191 1m, with a significant
improvement N operating margin
hefore operating exceptional tams
0 8 2% (2011 6 6%) for the
full year and to @ 5% (2011 79%)
in the second half Profit

* before tax and exceplional
items ncreased by 159 3%
1o £110 7m {2011 £42 7m)

In the year we reported
exceptonal terms of £10 7m,
relating 1o the acquisiton
of a pariner's 50% interest
n aresidential development,
consequently profit before tax
after exceptonal items was
2100 0m (2011 loss £11 5m)

QOur improved operational
efficiency, continued tight control
over the timing of land expenditure
and working capital commitments,
and receipts from land sales
enabled us to reduca net debt
to £167 7m as at 30 June 2012
(2011 £3226m)

Qur objectives

Our sirategic objectives remamn
clear - to rebuikd profitability and
reduce overall indebtedness -
and we have made considerable
progress in both of these areas
during the year

DELIVERING OUR
OBJECTIVES

Our objectives are

Rebuilding profitability
* Optimise selling prices
* Improve operational
efficiency
» Targeted land buying .

Reducing overall indebtedness

* Return cash on old land

 Reduced average investment
per site

Also see Our
paosﬂﬁ-ﬂm

& Our strategic
objectives reman clear
—to rebuild profitability
and reduce overall
indebtedness — and
we have made
considerable progress

m both of these areas
during the year 99

We have set out three pnonties
10 enable us to rebuild profitabilily
+ optimise selling pnces,
+ mprove operabonal efficiency, and
+ delver targeted land buyng

Optimise sethng prices
We have embedded disciplines
within the organisation to ensurg
we continue to focus on secunng
the best pnce for every sals -
thereby maximisng value rather
than pst dming volumes

Average seling prices
increased to £180,500 (2011
£178,300), with prvate average
selting pneeas incraasing by 15% ‘
to £201,800 (2011 £198,900), ‘
dimven by a smalt positve change
in me< Overall, undertying pnces
have remained broadly stable,
with continued vanatons by
region There Is, in particular,
a greater robustness n pricing
N London and the South East

Ounng the year we had higher
sales rates across the Group with
average net prvate reservations
per actve site por week ncreasng
to 0 52 2011 0 44). Sales rates
have been more consistent dunng

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annua) Repart and Accounts 2012 » (8




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP OVERVIEW * GROUP CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

the yoar reflactng a greater stabwiity
n market conditons than we have
seen for some time We saw
a particularty sirong start io the
2012 spang seling season and
ook advantage of this to deliver
additional completions from
our older, lower margin land

Qur sales strategy 1s focused
on offenng our customers the
tughest quality products and
service For the third year rurining
we have achieved the HBF's
5-Star status, meaning that more
than 90% of pur customers were
satisfied with the service thay
receved Our site managers
have won mora NHBC 'Prde in
the Job' awards than any other
housebuilder for the eighth
year running

Both the Barratt and David
Wilson house ranges have besn
re-designed and updated following
customer research to be even
more attractve to potential buyvers
We now have the new house types
on 125 of our developments

Wa continue 1o focus on
our predorninantly web-based
marksting strategy with our Barratt
Homes and Dawid Wilson Homes
websitas recemng on average
around 160,000 wisits per waek
Cur onlne presence has baen
substantally enhanced through
the launch of our new look
websites, which give consumers
significanty more information
about ndmdual properties and
the locality as well as addrional
services such as mongage
calculators and school finders

Improve operational
efficiency
Drving operational efficiency
has remamned a significant focus
for the Group We continue to
retan a firm controt on costs,
n particular caprialising on our
scale and technical resources
to maximse efficiency

Our supply contracis for
matenals continue to be reviewed
and renegotiated as appropnate,
and we purchase an ncreasingly
significant proportion of our
matenals centrally

10 « BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012




CASE STUDY

Delivering new land

Al the edge of Coxhoe, a former mining village south of Durham,
you will find our development “The Limes’, compnsing 80 attractve
heuses with a mix of 2, 3 and 4 bedroom homes of traditional and
contemporary design

Today's bnght futura for the site, with both new housing and
commercial use, disguises its chequered past The site had remaned
derelict since 1980 after the closure of the Steetley Lime Works, which
opened prior to the First World War Before this, the site had also been
used for mining and as a ralway sidng

To develop the site was a challenge Detailed rvestgations confirmed
that the ground contained demolion debns and spoil heaps, underian
by glacial clays and coal seams, which had previously been worked at
shallow depth

Working in partnership weth another local deveioper, wa obtaned
plannmg parmission for a mxed use development, and a comprehensive
remediation programme was completed This included the removal
of contaminated debns, earthworks, the treatment of contaminated sol
on site and the removal of Japanese Knotweed A clay capping layer and
top soil for the public open space and garden areas were also provided

Today 'The Limes' 1S set to become a thrving community
Coxhoe Village has a rangs of local ameniies, Inchuding a school,
shops and a medical centre, and it s also close to the AI{(M) motorway
for easy access 1o the major
business centres of the North
East and further afield The
good location and the quality
of the development mean that,
as at 30 June 2012, 36 of the
houses have been sold and
Just over a third of the hormes
already occupied

BARRATT OEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012 » 11




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

GROUP OVERVIEW ¢ GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

We continue to reviaw our
supply chan to creats efficiencies
by ntroducing new suppliers and
altenng buid specifications where
appropnate Standard house-type
costs are benchmarked across
the Group continuously to ensure
the fowest cost 1s achieved
whilst maintaining the qualty
of our homes

Gaoing forward, it s likely that
some pressure will continue to be
felt as raw matenal pnees nsa due
to undertying commodity price
nereases Howevar, we will seek
to mitigate ths by continuing to
drve further efficiency savings
and reductions in operating costs
across the business

The Group promotes and
shares best practice in the build
process across all dvisions and,
to date, signuficant cost savings
have been identfied through
this work Cost sawings have
also been identified by agreeing
changes to processes and
introducing new technologies
which improve our efficency
The benefits of these savings
will continue to be realised in
the next few years

Private average selling prce

r 201,800

(2011 £198,900)

Operating protit after excephional items

> 1971m

{2011 £127 3m)

Targeted land buying
Our asm 1s to optimise the value
and cash generation from our
existing land holdings, whilst
bnnging more recently acquired
higher margin land into preduction
as quickly as possible

We have a disciplned and
targeted land buyng strategy that
has clearly defined nsk-related
hurdle rates Dunng the year, we
agreed terms on £578 1m of land
purchases, totaling 12,0685 plots
We have mantaned our discipine
of not chasing pnces up and have
contnued to adopt an acquistion
strategy that s not unduly
concentrated on any specific
geographic area We have
continued to see pnces for fand
firming In the South East as other
housebuiders target this area

Total cash expenditure on
land i the year was £397 4m
(2011 £2610m)

We favour deferred terms
with the objective of matching
our revenus and costs as closaly
as possible to maximise retums
Land creditors as at 30 June 2012
were £726 1m 2011 £7007m)

Land creditors due within the
next 12 months total £368 1m
(2011 £349 1m), with £358 Om
(2011 £351 8m} due thereaftar, 1
and n overall terms these equate

Agreed terms kand purchases

$H/8Tm

(2011 £454 1m)
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&€ In the year, more than
a third of completicns
were from more recently
acqured land and we
contmue to expect this
proportion to mcrease
to just above 50% m
2012/13 »

1 Derwenthorpe s a community of 64
contemporary enesgy efficent homes on the
outskirts of York designed in partnerstup with
the Joseph Rowntree Trust

2 Showhome kitchen i the Dawd Wikson
Emerson housetype — a b bedroom detached
house at Hareshield Chase Gloucester

to 35% of our owned land bank
In the penod to 30 June 2013,
we expect land creditors to reman
fairly constant as a proportion of
the land bank, dependent upon
the satisfaction of contractual
conditions, for example, the
grant of planmng permission

We are making good progress
N moving our land bank from
older to newer land, with impaired
plots faling {o 6,866 as at 30 June
2012 (2011 10,292), representing
12% (2011 17%) of the total
owned and conditional land bank
by plots We expect impared
plots to reduce to around 4,500
by 30 June 2013 Dunng the year
we sold parcels of imparred iand,
wherg it made economic sense
to do so, Incumng an operating
loss We will continue to review
potential land sales on a imited
number of sites where we
constder that a sale would realse
a greater net present valug
than development of the site

In the year, more than: a third
of completions were from more
recently acquired land and we
continuie to expect this proportion
o increase to just above 50%
In 2012/13 and around two-thirds
N 2013/14 This newer land
continues to perform in Ine with,
or above, the rminmum hurdle
rates set on acquisition, namely
a 20% gross margin and a 25%
retum on capital based on
operating profit

We have detalled planning
consents for 96% of expected
completions for 2012/13, and
outhine consent on a further 2%

We hava targeted a shorter
land bank to improve capritai
efficiency and, as at 30 Jure
2012, the Group's owned land
bank totatled 43,897 plots (2011
47,917) wath an addional 10,312
plots (2011 12,166 plots) under
condifional contracts, gvng
a totat of 54,209 plots 2011
60,083 plots) This equates to
approximately 4 3 years (2011
4 8 years) of owned and controlted
land based on 2011/12 completion
volumes Qver the next couple
of years, we expect to mantan

our owned and unconditional
land bank, when seen relatve

o phor year completion volumes,
at around three-and-a-half years'
supply, and the conditional land
bank at around one year's supply
The land bank owned by Group
joint ventures 1s 1,120 plots (2011
1,625 plots)

In addition, we have ¢ 10,500
{2011 ¢ 11,400) acres of strategic
land which are regularly
reassessed until the necessary
planning consents are obtaned
This land s camed at the lower
of cost and net realisable value,
MINIMISING QUr eXposure o nsk
In the year 701 plots were
transferred from strategic land to
our operational land bank Strategic
land 15 expected to produce
an increasing proportion of our
operatonal land n future years

Reducing overall
indebtedness
Our second key objective 1s
reducing overall Indebtedness

At 30 June 2012 net debt
had fallen to £167 7m, down from
£322 6m at the same point in the
previous year The better than
expectad performance on
reducing net debt was the result
of a number of factors, including
strong conirol of working caprtal,
higher completion numbers timing
of land acquisitions, a lower
imvestment per site and realsing
cash from other assets

We were able to take
advantage of stronger market
condtions cunng the second half
of the year to increase sales on
impared sites which generated
additional cash We also soid
three sites acquired before 2008,
which had subsequently been
mpaired, for total cash proceeds
of £15 2m and a net operating
loss charged to normal trading of
£4 6m We will continue to target
additional sales to generate cash
frarn impared sites where we
consider such a sale will reahse
a greater net present value than
the development of it

One of the key factors drving
down debt has been the focus on

smaller sites of, on average, 110
plots predominantly for houses
rather than flats The new sites
have greater potential for
standardised product and lower
infrastructure expenditura, which
result in a significantly lower
average investment per site

Sizing our business and
target funding structure

We have reviewed the sze and
structure of our business taking
account of current market
conditions, including mortgage
availabiity We are confident that
our currant operational structure
15 *fit for pumpose’ and that it s
realistic, over time, to move to
around 4580 active sites (2012
average of 387 sites), which
would result m around 15,000
completions ncluding those
from our joint ventures {JVs')
(2012 12,857)

In hight of these plans for the
business and our cNgoINg focus
to reduce overall indebtedness,
it 18 our ntention that by 2015
we will achigve a target funding
structure with no net dekbt at
the financial year end date
Accordingly our shareholders
and land verdors (n the form of
land creditors) will fund our land
bank and long-term work in
progress whereas our lending
syndicate will fund our annual
working capital requirements

Government policy
The Govemment sees the
acceleration of housebLilding as
an important economic objective
The Govemnment's housing
strategy, published in autumn
2011, contained a number
of ntiatves, nchuding proposals
to improve the availabibty of
mortgage finance via 8 morigage
indemnity scheme, to reform the
planning regime and to release
further public sector land

The NewBuy mortgage
indemnify scheme was
subsequently introduced in
March 2012 and has the potential
to significartly improve the loan
to value offered n the new build
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sector However, whilst inital
customer interest has been
promising, we will not be able to
assess the scheme’s full potential
until the autumn selling season
The mortgage interest rates
associated with the product
will also be an important factor
n determmnmg s impact

Dunng the year, FirstBuy, the
Government-backed shared equity
scheme, was an mportant o and
we completed 1,573 sales under
the schema Our suceess n utilsing
the product meant that our rutial
aliocaton of £24 9mwas increased
by £13 8m dunng the vear

Shared equity remained
an important seliing tool gven
the continuing constramts on
mortgage finance avalabiity
Dunng the year, 20 5% (2011
22 Q%) of total complations were
supported by shared equity and,
of this, around two-thirds used
Govemment-backed schemes

Although planning reform
was mitroduced via the Natonal
Planning Policy Framework, its
unlkely that this will have a matenal
short-term effect on the Group
We contnue to move 1o a more
ocalist’ approach in the way n
which we seek to securg planning,
with new procedures for earfier
and tuller consuttation with iocal
residents In the year, our scheme
at Pickenng Park n Yorkshire was
the winner of the National
Houssbuider Best Community
Invbative Award

The release of publc land
remans an important part of the
Govemment's strategy to ncrease
housing supply This land s
particularly attractve where it 1s
brought to the market with the
potential for 'build now pay later'
terms Since 2009 we have
secured more than 9,000 plots
across 33 sites with a gross
development value (GDV) of £17
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biflen ether using the Developer
Panet approach or wa the OJEU
In September 2012 the
Government announced
further measures to stimulate
housebulding, ncluding additional
FirstBuy funding, mitiatves
{angeting the prvate rental market,
reforms to plannng and a
reduction in the public funding
requirement on mothballed
developments

The mortgage market
The avalabiity and affordabity
of mortgages s a key catalyst for
undertyng housing demand The
level of mortgage approvals has
reduced dramatically from the
peak seen in 2007, however
we have seen a stabilisation
of mortgage lending over the
past coupls of years

The mortgage market for new
build housing continues to be
dorninated by a hmited number

of lenders There have been some
changes in their respective market
shares dunng the year, prmanly
drven by the retum of buikding
societes and the changes n
lending cntena from certan
morigage providers Some
lenders still provide a lower
LTV on new build houses when
compared with second-hand
properties — there was typically
a LTV of 90% on sacond-hand
houses and 85% on new buikd
houses However, the majonty
of mortgage providers are now
mowving to a posthon of equality
betwesn the second-hand and
new build markets For example,
Lloyds/Halifax mcreased their
LTV to 90% on certam new burld
houses in early 2012 and such
moves should continue to have
a positive impact on morigage
avallabiity for our customers
The Govemment continues
to stimutate the lending market



1 Chestnut Feids, Chiton Oxiordshie compnsng

275 wgh quality homes on a former RAF arrfield

and has launched the indemmnity
scheme NewBuy, which has
underpinned the retum of 95%
mortgages in the new build
sector This is likety to be an
important support for the
mortgage market at higher levels
of LTV, and prowdes the sector
with an important advantage
against the much larger,
second-hand market

Partnership and joint
venture opportunities
Dunng the year we have mada
progress n secunng land through
partnerships and Jvs

Barratt Partnershups, our
speacialist partnership team, working
with our dmsions, secured 1,676
units on five sites duning the year

through public sector partngrshins
withaGDVofc £425m

We have contnued to id for
sites through the three area-based
Development Partner Pangls

¢ In September 2012
the Government
announced further
measures to stunulate
housebulding, mcluding
additional FirstBuy
funding, 1ihatives
targeting the private
rental market, reforms
to planmng and a
reduction 1n the public
funding requiremerit
on mothballed
developments ¥

(DPPs’) that were established
n 2010 by the Homes and
Communities Agency In the year
we have been successiul on three
bds, and we are actively involved
n SIX ongoing buds
We beteve the Govermment's
ntenton to increase the release
of publc land to build up to
100,000 new homes 1S a positive
step We have a proven track
record of working with public
sector partners and we are
well positoned to capitalise
on this nikiative
We continue to explore Jv
opportunities which allow us either
to access projects that may not
otherwise ba avallable, or to reduce
the mvestment required and
mprove the retum on capital
employed through constructon
managermant or marketing fees
In pnor years, we established
a portfolio of JVs in London and
the South East Our JV partners
nclude London & Quadrant
{L&Q", one of the country's
largest Housing Associations,
and the Wates Group, one
of the UK's largest building
and construction companies
We have added {o this
portfolio with two more Jvs
*In March 2012, we signed a
conditional contract to purchase
a two-acre edge of the Gity site
at Aldgate Place, London The
purchase of the site, which 1s
being acquired n a 50 50 JV
batween the Group and Bntish
Land, 1s conditional on secunng
a revised planning consent for
aresidential-led mxed-use
development
* in July 2012, in partnership
with L&Q, we acquired an
8 & acre site at Fuham Wharf,
London The site, which is on
the north bank of the Thames,
has a GDV of £420m with
planning parmssion for
463 nverside apartments
and a new supermarkeat
In the year, our J¥s delivered
220 (2011 93) completions and
wa anticipate that completions
will ncrease further as our new
Jvs commence

Commercial developments
Commercial developrment reventie
was £36 6m (2011 £49 2m)
This mchuded revenue from the
design and build of a foodstora
in Wamngton The project was
completed n Apnl 2012
Operating profit from the
commercial development
business during the year

was £1 5m 2011 £08m)

We ware also successiul
dunng the year in completng an
agreament for the redevelopment
of part of Wokingham town
centre The redevelopment wil
be detverad In partnership with
our housebuiding operations
and 1s one of a number of
schemes where our commerceal
and housebulld businesses ane
worlang together to delner
enhanced retums for the Group

Quality, service and design

In 2010 ard 2011 we updated

both the Barratt and David Wikson
Homes house ranges with ntemal
layouts designed around modem
fivng The new designs contnue
to be wel recenved by consumers
and we continue to roll out both
new ranges Our commitment

to delvenng the highest qualty
product and excellent customer
service has been confirmed by our
customers both through our ntemal
survey where 98% (2011 98%) of
customers would ‘Recommend

us to a Friend’ and our acteverment
of HBF 5-Star status for a third
successive year Our tigh quality
housing products have assisted
our ongong drve to mprove
profitabiity, through actiemng
optmum seling pnces and
improving operational efficiency

Health, safety and the
environment

The safety of cur employees,
contractors, custorners and the
wider community s fundamental
{0 the way in which we operate
Dunng the penod, our Inury
Incdence Rate (IR was 511
{2011 538} per 100,000 persons
employed, which 1s a 5%
decrease year-on-year We remain

committed to enhancing health
and safety and have an Executive
Health and Safety Commuttes,
which raports to the Board,
o drve further improverment
We am to secure a posihon
as the lowest cost provider
compiying with the Code for
Sustanable Homes {the 'Code’)
Dunng the year we built 3,820
homes to Code Level 3 or above,
of wiich 868 complied with Code
Level 4 Wo ara establishing
improved and lower cost methods
which allow us to continue to
rectuce the cost of compliance
We ara also progressing our
development at Hanham Hall
the UK's first large-scale zero
carbon housing development
We have completed the extemal
renovahion of the onginal isted
Harham Hall bulding and we
are now well advanced with
the full development of the site

Outlook
The Group has made significant
progress m both rebuikdng
profitability and reducng
ndebtedness dunng the year
st ended Despite continued
uncenanty surmunding the
outlook for the wider UK market
and constraned levels of mortgage
financa, the ndustry has enoyed
a penod of relative stability
Snca 1 July 2012, our sales
perforrrance has teen n-ing
with normal seasonal trends In
the last nine weeks, net pvate
raservations per actve site per
week have averaged 0 50 201
0 50) and our private forward order
book {exchuding J/s) currently
stands at £609 6m 2011 £528 Tm)
Qur strategy 1s capable of
delvenng stgnificantly enhanced
retums without any improvement
in market conditions, and in the
cument financial year we expect to
make further good progress, with
over half of complations forecast to
be delvered from our more recently
acqured higheg mangn land

Mark Clare
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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OUR PROGRESS

The overnding objectives that we have set for the
D ELIVE Rl N G O U R business are to rebuild profitabihty and reduce overall
indebtedness We will do this through focusing on our

OBJECTIVES

key pnontes of optimising prices, dnving operational
efficiencies, targeted land buying, reducing our average
investment per site and unlocking cash on older land
Our progress in these areas 1s set out below

REBUILDING PROFITABILITY:
OBJECTIVE PROGRESS KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR
Optimising pnces The average private selling price of our

We are focused upon margin
improvement through optimsing
seling pncas not pirsuing volumes

Operational efficiency

We continue to focus upon
ensunng operational efficiency,
inchuding controling costs
throughout the business

Targeted land buying

We are investing in land which
we axpect {o delver attractve
retums m the future

homes was £201,800 (2011 £198,900),
an increase of 15% due to mix changes

Profit from operations before operating
exceptonal tems was £1911m

{2011 £135 0m), anncrease of 416%
Operating margin on the same basis
was B 2% (2011 6 6%)

Dunng the year we have agreed terms
on £578 1m of land purchases (2011
£454 1m), which equates o 12,085

{2011 8,861) plots Land addstions dunng
the year were £475m (2011 £395m}

REDUCING OVERALL INDEBTEDNESS:

Year end debt

Wa are focused upon reducing our net
debt through retuming cash on ofd land
and reducing our average nvestment
per site

Net cash interest charge

Ayear round focus on nat debt will
reduce average borrowng levels and
deliver reduced interest costs

Net dabt at 30 June 2012 was €167 7m,
£154 9m lower than prior year

The Group's net cash interest charge
for the year was £576m 2011 £70 4
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OUR SUSTAINABILITY
PHILOSOPHIES

We continue to focus on cur sustamability

philosophues Pecple, Partners, Planet and
Customers, and our commtment to Health
and Safety Our progress in these areasis

set out below

PHILOSOPHY

Customers

We are committed to building qualty
homes and our teams seek to ensura
that our customers are satisfied with
therr new home

Health and Safety
We seek to manage Health and Safety
nsks throughout our business

Partners

Wa serve all sectors of the market, creating
homes for sale and shared ownership and
work with many partners on a range of
urban regeneration schemes

People

We recognise that one of our key
strengths is our people and have
therefore continued to invest in
them and their expertise

Planet
We seek to manage environmental
nsks throughout our busness

PROGRESS KEY PERFORMANCE iNDICATOR

We continue to lead the industry n levels
of customer service and 98% {2011 98%)
of our customers independently surveyad
would ‘Recommend us to a Fnend’ We
have actieved the maamum 5-Star rating
for customer satisfaction awarded by the
HBF for a third consecutrve year

Health and Safety 15 of paramount
mpaortance or our employees, customears
and the public During the year we further
reduced our Injury incidence Rate to 511
{2011 538) per 100,000 smployees

Qur wide product range vanes from
homes for first-time buyers, family homes
and flats to soctal housing Completions
for the year were 12,637 (2011 11,078)
Social housng accounted for 22 2%
(2011 23 8%) of completions

Dunng the year many of our employees
have benefited from our sales and
marketing, construction, apprentice,
graduate ard leadership developmant
programmes

We contnue 1o make progress in
developng lower cost solutions to

meet ncreasing emvironmental standards
Dunng the year we built 3,820 2011 3,071)
homes that meet Code Level 3 or above,
and 65% (2011 67%) of our compietons
were built on brownfield land
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OUR PERFORMANCE

1 hhghtmgale Woods Wendover, Ayleshury
An extiusve development of 2 10 5 bedroom
houses and 1 and 2 bedroom apartments

2 Steet scene of the development at
Houndwood Sireet, Somerset, everlookaing
the village green

3 The Pankhara famdy purchased a 4 bed
detached home at our Old Merchant Tayior
tdeveloprent Craxley Green

DELIVERING IN
CHALLENGING
TIMES

This was another year of excellent
progress in a challenging market, 1n
which mortgage availabihity remains
at historically low levels

hts has been a year of

sygrficant improvement

for the Group, both

n terms of mcreasing
profitability and reducing net debt,
daspite the continued constrants
on the availabiity of morigage
finance for our customers Whilst
there were vanations by region,
underlyng house prices remained
proadly stable over the year, and
our improved performanca was
founded on our ability to brng new,
higher margin land nto production
Qur businesses n Longon and the
South East continue to perform
especaty well

We delivered a profit from
operations before operating
axceptional tems of £131 1m
(2011 £135 0m) at a margin of
8 2% {2011 6 6%} After operabng
exceptional tems of £nil (2011
£7 7m), our profit from operations
was £1911m (2011 £127 3m)

The Increase In operating
margin before operating
exceptional items 1s pnncipally due
to an increasmg proporton of sales
from more recently acquired higher
margn land s, coupled with
other termns, resulted N a gross
margin of 12 7%, a 1 5% increase
on the pror year Administrative
costs before exceptional
restructunng costs ncreased
year-on-year from £92 8m to
£105 1m Cwerall, we achieved a
41 6% improvement In operating
profit before operahing exceptional
tems mn the year

Housebuilding
Dunng the year, we operated from
an average of 387 (2011 364)
active sites

Completions totalled 12,637
{2011 11,078), an ncrease of
14 1% reflecting the higher
reservahon rate dunng the year,
especially n the second half
Housebuilding revenue totalled
£2,286 8m £011 £1,986 2m)
Cf the housebuilding completions,
private were 8,832 (2011 8,444),
and social were 2,805 {2011
2,634) Social housing completions
represented 22 2% of completions
in the year, versus 23 8% in the
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pnor year Inaddition, our Jvs
compiated 220 (2011 93) homes

Average net pnvate
reservations per actve site per
week n the second half were
057 (H2 2011 0 48), a significant
improvement on the first halt
performance (H1 2012 0 48)

For the full year, average net prvate
reservations per actve site per
weok ware 052 (2011 0 44) The
cancellaton rate for the full year
was 18 5% (2011 206%)

Qur average seling pnce
ncreased by 12% to £180,500
{2011 £178,300), mainly as a result
of a small positive change N mix
Overall, underying sales pnces
ware broadly flat i the financiat
year However, we have seen
variation by region, with relative
strength n the South East andg,

n parteular, London

Prvate average selling pnces
ncreased by 1 5% to £201,800
(2011 £198,800) prmarily due
to a number of mix changes,
nchuding an ncreased proportion
of houses compared 10 flats
Seeking to derve the optimum
sales pncse on every plot that
wa sell has remained a key focus
for the business dunng the year
On private complehons, wa
achieved a 1 5% ncrease n
the average revenue per square
foot to £203 (2011 £200)

Our social average saling pnce
decreased by 5 9% to £105,700
{2011 £112,300) due fo changes
N mix and a decrease n the
average square footage of our
social completions of 2 1% to 793
square foot 2011 810 square foot).

Whilst the availability of
mortgage finance at higher
LTV ratios remans constraned,
shared eguity products conbnue
to be an important sales tool for
the Group Dunng the year 20 5%
(2011 22 0%) of our completions
used shared equity products
Of these completions, 1,694
(2011 609) used one of the
Govemnment-backed iniatives
and the remander used our own
shared equity schemes

Dunng the year FirstBuy,
the Govermment-backed shared

equity scherme, was an important
sales ncentive We complated
1,573 salas under the schame
Our success In utiising the
product meant that our rittal
allocation of £24 9m was
ncreased by £13 8m dunng
the year

Part-exchange has remamned
an sffective salkng 100!, supportng
151% (2011 14 6%) of our
compietions in the year We
continue to manage carefully
our commitment and exposure
to part-exchange properties
which stood at £80 2m (2011
£78 9m) at 30 June 2012

Dunng the year we have
continued to dnve operational
efficencias from strong buikd
controls, the use of standard
house types, waste reduction,
central procurement, value
engneenng and re-planning of
sites We will continue to work
n partnership with our suppliers
to find ways to mitigate increases
N matenal costs dmang for lower
total cost sohutions whilst
conbinuing to mantan our very
high build standards We wall also
contnue to target further cost
reductions and efficiency savings
by further standardisation of
our specifications, without
compramusmg brand differentiators
or the lngh quality and safety
standards that we operate to

The benefits of our strategies
of seeking to optimise the sales
pnce of every plot, controlling our
costs and targeted land buying
can be seen in the year, with a
significant improvement n our
housebuilding operating margin
before operating excephional items
to B 3% 2011 6 8%) for the full
year and 9 6% (2011 B 0%) for the
second half of the {inancial year
Qur housebuilldmng profit frorm
operations before operating
aexceptional items for the year
was £189 6m (2011 £134 2m)
After operaling excephonal
gems of Cnd 2011 £77m),
the housebuilding prodit from
operations was £189 6m
{2011 €126 5m)
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Driving
profitable sales

In June 2012, we re-launched the websites for Barratt, Dawid Wilson and
Ward Homes to mprove both ther content and search options, enabling
customers to identify more easlly the properties of mtarest to them

At the same time, wa improved the online expenenca for our
customers whilst ensunng that we delivered more high qualty sales
leads to the busmess

Cur aim s to take advantage of the fact that more people now
start thewr search for a new home online This year, over eight rmion
poiential customers have visited our websites, and we have contnued
to mvest significantly in our online presence to ensure that our websites
lead the ndustry

Dunng the development stage of our new websites, we undertook
extensive customer research on the design and content of the sites
The feedback suggested users wanted greater abiity to search our
vanous developments, esther by geographic locabon or property prnice,
and users also wanted clearer differentiahion between our brands

We have also improved levels of information for potential buy-to-let
purchasers, and made significant enhancements to our ibrary of
smages Cur images now better dermenstrate not only the quality and
design of the homes wa build but also gve an impression of the overall
development as a place to Ive

¢ underlying house
prices remawmed
broadly stable over the
year, and our mproved
performance was
founded on our ability
to brimg new, higher
margin land mto
production ¥

Completons

12,03/

{2011 11,078)

Average selkng pnce

7 180,000

(2011 £178,300)

Average net prvate reservations
per actve site per week

o7

(2011 0 44)

Commercial developments
Conditions in the commercial
property market cutside London
rerrain challenging, with a high
nurnber of avallable second-hand
properties impachng design and
buld actmty Weak economic
growth and a constrained lending
ermaronment also continue to
place further restnctions on
commercial demand Howeaver,
despite these factors, the
operating performance from
our commercial development
segment improved

Revenue from the commercial
developmeants business totalled
£36 6m (2011 £492m)with a
profit from operations of £15m
(2011 £08m)

Dunng the year, In addition
to delvennig 49,900 square foet
of stock property dsposals,
we completed construction of
a 40,000 square foot foodstore
in Warnngton for a major food
retader and the sale of a 41 acre
site at Kingsway Business Park
in Rochdale We exchanged
contracts to provide a 30,000
square foot office extension
at a site n Nottingham, which
completed n August 2012, and
we have also recently secured
an outlne consent for an 80 acre
mixed-use scheme on the
outskirts of Lercester which
we expect to deliver retums
for both our commercial and
housebuild operatons

On the retall front, we continue
to progress our town centre
redevelopment schemes,
and dunng the year, n additon
to the Wiokingham town centre
schemeg, we were also apponted
development partnar on the
Norhem Gateway scheme in
Chesterfield This project will
see the redevelopment of part
of Chesteriield city centre
promding 267,000 square fest
of commercial space
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CREATING NEW
COMMUNITIES

Our aim 1s to be recognised as the nahon'’s
leading housebwlder, creating communities
where people aspire to live

& operate throughout

Great Bntain under

the Barratt Homes

and Dawd Wilson
Homes brands, and in Kent and
elsewhere n the South East under
the Ward Homes brand At 30
June 2012, we were seling from
374 (2011 377) active sites across
25 dwisions

We continue to operate
across a broad spectrum of the
market, creaiing homes for sala,
shared ownership and affordable
rental properties We also work
with Government agencies and
housing associations on a diverse
range of urban regeneration
schemes Pnvate seling prices
during the financial year ranged
from around £60,000 to £1 0m,
with a private avarage selling
pnce for the year of £201.800
2011 £198,900)

Dunng the ysar, we completed
1,684 (2011 609) homes under
both the HomeBuy Direct and
the FirstBuy schemes, and in
addibion we also supported 894
(2011 1,823} purchasers with our
own shared equsty packages

The prowvision of social housing
rermans a kay componant of our
actmvities with 2,805 (2011 2,634)
hormes completed durng the
financial year ended 30 Jure 2012
at an average seling pnce of
£105,700 (2011 £112 300).

& We continue

to operate across a
broad spectrum of
the market, creating
homes for sale,
shared ownership
and affordable rental
properties We also
work with Government
agencies and housing
associations on a
diverse range of
urban regeneration
schemes
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CASE STUDY

London: Renaissance

Formerty the site of the iocal bnck-making industry, our
Renaissance development on Loampit Vale 1s now at the
heart of the regeneration of Lewisharn's town centre It
will bring a mex Of prvate and social housing, landscaped
public space and a state-of-the-art fitness centre for the
local community

Located in Zone 2, the developrent 1s situated opposite
the Lewssham Dockiands bight Railway and rail station with
excellent transport nks mto and around central London

In June 2007, Lewssham Council began consultng on
options for the location of the town's new leisure complex
Loampit Vale was chosen and we were inited to work
In partnership with the Council on redeveloping the site

We consulted widely with the iocal community at
public extubitions, meetings with community organisations
and discussions with vanous public agencies, such as the
Commussion for Architecture and the Built Emaronment
and the Greater London Authonty

Following the consuliation process, planning was

granted and in 2008 construction began on the
development designed by award-winning architects
Assael Architecture The scheme compnses 788 high
quality homes, of which 35% are affordable, set amongst
private landscaped gardens

The scheme also Includes a new, state-of-the-art
publc leisure centre designed by specialists LA Architects
This will nclude a 25 metre swimmng pook, a 20 metre
teaching pool, an indoor chmbing wall, a fitness surte
and créche

The development also ncludas gardens and squares
with dedicated mcdoor and outdoor space for art and
cultural nstallations

Local artist Phal Coy has worked closely with the
architects to design and install a vibrant, lluminated
extenor fagade The fagade, made up of many coloured
glass squares, gives the Renaissance development
landmark status and helps establish Lewisham as
an exciting new focus for art, cutture and lessure
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LAND AND PLANNING

BUILDING FOR
THE FUTURE

Qur recently acquired land continues
to perform in line with, or above,

our required hurdle rates applied

on acqusition, which include a gross
margn of at least 20% and a return
on capital of at least 25%

Land approvals since mid-2009

Year ended  Mid-2009 to
30 June 2012 30 June 2011

Total approved £5781m £8813m
Total number of plots 12 085 22,220
Location

= South North (by valug)
=South _North (by piots)

58% 42% S8% 42%
46% 54% 47% 53%

Vendor

—Government Private (by plots)  28% 72% 24% 76%
Type

-Houses Flats {by plots) 86% 14% 81% 19%
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Our land bank
Cur land bank consists of both
awned and controlied plots At
30 June 2012, we had 54,209
(2011 80,083) owned and
controlled plots consisting of
43,897 (2011 47,917) owned and
uncondiional plots and 10,312
(2011 12,166) plots under
conditional contracts Based
on 2011/12 completion volumes,
the owned and controlled land
hank provides a 4 3 year (2011
4 8 year) supply [n addition, we
have ¢ 10,500 (2011 ¢ 11,400)
acres of strategic land, which are
regularty reassessed unti the
necessary planning consents arg
obtaned Our strategic portfolio
1s camied at the lower of cost and
net realisable value, mmwTusing
our exposure to sk from these
land holdings  Strategie land
15 expected to produce an
ncreasing proportion of our
operational land in future years
At 30 June 2012, our land
bank had a camying value of
£2.077 3m {2011 £2,189 7m)
with an average housebuiding
cost per plot of £45,000 (2011
£43,600). The average seling
pnce of the plots within our land
bank 15 currently expected to be
¢ £185,000 gvng an average plot

cost to average selling pnce ratio
of 24% (2011 24%}

Our land bank carrying value
has been reviewed for impaiment
at 30 June 2012 and no addtional
net exceptional mpawment charge
was required The impainment
review includes a net nfiation
allowance for low single-digit
house pnce and build cost
inflaton Dunng the year
ended 30 June 2012, we have
expenenced regionat vanations
inhouse prce movements
Should the actual house prce
moverments for tha 2012/13
financial year differ from that
expected In the mparment
review, then there may be a
requirerment for further
mpearments or reversals n
mparments in the camyng
value of our land bank.

Land acquisition

Each division has a dedicated
land buying team with local
knowledge and experience These
teams dentify land suitable for
deveiopment and secure plannng
permissions to enable new homes
tobe buft This capability,
combmed wath our strategic land
portfolio, 15 designed to ensure
that we have sufficiant tand to



meet customer demand Cur
future growth and profitatfity

18 nfluenced by the qualty of

the land that we purchase and
develop Dunng the year we
continued to rvest n land which
met our clearty defined hurdle
rates in tarms of profitability and
retum on capital, prowiding
attractve retums at current selling
prices For the full year we agreed
terms on £578 1m of land
purchases, the majonty of which
we will acquire on the basis of
deferred payment This equates
to 12 085 plots of which 86% are
for houses The forecast average
selling pnce on this land i1s

¢ £211,000 based on cumment
pnces Dunng the financial year,
land additions were £475m

(2011 £395m) and £397 4m
{2011 £2610m) was spant on
land resulting in land creditors

at 30 June 2012 of £726 1m

(2011 £700 7m) of which £368 1m

{2011 £3491m) fall dug withm
one year Wa expect our cash
experditure for land to increase
dunng our 2013 financal year
reflecting the paymants, as they
{all due, of defesred amounts

upon the land purchases acquired

since re-enterng the land market
in mig-2008

Ptanning

In the year to 30 June 2009

wa started the re-planning of

a number of our sites to replace
flats with housas, a process
which has continued in the curent
financial year The proportion

of our cornpletions which were
houses n the financial year

was 68% (2011 66%) Outside
London, houses were 75%

{2011 74%) of completions At

30 June 2012, detaled planning
consents wers in place on 96%
(2011 96%) of land required to
rmeet our forecast actvity for the
2013 financial year In addiion,
we had outline planning consents
on a further 2% (2011 3%} of our
forecast cormpleton volumes

1 Clover Mead at Lawley Vitage n Tefford where
we are to bulld 1100 new homes over 15 years,

2. Ceveland Place Warmnngton A Dand Wilson
development showcasing some of our best
sefing desgns

€6 Our future growth
and profitabibity 15
mfluenced by the
gualty of the land
that we purchase
and develop 7
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SUSTAINABILITY

COMMITTED
TO OUR
PHILOSOPHIES

Our People, Partners, Customers and
the Planet are at the heart of what we do

26« BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012

e have dentifisd and
assessed the key
sustainability nsks
facing the business,
which include Environmental
Soca! and Govemnancs { ESG')
nsks, and have grouped thase nto
four key philosophies so that
wa can manage them effectivety
The four philosophies People,
Partners, Planet and Customers
are underpmned by our
commitrment to financial
performance and Health and
Safety Each s led by a member
of the Executve Committee
who 15 responsible for developing
and mplementing sustanabilty
related objectives and targets to
achigve the overall sustanability
strategy set by the Board
This ensures that sustanability
1ssues are embedded n the
normal course of business
and dacsions affecting
sustanability issues can be
implemented swiftly at an
operational level This process
ensures that adequate information
n relaton 10 ESG matters 1s
available to the Board Significant
ESG nsks that could impact on
the future of the business are
ncluded n the prncipal nsks
and uncertainties section

We publish a Sustamability
Report each year that explains our
approach and our management of
sustanability, governance and nsl,
and includes the actions we have
taken dunng the year to mprove
sustanability performance
Sustanability chsclosures in this
report and the Sustanabity
Repert, ncluding disclosures
on ESG matters, are based on
information collected annually
and from regular management
information This information s
subsect to mdependent review
and internal audit

People
One of our key strengths s our
people Despite a challenging
econormic backdrop, it is vital
that we continue to develop therr
expertise Accordingly, we have
maintained our nvestment :n
vocational and leadership training
programimes, as well as in
schemes promoting employee
development, engagement
and recognition

The Barratt Academy
continues 1o prowde structured,
bespoke traing 10 support
indvicual development across
three separate dsciplines,
apprentices, site managers



and technical/commercial roles
Combining professional traning
{on-site and in the classroom) with
industry-recognised qualfications,
our courses am to deliver us craft
and trade specialists, highly
competent site managers and
employees with in-depth technical
and commercial expertise

The apprenticeship scheme
compnses both trade and
technical apprenttceships
Apprenticeships last for two
years and since 2007 over 330
apprentices have completed
therr traning with the Group
We are delighted that one of our
apprentices, who has now been
put forward for the Group's 2013
Assistant Site Manager
programme, was awarded first
place in this year's external Skl
Build for the Northern Region

We have a graduate
development programme which
ams to recruit high potential talent
into the busingss  The programme
lasts for two years and graduates
are gven the opportunity to spend
time in each of our operational
departments, whilst attending
business and personal
development courses Alongside
the formal trarng programme,
graduates are also encouraged

o undertake voluntary projects
in ther local community as part
of ther project management
module We are delighted that
one of our technical graduates
won the Rising Star award at
this year's Nationat Graduate
Recrutment Awards

In addition, we offer specialst
gkills training In core areas, such
as health and safety, construction
and design and delver a suite of
internally designed and delivered
management and leadership
framing courses These are
designed to assist employees
develop the skils required
to progress from mididle
management through to sentor
management and cther high
performance leadership roles

We remain focused on
employee engagement and
dunng the year our fifth annual
engagement survey was
undertaken These bespoke
voluntary surveys allow us 1o
develop engagement plans
throughout the business amed
at further mproving the Group's
relationship with its direct
employees We continue to
recognise ouistanding indvidual
and team performance across
the Group through quarterty and

€ we have mamntamed
our mvestment m
vocational and
leadership trammg
programmes, as well as
mn schemes promoting
employee development,
engagement and
Tecogrution 99

1 Chrig Peatfiedd recenmg s Rising Star Award

at the National Graduate Recrrtment Awards
m April 2012

Site Manager Liam Gichnest and apprentices
Teview pians at Trnty Village n Bromley

annual dvisional awards and
annual national awards In
addition, we operate an instant
recogntion scheme, which dunng
2011412 has awarded 1,100 przes
The expertise of our
canstruction teams has agamn
been recognised externally, with
76 (2011 80Q) of our Site Managers
winning Pnde in the Job' quality
awards from the NHBC Thisis
more than any other housebuilder
for an unprecedentaed eighth
conseacutive year
Ourtargetistohave a
fully certified Construction
Skills Certification Schems
({CSCS') operational workforce,
including subcontractors At 31
March 2012 98% (2011 97%) of
the Group's workforce, ncluding
subcontractors, was fully
CSCS certified

Partners
We racognise that, whether acting
as sole developer, joint venture
partner, chent or contractor,
partnerships are vital to our
success We operate n many
areas of the market, from complex
regeneratton fo advanced
environmental housing protects In
doing so, we create a legacy that
goes well beyond the homes and
commercial properties we bulld

We continue to work with
Govemment agences and private
landowners to idenify and bring
forward land for development,
often Improving ts emironmental
condiion N the process We work
with our suppliers to help them
ntrocuce the new technologies
that we need to meet mcreasmngly
challenging buiiting standarnds, and
with our subcontractors to help
therm improve their ervironmental
and safety performance

We engage in dialogue with
local people and local authonties
in order to seek to address any
impact that our developments
may have on the local
environment and we respond to
community aspirations by creatng
new Jobs, tranng young people
and supporting local iIntiatives
By hotding public exhvbrtions,
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we Irmite stakeholders to talk
1o our specialist planners and
architects about their concermns
and aspirations for our
developments We believe
that a genumnely collaborative
approach will deliver more land
and housing with the backing
of local communeties

We have always been
concemed with housng
affordability wssues and have
worked closely with financial
mstitutions and Govermment for
anumber of years to improve
access to mortgage funding for
customers As a result we are
currently working with a number
of partners to help people gan
access to appropnate housing

We are cumrently actrve on
anumber of pubkc and private
sector partnership sites Park
Prewett n Basingstoke and Cane
Hill n Coulsdon are two schemes
where wa are working closely
with the Homeas and Communities
Agency At Scotswood in
Newcastle-upon-Tyne, we are
partnernng with Newcastle City
Council on a 15-year mxed-use
project, and n Castlewellin
Aberdeenshire we are workang

closely with both the local
community and the Prince’s
Foundaton to develop a master
plan ncorporating 247 homes

Jomt venture and parinerstip
opporturnties
Woe contnue to explore JV and
partnership opportunities which
esther allow us to access projects
that may otherwise not be
availabls, or reduce substantalty
the nvestment required

Work on site at our major
partnership developments with
London & Quadrant (L3Q')
continue to prograss well The
27-storey residential tower at
Alie Strest on the edge of the
City of London was 40% sold
at 30 June 2012 and work has
commenced on the Ashburton
Grove regeneration project
adjacent to the Ermirates Stadium
In North London, which will create
375 new homes In Juty 2012,
we announced our third major
parinership development with
L&Q at Fulham Wharf This
scheme on the north bank of
the Rver Thames comprises 463
apartments, a new foodstore and
a range of iood and lesure outlets
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Planet
We are committed to our
sustanatulity policy and we
continue 1o work hand 10 improve
the design of both our homes and
our developments to deliver high
quatity sustanable places to Ive,
and also to create accessible
developments that integrate
with exasting commurites

Through our sinct design
requirements, we have ensured
that our developments meet a
benchmark standard, creating
exemplary schemes which nclude
open spaces and communal
areas Durng 2011/12, 145 acres
of open space were croated within
our developments, and we are
delghted that our scheme at
Pickenng Community Park
was the winner of the Best
Community Intiative at this year's
National Housebuilder Awards
This scheme incorporated
community event areas,
alictments and conservation
and picnic areas

We acknowledge that the
nature of our business impacts
on the local emronment and
wa continue 1o strive to reduce
this mpact, both durng and

Proporton of construction waste segregated
for recycing on-site

I

(2011 95%)

Percentage of our Gustomers who would
Recommend us to a Fnend'

5%

Q011 98%)

Number of our site managers wining
NHBC Pride inthe Job' Quahty Awards

(0

(2011 80)

& We are committed

to our sustamabahty
policy and we continue
to work hard to improve
the design of both

our hornes and our
developments to deliver
high quality sustamable
places to ive, and alsc
to create accessible
developmenis that
tegrate with existing
communites 7?2



post-construction, by undertaking
significant brownfietd
development, by delivering high
quality regeneration projects and
by monitonng our waste and
energy usage

In the year to June 2012,
we buit 65% 2011 67%) of
our homes on brownfieid larnd
At this year's National Housebutlder
Awards, our Bluebell development
n Nuneaton was the wanner of
the Best Regeneration Project
Award in each of our dvisional
offices, Green Teams have been
estabhshed in the last 12 months
to denise and mplement schemes
to reduce energy usage at a
tocal leve! In addition we are
dehghted that three of our
empicyees were recognised
n Buitding Magaane’s Top 50
Rising Stars in Sustanabiity

We monitor the proportion
of construction waste segragated
for recycling on-site, which this
year improved to 86% (2011
95%} In addition, all dvsions
within the Group continue to
operate an ervironmental
rmanagement system certified
10 15014001 which s subject
to regular monitonng and audit

1 RobBemry Commercial Manager at OWH South

West cames the Otympec Torch n Brestol

2. Jm Toothll and Angeta Huriey part-exchanged

thew first Dienad Wikson Home {0 move up the
housang ladder at Castie Hesghts, Church Gresley

1. Helena Towers - 5{th Bamati FiesiBuy

purchaser at the Willows, Morden

Customers

Customers are at the heart of

our busmess We understand
that our customers want support
when makang therr purchase, and
we are commutted to offenng the
highest standards of quality and
customer service, as well as good
value, well-designed homes

Qur Customer Care Charter

Qur Customer Care Charter,
which s available on our wabsits,
ensures we remain focused on
our customers throughout their
joumey with us We are committed
to contnuing to mprove the
customer expenence, both on-sie
and onkne, and we reguiarly obtan
feedback from all our customers
at key paints i the sale process

New product range
We have carefully considerad
customer preferences in the
development of the Barratt and
Dawvid Wilson product ranges
Both brands have been updated
In the last year with intemal layouts
designed with modem Imng in
rmind, providing free flowng ivng
areas and natural ight The new
designs were well receved by
consumers and we contnue
10 roll out both new ranges
Customer feedback ndicates
that Barratt homes remam value
for money and offer customers
hwgh quality practical Ivng space
The room proportions have been
designed 1o ensure that they are
large enough to accommodate
our typical customer's fumiture
requirements, whilst ensurmg our
extenal designs are aesthetcally
pleasmng Dué to smart, ergonomic
design a Barratt customer can
expect a widle range of features,
creating great valus for money
Followng cusiomer feedback,
our David Wilson farmdy homes
have been prowded with more
generous crcuiation space that
delvers an overall sense of
grandeur They include features
such as more ‘ndulgant’ kitchens,
an-suite bathrooms with larger
baths and the use of multipie roof
lights in bedrooms
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Commumicating with
our customers
Our sales and marketing team
has continued to promote owr
brands throughout the year using
focused marketing campaigns
Thus included use of the intemet,
radio and direct mal, targeted
incentves and discounts for
customers, as well as tools such
as shared equity products and
part-axchange

We recognise that tha online
market continues to change
at arapid pace Durnng the last
12 months we have enhanced
the design and content of our
websites 1o ensure a customer's
first enguiry delivers all the
mformation they require We will
continue to enhance our online
user expenence and quality of
content through greater use of
e-brochures, wdeo, 360 degree
tours, iImagery of planned
developments and house types,
n addition to comprehensive
nformation about the local area

Wa continue to invest In the
technological capabilities of our
or-site sales centres, ensuring
our sales adwisers have the
most up-to-date nformation
immediately available to delver
a customer expenence that 1s
nformative and hassle-free

Assisting with
mortgage preducts
Wa recognise the importance
of halping our customers find
suiiable financial products to
purchase therr new homes The
Group's Head of Mortgage Lender
Relations works closely with the
banks that provide mortgages
1o our customers to ensure that
thers 1s an appropnate range
of products avatable We also
participate as fully as we can
n the Governmeni-backed
schemes, such as FirstBuy
and NewBuy

All our dmsions and brokers
have implemented our Group-
wide processes for dealing with
lenders and surveyors These
ansurg that we provids them
with transparency n relation

to our products and the financial
arrangements between the Group
and our cusiomers Thesa
standards exceed the industry
requrrements as specified ty
the Council of Mortgage Lenders
and the processes are subject
to regular internal audit

In addibon to easting lenders,
we actively pursue relatienships
with prospectve new lenders to
the UK new buid market n order
to support the development of
new financial products Most
recently this has taken the form
of affordable ‘top-up loans' on
a secured and unsecured basis
which give customers access to
aternative means of bridgmg the
deposit gap

Customer satisfaction
Our high quatity homes have
been recogrsed ndependently by
the achievernent for the third year
runrng of 5-Star builkder status
n the HBF annual customer
satisfaction survey This shows
that over 90% of our customers
questioned were sabsfied with
the qualty of ther new home and
would ‘Recommerxd us to a Frend’
We monitor customer
satisfaction with all of our
customers beng ndependently
contacted nine weeks after legal
compietion and asked to
complete a survey Over the last
five years these surveys have
shown ncreases in customer
satisfaction and we are pleased
that in the year ended 30 June
2012 98% (2011 98%) of our
customers would 'Recommend
us to a Friend” We monitor the
results of the survey on a ronthly
basis throughout our business

Five year warranty

We are the only volume
housebuider to offer a five year
warranty which covers fixtures
and fittngs that i1s additional to
the ten-year NHBC warranty
on tha fabnc of the building
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€€ We monitor customer satisfacton
with all customers being
mdependently contacted nme
weeks after legal completion

and we are pleased that 98%

of our customers would
Recommend us to a Friend' 9




1 Wingmil Plage, Thame Oxfordstere comprsng
a collection of 97 homes around a new open
public space, a short walk from the town centre

2. Tony Bad Sersor Srte Manager tor our Kings
Green development secenng bus NHBC
National Health and Satety Award

Health and safety

The health and sataty of our
employeas, our customers and
the public remans a top pnonty
for the Group The Group's Safety,
Health and Environmental
management systam (SHE')

1S subject to continuous review
and mprovement and conforms
{o the health and safaty standards
CHSAS18001 and 1ISO14001

All our trading divistons adhere

1o the SHE guidelines and
ongomg comphance 15 venfied

by & programme of intemal and
extemal audits Dunng the year
we camed out over 5,000
monitonng wisits and achieved

an average compliance rate

of 86% (2011 96%)

We also measure health and
safety performance by monitonng
the Group's repartable inury
incidence Rate (‘IR During the
financial year ended 30 June
2012 our IR reduced by 5%
to 511 {2011 539) per 100,000
persons employed We are
comimitted 1o seeking to reduce
the lIR year-on-year and we arg
working with our supphers,
partners and local communiiies
to minmuse the nsk of inury

Al the NHBC Health and
Safety Awards 2012, the Group
was awarded 30% of the total
awards n the Lange and
Mult-storey builder categones
and 13 of our site managers weare

recogrised for excellence in health

and safety The Group receved
five commended and eight highly

commended awards, within which
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our Renaissance scheme in
East London was judged the
overall national winner in the
Mutti-storey category
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FINANCE REVIEW

DRIVING PROFITABILITY
AND REDUCING
INDEBTEDNESS

The Group has delivered another year of strong
profit growth and has continued to invest in land
capable of providing further improvements in
margin We are well placed to make strong
progress 1n 2013
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Operating profit before operating
excephional terms

£191m

(2011 £1350m)

Net finance charges before excephonal
finznce costs

308m

(2011 £92 4m}

Adjusted eamings per share before
excepional tems

31D

(2011 2 7p)

Performance meatncs ware

as follows

* Revenue was £2,.323 4m
{2011 £2,035 4m}

» Completions, excluding
joint ventures, increased by
14 1% to 12,637 (2041 11,078)

* Profit from operations before
operating exceptional iterns
ncreased by 416% to £1911m
{2011 £1350m)

* Profit from operahons was
£1911m (2011 £1273m)

* Operating margn before
operating exceptional tems was
8 2% (2011 66%)

* Profit before tax was £100 0m
{2011 loss of £11 5m)

* Adjusted basic earmings par
share before exceptional items
was 8 1p (2011 27p)

* Basic eamungs per share was
70p 2011 loss of 14p)

Segmental analysis

The Group's operations compnse
two segments, housebudding
and commercial developments
These segments reflect the



different product offenngs and
market nsks facing the business

An analysis of the operational
performance of thasa segments
15 provided wathin the Business
Review

Exceptional items

The Group ncurred excephional
Iterns before tax in the year

of £107m (2011 £54 2m)

This compnsed operating
exceptonal items of Cnd

(2011 £7 7m), exceptional costs
ansing from the acquisition of
our pariner’s shara In a former
jont veniture of £10 7m (2011 £nil)
and exceptional finance costs
of £nil (2011 £46 5m)

Operating exceptional tems

i) Restructuring costs

In the prior year, the Group
adjusted its cperations to suit

the prevailing tradmng conditions,
resulting in £7 7m of reorganisation
and restructunng costs

n) Impairment of land
and work In progress
The Group has completed a
site-by-site imparment review
using valuations ncorporating
forecast sales rates and average
seling pnces that reflect both
current and anticipated trading
conditions The imparmment
reviews include low sngle-digit
house pnca and build cost nflation
assumphions in future penods

Since the overall gross margin
achieved across the Group's
developrments were primanly in
line with those incorporated nto
prior period impairment reviews
no further exceptional iImpawmment
was raquired at 30 Jung 2032,
although there were gross
impatment reversals and charges
of £31 5m 2011 £65 Om) due
to vanations in market conditions
across housebuilding sites
Changes ansing from normal
{rading, such as planning status,
resulted i a net rventory
impaiment charge of £6 6m
2011 £5 4m)included within
profit from operations

Bunng the year ended 30 June

2012, wa have expenenced
variahon n house pnce movements
by regron and should the actual
house price moverments for the
current financial year differ from
that expected in the iImparment
review then further impairments
or reversals n impairments of the
camying vahue of our land bank
may be required

We recognise that the Group
t5 ot immune to future pncing
trends i the wider housing
market and we will contnue to
review the trading environment
and qur mparment assumptions
dunng the year {o 30 June 2013

Financing exceptional tem
In May 2011, the Comparny
anncunced the agreement of
a complete debt refinancing
package As aresult of this,
and the cancellation of £288m
of nterest rate swaps, due to the
reduction i term debt and revision
of nterast rate hedging policy,
the Company incurred £46 5m
of exceptional refinancing costs
n the pnor year

The taxation benefit of
the operating and financing
exceptional tems was £nil
011 £14 9my

Joinit venture exceptional tem
In 2006, we enterad nto a ot
venture agreement to develop
severat sies in Greater
Manchester, including a 720

urit scheme in Hatterskey In
March 2012, our partnar want
nip bguedation and was unable
to settle its labilities with the joint
venture On 9 May 2012 we took
the decision to acquire ther
stake for a nomnal amount and,
accordingly, we have consotdated
the entity within the Group
dunng the year, recognising

an exceptional non-cash

charge of £10 7m 2011 £ruf}

Finance cost

The net finance charge before
exceptional costs for the yaar
was £80 Bm (2011 £92 4m).

This mciuded a non-cash finance
charge of £23 2m (2011 £22 0m)
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£2077m
%Z%m

{2011 £395m)

Commutted faciities and private pracement
notes to May 2015

5 1bn

(201t ¢ £1bn)

Adter financing exceptional costs
of £rul 2011 £46 5m), the net
finance charge for the year was
£80 8m 2011 £138 9m)

For the financel year ending
30 June 2013 we cumently expect
that, with our recucng levels of net
debt, the blended rate of ntarest wil
be around 8 5% and our cash and
non-cash nterest will be ¢ £550m
and ¢ £20 0m respecively

Tax
The Group's tax charge for the
year was £32 6m (2011 £2 3m)
This differed from the effective rate
for the year of 25 5% manly due
o the iImpact of the reduction
In the statutory corporation tax
rate from 269 to 24% and its
impact upon the Group's deferred
tax asset and adjustments relating
to pnor penods

Dunng the year, the Group
receved tax repayments totalling
£39m (2011 £4 5m)

For the financial year endmg
30 June 2013 we expect the total
taxation charge to be around the
effectve rate of corporation tax
of 23 75% This excludes the
impact of the charge ansing from
the reduction in the value of the
Group's deferred tax asset due
to the reducton in the standard
rate of corporation tax to 23%

Diwvidend

No ddend will be pad n respect
of the 2011/12 financial year
However, the Board recognises
the importance of both capital
growth and dnadend income to our
existing and potential shareholders,
and 15 commutted to re-ntroducng
the payment of dvdends
Assurmmng a continuing stable
housng market, the Board expects
10 recommence dividend
payments, with a consenvatve
dndend cover, by proposing a final
ddend i respect of the financal
year to 30 June 2013, payable n
the final quarter of 2013 The Board
ntends to adopt a progressve
dvdend policy as profitabity
grows, with the am over time of
achieving a target dwidend cover
of around three times
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In addition, we raman
committed to operatng with
an appropriate landbank and
continuing to reduce overall
indebtedness

Expense/income recogmsed
in equity

Dunng the year an expenss of
£33 9m 2011 income of £41 5rm)
has been recognisad in equity
predomunantly relating to actuanal
lesses on the defined benefit
pension scheme and movements
oninterast rate swaps

Balance sheet
The net assets of the Group
increased by £43 7m to
£2,973 8m pnmanly refiecting
the profit after tax for the year
of 067 4m, offset by actuanal
losses on the defined benefit
pension scheme and amounts
deferred n respect of effectve
cash flow hedges
Net tangible asset value
increased by 2 1% to £2,081 6m
(2011 £2,037 9m) and net tangible
asset value per share at 30 June
2012 was £213 (2011 £211
per share}
Signiicant movernents n
tha balance sheet ncluded
* The Group’s book value
of land was £2,077 3m
(2011 £2,182 7m) a decrease
of £112 4m This decrease
included land additions of
£475m offset by land usage
and disposals
* Group work in progress at
30 June 2012 was £1,065 5m
(2011 £1,023 2m). Thencrease
of £42 3m reflects the ncrease
in the number of plots under
construction at the year end,
including the commencement
of four towers in our London
busness Stock and work
in progress has been closaly
controlled throughout the year
Unreserved stock units as &t
30 Jung 2012 were 2 6 units
(2011 2 2 units} per active sita
* Group net debt decreased
by £154 9m over the year
1o £167 7m 2011 £322 6m}.
= Goodwill and intangible assets

remamned at £852 2m as the
annual impairment review of the
entire housebullding business
and brand indicated that no
mpanment was required at

the year end

The Group had a corporation
tax asset of £0 4m (2011 £3 2m)
and a deferred tax asset of

£118 6m (2011 £143 2m) Dunng
the year the Group receved
£39m {2011 £4 5my} of tax
repayments The Group's
deferred tax asset decreased

by £:24 6m mamnly due to the
reduction in the statutory
corporation tax rate to 24%

and the utiisation of tax losses
offset by the decrease n the
defined benefit pension Labiity
and movements upon denvatve
financial instruments The
changes to corporation tax rates
announced in the 2012 Budget
wilt further reduce the future
value of the Group's deferred 1ax
asset, however as the changes
were not substantvely enacted
at 30 June 2012 they are not
reflected n the Group's deferred
tax asset The reduchon

n corporation tax rate from

24% to 28%, which has been
enacted since the batance sheet
date would turther recluce the
Group's deferred tax asset

by £4 9m if all of the deferved tax
was to revarse after July 2013
The pension fund deficit on the
Barratt Developmenis defined
benefit pension schems
mncreasaed by £9 8mn the

year to £21 4m manly due

to actuarial losses recognised

n the year, offset by employer
contnbutions

Trade and other payables were
£1,361 3m (2011 £1,3797m)
nciuding an increase of £25 4m
n land payables from £7007m
to £726 1m reflectng more land
acquisitions on deferred
payrment terms dunng the year

Net debt

Group net debt at the year end
was £167 7m (2011 £3226m) As
we nerease site numbers, make
scheduled payments on new



€6 Looking forward,

as we continue to
Increase the number
of higher margmn ouilets,
focus on obtainng the
best possible price

for our product, and
continue our success
m controlling costs, the
CGroup 15 well placed
to make further strong
progress in 2013

land approvals and build work m
progress, particuiarly n London,
1o deliver completions for spng
2013 we expect net debt at 31
December 2012 to be around
£475m (2011 £542 2my) In ingwith
nomal seasonat trends, we would
expect net debt at 30 June 2013
to reduce agamn and be at similar
tevels to 30 June 2012

Treasury
The Group has around £1 billion
of commutted faciites and private
placement notes, with some of the
Group's arrangements extending
as faras 2021 The covenant
package 1S approprate and the
faciities prowide appropnate
headroom above our current
forecast debt requirements

On 26 Apnl 2012 our new
comimitted revohang credit
faciities ('RCFs') for £780m
hecame avalable undar credi
agreements dated 10 May 2011
At the same time the previous
committed RCFs of £1,190 dm
were termnated

In September 2012, we
voluntarily cancelled the £90m
RCF which was scheduled to
expire n October 2013 We have
reviewad our future requirements
and decided that we will no longer
require this facility This reduces
our total RCF to £680m, which
terminates i May 2015

We maimntain a regular dialogue
with our lending group, holding at
lgast four meetings per annum,
whare wa provide the group with
an update on the housing market,
our current trading performance
and expected performance for
the financial year

The Group has a conservative
treasury nsk management
strategy which includes a current
target that 30-60% of the Group's
median gross bomowings
catoulated by referenca to the
latest three-year plan shoukd be
at fixed rates of nierest Group
nterest rates are fixed using both
swaps and fixed rate debt
nsiruments

I July 2012 we entered nto a
seed investment agreament with

Hearthstone Invesiments, the
speciahst residential property fund
manager, of up to £22 5m spread
over three tranches and Iinked to
the growth of the fund The first
tranche was for an amount of

£5 4m The arrangernents will see
the Group contnbutng a portfolio
of showhomes, which will then ba
hcensed back This assists us n
unlocking working capial that
would otherwiss remain on our
balance sheet untl we no longer
needed the showthome and it
could then be sold

In conciuston
Dunng the year, the Group
has made significant progress
irs both rebutiding profitability
and reducing net debt

Looking forward as we
continue to mcrease the number
of hugher margin outlets, focus on
obtaning the best pessible prce
for our product, and continue our
sucgess n controling costs, the
Group 1s well placed to make

further strong prog n 2013
—d L

David Thomas
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

KEEPING CONTROL
OF OUR BUSINESS

The Group’s financial and operational performance

and reputation 18 subject to a number of risks The
Board seeks to ensure that appropniate processes are
put in place to manage, monitor and mitigate these rnisks
of which the principal nisks are idenufied in the table
below The Group recogruses that the management of

nisk1s fundamental to the achuevement of Group targets
As such, management throughout the Group are
mvolved 1n this process

RISK AND DESCRIPTION

Econemic environment, mcluding
housing demand and mortgage
availability

Changes In the UK and European
MACroeconomic environments INcluding
unemployment, austenty measures, flat
economic growth, buyer confidence,
avallability of mortgage finance, the abity
of purchasers to repay shared equity loans,
nterest rates, competitor pncing, falls n
houss prices or land values or a failure of
the housing market to recover, may lead to
a fall n the demand for houses which i tum
could resutt iIn imparments of the Group's
nventones, goodwill and mitangible assets

Cost raduction measures may adversely
affect the Group’s busness or its atility
to respond to future improvements N
market conditions

Liquidity

Unavailabifty of sufficient bomowng faciihes
{o enable tho servicng of kabiities (ncluding
pension funding) and the nabiity to refinance
fackbes as they fall dus, obtan surety bonds,
or comply with bormowmng covenants
Furthemmore, there are nsks to management
of worlang caprtal such as conditional
contracts, buld costs, ot verturss and

the cash flows retated to them.

RELEVANCE TO STRATEGY/KPls

As descnbed on pages 1810 35 of the
Busness Reviaw, the maority of homes buit
by the Group are purchasad by indmduals
who raly on the availability of mortgages The
confidence of buyers and ther ability to obtan
mortgages or other forms of financing are
mpacted by the macroeconormic emaronment.
Accordngly, customer demand is sensive to
changes n economic condrions

The Group's ability to grow ts busness

partty depends on secunng land or options
over sites and having adequate rasources

to build sufficient homes to meet demand
The Group's ability to do this can bs impacted
by cash and profit constrants which, n tum,
would have an adverse effect upon net
operatng assets and net debt (see also

the liquidity, land and construction risks
sections below)

The Finance Review (pages 32 to 35)
summansaes the commutted faclitios

of ditferent duration that are designed to
ensure that the Group has sufficient avalable
funds for operations The Group's bomowings
are cyclical during the financial year and peak
around Apnl/May and October/Novamber
sach year &s, due to seasonal trends in
ncoma, these are the calendar points

when the Group has the highest working
capital requirements

The Group mantans sufficient facity
comritted debt headroom and in addiion
has a number of trade finance and suraty
faciities that are designed to ensure that the
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MITIGATION (INCLUDING RESPONSIBILITY)

Led by the Group Chief Executive, the
Expcutve undertakes a weekly review of key
trading ndicators, ncluding reservations,
sales rates, Group shared equity balances,
part-exchange, wisitor levels, incentives,
publically avallable competitor activity and
cash flow projections and, where possible,
appropnats management action s takan

The Group's iIntemal systems clearty entify
the impact of sales pnce changes on the
margins achievable and as & mnimum the
Group performs asset impairment reviews
twice a yoar

The Group works with key mortgage lenders
to ensure that products are appropriate
wharever possible for its customers

The Group has Drving Profitable Sales and
Commercial Action miiatives in place 10 seek
0 enhance the effectveness and efficency
of our sales processes and keep the Group's
cost base tghtly controlled Cost reduction
measures are also managed via the
stewardshup of the Executive Committee

Under the stewardship of the Group Finance
Diractor the Group has agreed its debt
mfinancing which provides around Cibn

of commtted facibes and private placement
notas with matunty dates ranging from 2013
to 2021

The Group has n place a comprehensive
raquiar forecastng process encompassng
profitabiiity, workang caprat and cash flow that
15 fully embedded i the busmess. The Group
Finance Diector ensures thess forecasts are
requiarty stress tested {0 ensure that adequate
hexadroorm withn facifbes and banking
covenants s mantaned Ona nommal operatng

bass the Group has a policy of mantanng




RISK AND DESCRIPTION

Liquidity {continued)

Attracting and retaining ligh

calibre employees

Inability to recruit and/or retan employees
with appropnate skill sets or sufficient
numbers of such empioyess

Avaitability of raw matenals,
subcontractors and suppliers
Shortages or ncreased costs of materials
and skilted labour, the fallure of a key
suppher or the mabiity to secure supphes
upon appropriate credit terms could
mcrease costs and delay construction

RELEVANCE TO STRATEGY/KPIs

Group has sufficient funds available The
absence of appropnats headroom would
lrrut the Group's land buying and operational
capabiity adversely impacting upon
profitatylity and the Group’s abilty to

deliver sharehiolder value

Using the approaches descnbed on pages
26 to 27 of the Business Review the Group
ams to attract, retain and develop a
sufficientty skilled and expenenced workiorce
In order to mantan high standards of qualty
and customer serice

Not having employees with appropnate skills
sets can lead to bukd delays, quality issues,
reduced sales, poor custorner care and
reduced profitability

The Group refies upon affordable supphes

of bulidng matenals from multiple sources
and subcontractors to perform the majonty
of work on sites  This retains flexibility o
commence work on new sites and enhances
the Group's buiid cost effictency Adverse
management of these suppliers and/or
subcontractors could lead to build detays,
cost Increases and reduced profitability

MITIGATION (INCLUDING RESPONSIBILITY)

faciity headroom of up to £150m. The Group

has a comprehensive raguiar forecastng
process for suraty bond requirements

The Group s n compliance with its borrowing
covenanis and at the date of approval of the
2012 Annwal Report and Accounts, the Group's
ntemal forecasts ndicate that t wil reman n
compliance with thess covenants for the
foreseeabla fiture beng at least 12 months
from the data of signing of the 2012 Annual
Report and Accounts

The Group Human Resources Director
overseas a comprehansive Human Resources
programme which inchudes apprenticeship
schemes, a graduate development
programme, succassion planning and traning
schames talored to each discipine Thase
processes are embadded operationally

The Group continues to target a fully
Construction Skills Certfication Scheme
carded and qualified operational workforce

We monitor employee tumover levels on a
monthly basis and conduct axit mtenviews,
as appropnate, to identfy any areas for
improverment We benchmark our
remunaration aganst industry compettors

Managed by the Group Procurement Director,
the Group adopts a professional approach

to sits management and seeks to pariner
with its supply chain The Group has a policy
of having muitple suppliers for both labour
contracts and material supplies and
contngency pians shoutd any key suppier fai
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REPORT OF THE DIREGTORS

BUSINESS REVIEW + PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

RISK AND DESCRIPTION

Land purchasing

Inabulity to secure sufficient consented land
at appropnate cost and quality to promde
profitable growth

Govemment regulation

and planning policy

Inability to adhere to the increasingly
stnngent and complex regulatory
ervironment, including planning and
technical requirerments affecting the
housing rmarket and regulatory
requirements more generally

Construction and new technologies
Faiture to dentify and achiave key
construction milestones dus to factors
ncluding the impact of adverse weather
conditions, the failure o identify cost
overruns promptly, design and construction
defects, and exposure to snvironmental
llabilties which could delay construction,
norease costs, reduce selling pnces and
result in htigation and uninsured losses
Also there are nsks assocered with cimats
change and the use of new technology m
the butd process e g matenals related to
carbon reduction

RELEVANCE TO STRATEGY/KPIs

The Group needs to purchase sufficient
quantities of good quahty, consented land at
attractve pnces in order to be in a position
to commence construction and enhance
the Group's ability to deliver profit growih
Qur progress dunng the year is set out

on pages 24 to 25 of the Business Review

Acquinng poor qualty or mis-pnced land
would impact adversely upon profitability
and revenus

The Group's land portfolic consists of land
for the short and medium term as well as
strategic land inability to obtain sugtable
consents, or unforeseen delays, could impact
on the number or type of homes that we are
able to buld We could also be required to
fund higher than anticipated levels of planning
obligations, or ncur addtional costs to meet
ncreased regulatory reguirements Al of
these would have a detrimental Impact

on the contribution per plot

As desenbed on pages 24 to 25 of the
Business Reviaw the Group seseks to mest
regulatory and planning requirements to
obtan the planring permission reguired

to develop homes and communities

The Group bullds homes and communities
in Graat Bntain ranging from houses to
large-scale flatted developments Inthe
event we did not do so efficiently, or new
technologies result m quality Issues, the
Group's profitability and ability to grow the
busingss could be impacied negatvely
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MITIGATION (INCLUDING RESPONSIBILITY)

Under the stewardship of the Group Finance
Director, potenial land acquistions are
subject to formal appraisal, with those
approved required to achieve an overall
Group defined hurdle rate of retum and to
meet the Group's strategic entena for growth
Each dvision produces a detalled site-by-site
monthly analysis of the amount of land
curently owned, committed and identfied
These are consolidated for regular review

at senior management and Board level

In addition, sach operating dmsion hokls
regular land meetings

Led by the Group Chief Executve, and
supperted by the Director of Corporate Affars
and Group Head of Planning, the Group
consults with the Govemment both drectly
and through industry bodies to highlight
potential Issues and has considerable
in-house technical and planning expertise
devoted to complying with regulations and
achieving mplsmentable planning consents

The Group has appropnate pohcies and
technical guidance manuals in place to assist
employees to achieve regulatory comphance
and the standards of business conduct
expected of them

The Group’s Executive oversees weekly
reporting which identifies the number of
properties at key stages of construction
Projected construchon rates are evaluated
as part of the monthly forecasting cycle
Progress with development projects
(including joint ventures and consortia),
inctuding retums and cash flows, are
monitored regularty by dmsional management
tearns and the Group cbtans legal and other
profassional advice when required Any
attemnative forms of construction and building
techinologies and the quality of the matenals
used by the Group are subject to evaluation
by extemal and intemal technical exparts
including the NHBC, to ensure compliance
with all butiding and other regulations

The Group regularty moritors a number
of environmental impact ndicators, the
results of which are disclosed in the
Group's Sustainabiity Report




RISK AND DESCRIPTION

Construchion and new technologies
{conhnued)

Joint ventures and consortiums
Large development projects, some of
which imvolve joint ventures or consortum
amangements and/or commercal
developments, are complex and capital

intensive and changes may negatvely
impact upon cash flows or retums

Health and Safety

Heatth and safety breaches can resuit
In inunes to employees, subcontractors
and site wisitors, delays in construction/
Increased costs, reputational damage,
cnmnal prosecution and cwvil Itigation

Information Technology (IT*)
Faiure of the Group’s [T systems,

n particular those relating to surveying
and valuation, could adversely impact
the performance of the Group

RELEVANCE TO STRATEGY/KPIs

Due to their scale some projects may require
jort venture or consortum arrangements
Failure of a jont venture or consortium partner
to perform its financial and/or operational
obhgatons can place addihonal capital or
operational burdens upon the Group

Heatth and safety Is a kay issue n the
housebuiding sector Given the inherent nsks,
it 15 of paramount importance to the Grroup
Senlor management and the Board review
health and safety matters on a reguiar basis
and seek to reduce injury Incidence rates by
implemanting policies and procedures aimed
at keeping staff and wisitors free from inury
Qur performance this year aganst our njury
ncident rate KPI 1s set out on pages 31 of the
Business Review

In addition to the possibly tragic impact of an
accdent on-site, there 1s potential for legal
proceedngs, financial penatties, reputationat
damage and delay to the site's progress

The ability to optimise pnces and ensure
operational efficiency 1s essential to the
Group's performance The Group's ntegrated
management systems enable the Group

o mamntem tight control, especiatly with
regard to surveying and valuation

Adverse [T performance could cause delays
m build, and have an adverse Impact on
operational efficiency and profit

MITIGATION (INCLUDING RESPONSIBILITY)

Appropnate nsurance cover Is mamtained
for the Group's mam nsks

Led by the Group Finance Director, potential
Jjoint venture arrangernents are sulyect to
formal apprasal and appropnate extemal
advice 1s obtamed before such arangements
are approved Once operational, the
performance of jont ventures are subject

to regular operational and financial review

Reporting to the General Counsel, the Group
Head of Safety, Health and Ervironment
manages a dedicated health and safety
department, which 1s indspendent of the
management of the operating dmsions
Health and safety audtts are undertaken on

a mgular basis and processes are modrfied
as required with a view to seeking contnuous
improvement Performance 1s reviewed by the
Health and Safety Committee that meets
quarterly £ach month, health and safety
reports are cascaded by each dmision, for
review by the Executive Committes and
Board, which also recenves a direct report
avery six months from the Group Head of
Safety, Health and Ervironment

Led by the Group [T Director a dedicated
n-house IT team reguilarty monitors and
maintains Group [T systems to ensure
continued functionality A fully tested disaster
recovery prograrmme 1S in place

Details of the Group s management of kquidity sk market nsk credit nsk and capital sk in refabion to financal instruments are prowded N note 25 on pages

109 to 114 of this report

Details of the Group s contingent kabities are prowided in note 33 on page 127
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Robert Lawson
CHAIRMAN

Bob Lawsonwas apponted as a
Non-Executive Brector on 1 June 2008
and became Chaiman on 1 July 2008
He 1s also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee Bob s also
the Non-Exscutive Chairman of Gerws pic
and a Director of The Federation of
Groundwork Trusts He was formerly the
Chairman of Hays pl¢, Managing Director
of the Vitec Group for three years and
Chief Executive of Electrocomponents pic
for ten years and subsequantly Charman
for a further five years

Robert Davies
SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Bob Davies was apponted as aNon-
Exacutve Director on 5 May 2004 and as
Seruor Independent Drector v January 2009
He 1s the Charman of the Remuneraton
Committee and a member of the Audit and
Nommation Commttees In July 2012 Bob
was appointed as Chaman of Horne Group,
ong of the UK's lsadng housng assocations,
and 15 also currently the Chairrman of
Euroports Holdings Sarl and a member
of the Investrnent Advisory Board for North
East Finance He was previously a Non-
Exacutve Director of Northem Rock (Asset
Managemeni) pic, Charman of Biffa plc,

2 Non-Executive Director of Batish Energy
Group pic the Chief Executve of Ammva pic
and the char of the Board of Govemors of
Sunderland Unwersity Bob Davies ntends
to step down as a Non-Executve Director,
the Senior Independent Director and the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
at the 2012 Annual General Meeting

Mark Clare
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mark Clare was apponted Group Chief
Executve on 2 October 2006 and s a2
member of the Nominaton Committes
He s also currently a Trustee and
Director of the BRE Trust and UKGBC
Limited He was formerty an Executive
Birector of Centrica pic and Managng
Director of Centnca's Bntish Gas
Resdential Energy operation He jomed
Brish Gas n 1994, becormng Centnca's
Finance Director n 1997 and Managing
Director of British Gas Resxiential
Energy n 2002

Richard Akers
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Richard Akers was appointed a
Non-Executive Director on 2 April 2012
and 15 a member of the Audit, Nommation
and Remuneration Committees Richard
15 an Exacutive Director of Land
Securtties pic which he joined in 1995,
succeeding to the Board in May 2005
following his appointment as Managing
Director of the Retall Portfolo Richand 18
also a director and the former president
of the Bntish Council of Shappng
Centres, the mamn ndustry body for retal
property owners, ts a member of the
Roval Institution of Chartered Surveyors
and holds an MA n Engneenng Science
from Oxdford Unversity
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David Thomas
GROUP EINANCE DIRECTOR

Dawvid Thomas was appointed an
Exacutive Director and Group Finance
Oirector on 21 July 2009 He was
fonmerty the Group Finance Director
and the Deputy Chief Executve of
The GAME Group plc Belore that he
was the Group Finance Director at
Miflenmiurmn and Copthome Hotels plc
and held senior financsal rotes with
House of Fraser plc and Forte pic

Tessa Bamford
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Tessa Barnford was appointed a
Non-Executive Director on 1 Juty 2009
and 15 a member of the Audt, Nomnation
and Remuneration Committees Tessa s
also a Non-Executive Director of Wolseley
plc, a consultant at Spencer Stuart

and a Govemor of the Bntish institute

of Florence Tessa was formery a Direcior
of Cantos Communications Limited and

a Diractor of J Henry Schroder & Co with
whom her career spanned over 12 years
In vanous roles



Steven Boyes
CHIEF QPERATING GFFICER

Staven Boyes was apponted as

an Executive Director on 1 Juty 2001
and was responsible for the Group's
operations N the North On 5 July 2012,
Staven Boyes became the Group’s Gruef
Operating Officer with responsibility

for all of the Group's housebulding
operations nationally Steven joined the
Group m 1978 and became Technical
Director and then Managing Director

of Barratt York before being appomnted
Regional Director for Barratt Northem
©n 1299

Rodenick MacEachrane
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Rod MacEachrane was appomntad a
Non-Executive Director on 1 May 2006
and 1s a member of the Audit, Nomnation
and Remuneration Commitiees Has a
member of the Goverming Board of the
National House-Building Council {NHBC')
Foundation, an ndependent charitable
research foundation which s a joint
venture with the BRE and a Director of the
Nabonal Centre for Excellence in Housing
He was formerty the Commercial Director
and an Exacutve Direcior of the NHBC
man board before netinng after 25 years'
servica N Apal 2006

Clive Fenton
GROUP BOARD EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Clve Fenton was apponted to the
Group Board on 1 July 2003 and dunng
the reporting penod was responsible

for the Group's operations n the London,
Southem and West regions He qualified
as a Chartered Accountant before
oining the Group i 1983 He became
Financs Director of Barratt East London
n 1994 and Managmg Director of Bamatt
West London in 1966 Clive Fenton
resigned from the Board on 5 July 2012

Mark Rolfe
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mark Rolfe was appontad a Non-
Executive Director on 1 May 2008 He
15 the Chairman of the Audd Committee
and 1s a membeer of the Nomnation and
Rernuneration Committees Mark s also
a Non-Executve Diractor of The Sage
Group plc, Homby pte and Debenhams
pic and Chairman of Lane Clark &
Peacock LLP He was formerly the
Finarce Director of Gallaher Group plc
for seven years untd Apnl 2007 when

it was acquired by Japan Tobacco inc
His career with Gallaher spanned

20 years dunng which tme he served

n vanous finance and executive roles
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Tom Keewvil
GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Tom Keewl was appainted Group
General Counse! and Company
Secretary on 1 Apnit 2011 Tomwas
previously the Group Gereral Counsel
and Company Secretary of United
Utilities Group PLC {2007-2011) and
Gallaher Group plc 2001-2007), which
he joned m 2000 Pror to this, he

was a partner al intemational law firrm
Sirmmons and Simmons, which he
joined in 1984 Tom 1s a Non-Exgcutive
Director of the Solicitors Regulation
Authonty and a Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitratars
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Introduction from the Chairman

The Board believes that, n terms of the overall drection and control

of Barratt Developments PLC (the ‘Company’), effectve corporate
govemance comes principally from the establishment and rmantenance
of values, standards and disciplnes the Company seeks to apply

n deaings with shareholders, customers, employees, supphers,
contractors and other stakeholders The Board's stewardship of these
matters and its role n prowiding appropnate leadership 1s pvotal to
this ethos Many of the Company’s core values and standards are set
out in a range of procedures and practice guidelines communicated
throughout the Barratt group of companies (the ‘Group’) Extemnal
govemance codes also set the framework for the Group’s ntermal
standards and it therefore seeks to comply with established best
practice n all areas of corporate governance

My focus

A key part of my role as Chairnan 1 to ensurg that the Board retans

an apprapnate leval of Independence o allow Non-Executive Drrectors
1o challengs the Executive constructively whilst also supporting them

to mplement the Board's strategy For the 2012/13 financial year the
focus will be, amongst other matters, on ncreasing the profitatility of,
and reducing the overall Indsbtedness of, the Group {see pages 60 7

of this Annual Report and Accounts) and runming the busness effectvety
A key element of this 1s ensuring that the Board compaosibion 15 made

up of the comect balance of skills sector specific and general knowledge
to drive the strategy forward Dunng the year, Board membership has
besn refreshed and the Executive reporting structure simplifisd

Dwersity

The Board has considered the recommendations set out in Lord
Davies' Report “Women on Boards', and, following consideration

and recommendations from the Nomination Commuitee, has adopted
a policy on Board appointments {a copy of which 1s avalable on our
website www bamattdevelopments ¢o uk) The Nomnation Commuttes,
has also revised its terms of reference, to Inctude express reference

to the consideration of dversity when reviewing and implamenting
Board level succession plans

Risk management and internal controls

A key focus of the UK Corporate Governance Code {the ‘Code’) 1s nsk
management and the responsibiity of boards o determine the nature and
extent of the risks they are willing to take in achieming straleqic corporate
objectives, as well as nciuding an explcrt obligaton for boards 1o review
the effeciveness of nsk management systems and ntemal control

For the Group, sk appears n many forms and can fall nto any one of
several categories such as market, liquidity; people, subcontractors and
supphers, land purchasing, Govemment regulaton construchon, joint
ventures and consortia, safety, health and emvironment, and information
technology As there s no smgle solution for managing such a dverse
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range of nsks, the Board dedicates considerable time to discussng

and assessing the nsks affecting the Group and the mitigabion strateges
to address them. We have ncluded further commentary on risk and
enhanced the review of the prnoipal nsks and uncertanties of the Gsoup
dunng our annual review so that their relevance 1o the Group's business
and managernent accountabiities for each mitigation strategy 1s clear
{see pages 36 10 39) Our Audit Committee contnues to play a key part

n supportng the Board's approach to the management of nsk throughout
the busmness

Shareholder engagement

The Board recognises and fully embraces the importance of mantaining
an ongomng relabonship with the Company’s sharehoklers and actieves
this through regular dialogue on 1ssues such as the potential impact
upon our business of the UK and European macroeconomics, the
avalability of mortgage lending to customers, strategy, performance

and govemance

The Board

In January 2012 the Board met for its annual strategic review to discuss the
Group's growth plans and a number of stralegic issues ncluding mortgage
avalabiity, customer demand, planning regulations and Govermnment
programmas The review 15 INcreasingly focusing on the long-term
prospects for the provision of homes in a changing UK economy

Statement of comphance with Code provisions

The Company recognises the importance of seeking to mantamn the
highest standards of corporate govemance i alf areas of Its business
I am pleased to say that throughout the 2011/12 financial year the
Company fully complied with the mam and supporiing pnnciples of
the Code, detats of which can be found on the following pages of this
report The Code s pubhcly avallable from the Financial Reporting
Council's website at www frc org uk

The chattenges facing the housing market contnue but | bekeve that
the Group's semor management and employses reman totally

committed to delivenng improved performance and shareholder value

Bob Lawson .
CHAIRMAN |




The Board

The Company 1s led and controlled by the Board which has overall
responsiteity for the conduct of the busness of the Group and ensuring
that the obligahons to its shareholders and others are understood and
met The Board 1s responsible for setting the strategic direction of the
Group and ensunng that it has adequate resources and appropriate
controls, values and standards in place 1o delver its strategy within

a framework which enables nsk to be identified and managed Each
Board Director 1s aware of his/her responsibiiities, indmdually and
collectively, to promate the long-term success of the Group

The names, responsibilities and other details of the Drectors are set

out on pages 40 and 41 The Board met on gleven occasions dumng the
financial year o review and approve a vanety of matters ncludng those
specifically reserved to thern These ncluded  approval of the strategy
and management of the Group, ensunng adequate financial resources
are available for the busness, review and approval of half-yearty and annual
rasults mtenm management statements and trading updates, revew and
approval of dradend and treasury polioies, review end updating of ntemal
oontrol and nsk managerment systerms and processes, approval of material
nvestments/transactions, and approval of core policies retating to, amongst
other matters, safety, heatth and ervironment and enmyployes conduct

Board committees

The Board has establshed three pnncipal committees to which it has
delegated specific responsibiities the Audi {pages 49 and 52), the
Remuneration {pages 53 to 66), and the Nomination {pages 46 and 48)
Commttess (each a ‘Commitiee’) Each Committee 1s provided with
sutficient resources to undertake the duties detegated 1o them and 1s able
to sesk advice from the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
and external adwvisers, as appropnate Membership and attendance at
meetngs of the Board and of each of is Committees during the 201112
financral year are shown in Table 1 Each of these Commitees (and the
Board) completed annual effectivensss reviews (see page 45)

Tabte 1 - Membership ang attendance at Board and
Committee meetings

Audit Remuneration Nomination
The Board Committee  Committee Committee

Chairman Charman Chanman Charrman

Bob Lawson  Mark Roife  Bob Davies  Bob Lawson

Bob Lawson 11411 - 5/5 /4
Mark Clare 11711 - - 4/4
Steven Boyes 111 - - -
Clve Fenton 11/11 - - -
Dawvd Thomas 1/11 - - -
Bob Bavies* 10411 213 5% 34
Rod MacEachrane 11/11 313 5/5 4/4
Tessa Bamford® 10/11 - 55 4
Mark Rolfe 11/11 373 - 4/4
Richard Akers** 33 - 33 in

Bob Jves and Tessa Barniond expianed ther reascns for thew abesnce and prowced Her vews
o th 20ma of DLASss 10 he Charman praor & the Mo rsgs ey wins urabie i attend.

Frherd Algwrs orwd the Badrd &% 8 Non-Executve Drecior on 2 Aprll 2012 and becarme amer:bar
of e Nommnaton and Remunerkion Commdises as at that data

1V PSS UMD Of Mg BBNosd Whist 4 Drecir and /11 NCICASES NUMber Of Maaungs:
] whelst & Dractor

Board batance and independence

At the end of the financial year the Board compnsed ten members,
including the Chasrman, five Non-Executive Directors and four Executive
Drrectors, although executve representation was reduced to three on

5 July 2012 following Clive Fenton’s resignation from the Board The
Board believes that it has the appropnate batance of Executve and
independent Non-Executve Directors having regard to the size and
nature of the business and contmung need to keep its cost base under
trght contral I addition, the combination of the make-up and cakbre

of the Non-Executive Directors collectively, having regard to their diverse
backgrounds and expenence and therr varying lengths of service,
further enhances this balance

Dunng the year, given the length of Bob Davies’ tenure as a Non-
Executve Director and the likslihood of such tenure coming to an end

m the reasonably near term, the Nomenation Committee, having due
regard to mantaning the balance between the ndependent Non-
Executve Directors and Exacutive Directors, recommended the
appointrrent of Richard Akars as a Non-Executive Director to the Board
Richard Akers joned the Board on 2 Apnl 2012 As announced on

25 July 2012, Bob Dawies subsequentty notified the Board of his mtention
to step down from his positions of Non-Executive Director, Senior
independent Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committes
at the Company's 2012 Annual General Meeting {the '2012 AGM’) Tha
Nominaton Comrittes, having assessed the skills of each of the current
Non-Executive Directors on the Board dentified and recommended

1o the Beard the appomtment of Richard Akers as successor to

Bob Davies as Chairrnan of the Remuneration Committee Richard will,
subject to election by shareholders, commence his role as Chairman

of the Remuneration Committae with effect from the conclusion of the
2012 AGM In addition, the Nemination Commitiee recommended that
Mark Rolfe take over as Senior Independent Director from the same
date and the Board unarimously endorsed this recommendation

The Company recognises the mportance of its Non-Executve Directors
remanmng ndependent throughout ther apponiment as this enables themn
10 prowade obgectve acvice and guidance to the Executve Drectors through
the use of their wide business expenence and dverse backgrounds  as well
as beng able to chatenge construcively and scrutnise the performance
of the Executve Directors and satisly themselves with the mtegnty of the
financial nformation to be provided to the Board and the Company’s
sharehoiders In addiion, ther ndeperdience s of utmost importance
when considenng the appantment or removal of Executve Dreciors and

n the determmabon of succession plannng for the Board and other key
ndmduals within the Group  The Boand has, during the year, reviewed,
and remains sausfied, that all of ts Non-Execuive Directors, noluding
Richard Akers (see page 67), are ndependent n that they have no business
or cther relationship with the Group that mught nfluence ther independence
or pdgement Details of ther nterests as shareholders are contained in
Tabla 6 on page 64 of the Remunerabon Report. e

Bob Lawson was appointed Non-Executive Chairman of the Compary
with effect from 1 July 2008 and was considered to be independent
on his appontment. Bob Lawson's ather sgnificant commitments,

his Non-Executive Chairmanship of Genus pic and his directorship

of The Federation of Groundwork Trusts, do not mpnge upon his
availability to fuffil his duties to the Company and were consdered
during the annual raview of the effeciveness of the Chairman led

by the Seror Independent Director
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Roles of Chairman, Chuef Executive and Senior Independent Director
The dwision of responsibility between the Charrman of the Board and
tha Group Chief Exacutve 15 clearty defined in writing and has been
approved by the Board

The Charmman, Bob Lawson, leads the Board m the determnation of
strategy and n the achievement of its objectves He 1s responsible for
organsing the business of the Board, setting its agenda and ensunng
that adequate tme s available for discussion of all agenda tems, in
particular strategic 1Issues, facilitating the effective contnbution of the
Non-Executive Drrectors and constructive relations between Executive
and Non-Executrve Directors, ensunng that the Board recenes timely
and accurate information so as to properly conduct its business,
ensunng new directors participate in a fulk and formal induction process,
that the continued development needs of the directors are dentified
and addressed, and ensunng effective comimurxcation with sharsholders
The Charrman i1s supported by Tom Keewl, the Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary, in camying out these duties

Mark Clare, the Group Chief Executive 1S responsibie for the day-to-day
management of the operationa! actmvbes of the Group n accordance

with overall srategy and pokcy as determimed by the Board He cames
out duties delegated to him by the Board through an Executive Committee
comprsing of the Executve Board members, the Group General Counsed
and Company Secretary, the Marketing Director, Jeremy Hipkess, the
Group Director of Comorate Atfairs, Patnck Law, the Group Human
Resources Direclor, Jayne Mee funtil 30 June 2012) and thereafter
Robert Tansey (from 1 Augtrst 2012), and the Managing Director of
Wilson Bowden Developments, Nick Richardson The Executve
Committee generally meets on a weekly basis io review operational
matters and also undertakes more in-depth monthly reviews

The current Senior independent Director, Bob Davies, has specrfic
responsibility for evaluatng the performance of the Chaiman, at least
annually with the ather Non-Executve Directors (exciuding the Chamman)
hanving consutted the Executive Directors beforehand and has cormpleted
such a review ior the 2011/12 financial year, which gave nse to no issues
and unanimous support for the Chaiman He s also responsibla for
ensunng that, whers required  he 15 avatable 1o shareholders 1o () address
ary matanal issues o concems which the Charman and/or Group Chief
Executve have faled to resolve, and i) hsten to ther views m order for the
Company to gain a balanced understanding of therr Issues and concems

Directors’ confhicts of interest

On 1 October 2008, the Companies Act 2006 {the ‘Act’) codified the
duty 1o avod conficts of nterast, by which Directors have a duty to avoxd
a situation in which they have, or may have, a direct or indirect conflict
of interast or possible confict of interest with the Company This duty
apples to the explotation of any property, information or opportunity
regardiess of whether the Company could have taken advantage of it
The Company's Artcles of Association {the ‘Ariicles’) were amended

at the annual general mesting held on 18 November 2008 to nchuda

a general power for the Board to authonse such conficts

The Board has, in accordance with the Ariicles and best practice
guidance, authonsed the Nomination Committee 1o oversee the process
for reviewing and makng recommendations to the Board conceming
any actual and/or potential conflicts of nterest which anse or may anse
n relabon to each member of the Board, mcluding detals of any terms
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and conditions which it deems necessary to mpose on any authonsation
gven This process was cammed out satisfactonly dunng the year

The Group General Counsel and Comparny Secretary manians a
reguster of Directors’ confiicts of interest which 1s reviewed annually
Following this review the Group General Counsel and Company
Secratary will make recommendations to the Board in respect of any
changes to the authonsations, or terms and conditions apphed, that
may be required Each Director is responsible for notifying, and 1s aware
of therr responsibiity to notify, the Chairman and/or the Board of any
new conflicts or possible confiicts and of any change n circumstances
relating to authonsations already given The Board, when authonsing
any confict or possible conflict of Interest, does not count in the quorum
the Director whose conflict or possible conflict s being discussed and
reserves the nght to exclude a Director from a meeting whilst a conflict
or possible conflict 1s being considered The Board may revoke or vary
any authonsation at any time

Appointment and Re-appomtment of Non-Executive Drectors
Non-Executive Directors are gppointed, subject to re-election

by shareholders and statutory provisions relating to the remaoval

of directors, by the Board for an vhal three-year tarm and normally
serve a second three-year term Beyond this a third term of up to three
years may ba served subyect to particularly ngorous review and taking
nto account the need for progressive refreshment of the Board

The Articles, in accordance with the Code, require any Non-Execuive
Director who has served nine years or more on the Board continuously
to be subject to annual re-appointment thereafier but in any event all
current Diractors {other than Bob Davies), both Executive and Non-
Executve, will stand for re-election by shareholders at this year's AGM,
as they did at the 2011 AGM, in accordance with the Code provisions
applicable to all FTSE 350 companies

0On 2 Apnl 2012 Richard Akers joined the Board as a Non-Executive
Director for a three-year tarm and wil, In accordance with the Code,
be subject to election by shareholders at the 2012 AGM and to annual
re-election by shareholders thereafter Rchard was also appointed
as a member of the Nomination and Rermuneration Committeses on
the same date and will as announced on 25 July 2012, take over as
the Chawman of the Remuneration Committee from Bob Dawvies with
effect from the conclusion of the 2012 AGM  He was also appointed
to the Audit Commitiee with effect from 1 July 2012 Richard bnngs
with him a broad business expenance and a wealth of property
market knowledge from a retad and commercial perspectve

Dunng the year the Board also considered and approved the re-
appontrment of Tessa Bamiord as she has completed three years'
service on the Board Following a formal evaluation process, it was
unanmously agreed that Tessa continues to be effectve in (and that
she demonsirates satisfactory commitment to) her role as a Director
Accordingly, the Board re-appointed Tessa, subject to annual re-elechon
by sharsholders, for a further thres-year term. Dunng this penod

Tessa will continue with the roles that she currently holds upon

the Commuttees of the Board nchuding her posiion as a member

of the Audit Committee which she joned on 1 July 2012

The letters of appointment of the Non Executive Directors are available
for mspachion by any person at the Company’s registered office dunng
normal office hours and will also be avalable at the 2012 AGM




for 15 mnutes before and throughout the meeting The letters of
appantment clearly set out the time commitrment expected from each
Nen-Executive Director to ensure they satisfactonly perform thewr duties
and each Non-Executive Director confirrms that he/she 1s able to allocate
the time commitment required at the time of appomtrment and dunng
his/her annual effectiveness review

Retirement and re-glection of Directors

The Articles currently require Directors to submit themseltves for
re-election by shareholders at the first annual general meeting (AGM’)
following their mitial appointment to the Board and thereafter at intervals
of no more than three years Al Board members will, however, in
accordance with the Code stand for re-election by the shareholders
at the 2012 AGM (with the exception of Bob Dawvies {see page 43) and
Clive Fenton who resigned from the Board on 5 July 2012), imespectve
of therr date of appointment and length of service on the Board Each
of the Directors has been subject o a formal performance evaluation
process and it1s believed that they all continue to be effective in, and
demonstrate commitment to, ther respective rotes

Biographical details of each of the Directors and supporting statements
for the election or re-efection of the Directors are set out on pages 40
and 41 of this report and In the Notice of the 2012 AGM Details of the
Executve Directors' service contracts can be found in the Remuneration
Report on page 62

The Board recommends that shareholders approve the resofutions to
be put forward at the 2012 AGM refating to the election and re-election
of Directors

Induction

On joining the Compary gach new Drrector participates in a full and
formal induction process which includes site visits, meetings with all
Board members and senior and operational management teams across
the business Each Director is also provided with an induction pack
containing generat and specific nformation relating to thesr role such

as a schedule of meetings, copies of Board minutes and vanous policies
and procedures, detalls of ther duties as a director of a isted plc and
other obligations under the venous regulations governng the Company

Development

In January of each year the Board mests for a full day to review and
develop the overalt business strategy of the Group which Includes
presentations from senior management within the Group as well as
extemnal professionals

The Diractors continue te update therr skills, knowledge and familanty
with the Company by attending appropnate extemal and intemal seminars
and trammg courses, meeting with senior management and wisiting
regional and dvisionat operating offices and sites Additonally, dunng the
year, amangst other matters, updates and gudance on current live topics
such as corporate narrative reporting, sharenolder stewardship, diversity
and fixed and vanable elements of executive remuneration were provided
to the Board The Chairman regularly reviews and annually agrees traning
and development needs with Indnadual Directors

Information and support
The Chairman 1s responsible for ensunng that the Board recenves
accurate, trmely and clear information Each Director 5 1ssued with

an agenda, bnefing papers and comprehensive operating and financal
management reporis for the penod under review, generally a week
before any Board meeting The Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary attends all Baard and Committee meetings and all Directors
have access to his advice and, if necessary, io ndependent professional
advice at the Company's expensa to assist with the discharge of thewr
responsibilities as Directors

All Directors are provided with a rolling three-year schedule of proposed
meeting dates Any Director who 1s unable to attend & meeting 15 nvited
to provide their views to the Chairman ahead of that meeting, having
reviewed the agenda, brefing papers and management information
Reasons for non-attendance are recorded by the Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary and either he or the Chairman will,
thereafter, meet with any absent Director to go through any action ponts
which are of relevance to that Director Formal minutes of each Board
meeting are prepared, circulated and submitted for approval at the

next meeting

Performance evaluation

The Board Is responsible for undertaking a formal and ngorous annual
evaluation of its own performance, that of its Committees and of
ndmacual Directors Given that an extemal consultant undertook

the performance evaluation of the Board and iis Committees for the
2009/10 financial year, the Board agreed that it would, for the 2011/12
financial year, carry out the performance evaluation intemally using the
same performance aevaluation process as it did for the 2010/11 financial
year Accordngly, each Director was asked to complete a separate
confidential questionnare on the effectiveness of the Board and each

of the Commuttees of which he/she 15 2 member The Directors scored
the performance of the Board and its Committees on vanous topics,
ncluding contnbution to strategy, nsk managsrnent, financial and
operating reporting, matters reserved for the Board, inter-relationships
between the Board and s Committees, relations with adwisers and
regulators and Board procedures Responses were collated by the
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary and a non-attnbutable
report on the findings was formally presented to the Board in Juty 2012
for discussion Thereafter the Chairman conducted one-to-one meetings
with ndradual Directors in order 1o appraise the performance of each

of them as Board members and expiore the performance evaluation
findings Key outputs included a desire for more in-depth analysis of nsk
and cnsis management pians, enhanced traning and development and
increased emphasis in all meetings on strategy development An action
plan to address these matters has been put in place As a result of the
performance avaluation the Board and each of its Committees reviewed
and updated their terms of reference as appropnate

Dunng the year the Board and its Committees addressed all the 1ssues
raised as part of the 2010/11 performance evaluation process, ncluding,
development of succession plans for all levels of servor management
{inchuding the Executive Directors) and review of the annual Board
strategy day agenda to encourage more focus on Jonger-term strategy
as well as the short to medium-term strategies

In accordance with the requirements of the Code, the Chairman

met with the Non-Executive Directors mdependently of the Executive
Directors The Non-Executive Directors, fed by the Seror Independent
Director, met withowt the Chairman beng present, to assess the
performance of the Chairman and provided feedback from the process
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nommation Cormmittea compnses the Chaiman, the Chief Executve
and all five Non-Executve Directors (Richard Akers [oined the Nomination
Committee on 2 Apnl 2012) The Chaman chairs the meetings of the
Nominaton Committea, except when the business of the meeting retates
to the appontment of his own successor In accondance with Code
provision B 21 the magonty of members (the Non-Exacutive Directors)
are considered independent by the Company

Activities undertaken in respect of the 2011/12 financial year
The Nominaton Commuttee operates within its terms of reference which
can be found on the Comparny’s webste: www barrattdevelopments co uk.
The Nomination Committee met on four occasions dunng the year
to consider, amongst other things
« the structure, size and composition of the Board, havng regard to the
Board's balance of skills, expenence, ndependence and knowiedge,
* e development of succession plans for Directors and senior executives,
« the refreshment of the membership of the Board and its Committees,
namely the appointment of Richard Akers as a Non-Executve Director
and the appointment of all ndependent Non-Executive Directors
to each of the Committees with effect from 1 July 2012
» the leadership needs of the Group to ensure continued ability
of the Group to compate effectively in the market,
* the implemeniation of a diversity policy relatmg to Board appointments,
» through performance evaluation, consideration of the tme required
from Non-Executive Directors to fulfit therr dutres, and
» the review and recommendations to the Board on the authonsation

o{fg.r:cts of nterest of new and existing Directors

b Lowfe~

Bob Lawson
CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE
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The Nomination Comimittes leads the process for appomtments to

the Board and makes recommendations to the Board when suitable
cantidates have been identified When a vacancy ansas the Nominabon
Cormmittee evaluates the balance of skills, experience, ndependence
and knowledge on the Board and on that basis prepares a descnpbon
of the roles and capabilities required for that appontment The search
for Board candidates 15 camed out, and appontrents are made, based
on ment having regard to the need to mantain a balance of skills and
expenence on the Board, diversity and, where appropnate, refrashment
of Board memberships  Extemnal recrutment consultants are used
where appropnate

In Ight of Bob Davies’ length of tenure as a Non-Exacutive Director and
the likethood of it coming to an end n the near term, tha Norminahon
Committes assessed the balance of skills of the current Non-Executive
Directors and dentified the skells required by a potential candidate

in order to fulfil the roles of an addiional Non-Executve Director

and possibly that of Chainman of the Rermuneration Cormimittee The
Nomination Commuttee also gave consideration as to the appropnate
candidate to recommend to the Board to assume the mole of Seror
Independent Director The Zygos Partnership an independent extemal
recrutment finn, was apponted to assist the Nommnaton Commuttee
throughout the recruitment process Detatls of a number of potential
candidates from varying backgrounds, with different skills and of both
genders, were provided to the Nomination Commuttee A short list of
four candidates was dentified and each shortisted ndmdual was mited
for an nferview with the members of the Nomination Committee and
subsequently all Directors The ments of each candidate by reference
to therr relative expenence, potential contnbution to the business of the
Board, ther potential abilty to promote the success of the Company
and how therr skills would complement those of the existing Board,
wore assessed It was unanimously agreed by the members of the
Nomination Committee that Richard Akers was the most suitable
candidate A recommendation to appoint Richard Akers as a Non-
Exacutive Drector was made 1o and subsequently unanimously
approved by the Board Richard jomned the Board on 2 Apnl 2012

Pnor o tha appointrnent of Richard Akers as a Non-Executwve Diracior,
the Nommaton Comimittee considered the fact that Richard 1s, and

will contnue to be, a director of Land Secunties PLC ('Land Securtiies’),
the listed parent company of the UK's largest commercial property group
Land Secunties has i the past, and may n the future, consder possible
jont venture amangements with the Group or may competrively bid for
land aganst the Group Hawving considered the nature and extent of the
relationship between Land Secunties and the Group the fact that Richard
woukd not be directly imvoived n the negotiaton or agreement of the
contraciual terms of any prospective jont venture amangement batween
the parties, nor recenve any documentation relating to such amangements
or competitive bids, the Nomination Committee confirmed 1o the Board
that it 15, and remains satsfied, that Richard Akers 1s not confiicted and

18 ndependent, a conclusion that the Board endorsed

Followang Lord Davies’ report, "Wormen on Boards' {the ‘Dawes Report’),
the Nommnaton Committes has revewed the recommendations on
gencier diversity, as part of its annual effectiveness exercise The
Commmittea's pnmary goal 1s to identify the most appropriate candigates
{6 10m the Board and other senior positions within the Group  Howewver,
n accordance with its terms of reference it seeks to ensure that n
considenng succession plannng it has due regard to the benefits




of dversity for the Board {and for the Group as a whole), ncluding
gender Reflecting endorsernent of the key aims of the Davies Report,
the Nomination Committee recommended and the Board has adopted,
a policy on dversity relating to Board appointments, a copy of wiich

15 avaliable on the Company’s website www barrattdevelopments co uk.
Atthough the Board has not imposed a quota regarding gender balance,
the Nomnation Committee and the Board will remain fully cogrusant of
the need to ensure that the business reflects a diverse workforce, at all
levels of serionty, when considenng Board appontments and ntemnal
promotions, whilst always seeking to ensure that each post s offered
stnctly on ment to the best avatable candidate As at 30 June 2012 the
aggregate representation of women on the Board was 10% {one out of
ten directors) Across the Group the Company employs approximately
1458 women representing 32% of the total workiforce of which 16%

are in management posiions

Internal control and approach to nsk management

The Board confirns in accordance with prnciple C 2 of the Code that

it has mamntamed sound nsk management and ntamal control systems,
seeking to safeguard shareholders’ Investments and the Group's assets
The Board is responsible for seeking to determine the nature and extent
of the significant nsks that it 1s appropnate for the Group to take 10 acheve
its strategic objectves and 1t 1S the responsibility of the Executve
Directors and servor management to mplement and maintain the
Group's Intemal control and nsk management systems within the
govamance and policy framework approved by the Board The

nsk management and internal control systems have been in place
throughout the year ended 30 June 2012 and up to the date of this
report, and their effectveness 1s regularly reviewed by the Board The
nsk management and mtemal control systerns and therr effectiveness
accord with the Turnbull guidance The Group's system of intemal
controls 1s desigred to manage nsks that may impede the achievement
of the Group's business objectves rather than to elimmate those

nsks entirely The systam of intemal controls therefore provides only
reasonable, not absolute assurance against matenal misstaternent or
loss The systemn of Intemal controls does, however, prowide reasonable
assurance that potential iIssues can be dentified promptly and
appropnate remedial achon taken

The Group operates ntemal controls o ensure that the Group's financial
statemnents are reconcifed to the underlying financial ladgers A review
of the consolidated accounts and financial statements 15 completed

by management to ensure that the financial posttion and results of the
Group are appropnately reflected

The Risk Committee, subject to the general supervision of the Audit
Committee, 1s responsitle for reviewing the effectivensss of the
Group's intemal control policies and procedures for the ientfication,
assessment and reporting of nsks and to assess individual key nsks
onaroling basis The Risk Committee consists of standing members
compnsng the Group Fnance Director, Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary, a Regional Managng Director and/or Regional
Finance Director and the Chief Intemat Auditor Other members of the
Executve, heads of function and senior managers attend meetmgs
ty matation having regard to the busness arsas 10 be explored

The key aspects of the Group's system of ntemal control and nsk
management framework are as follows
i) a clear organisational structure with defined levels of authonty
and responsibity for each operating dmsion,
i) financial and management reportng systems under which fnancial
and operating perfomance 1s consistently reviewed against budget
and forecasts at dvisional, regional and Group level on a monthly basis,
i) dentification and review of pancipal operational nsk areas to ensure they
am embedded n the Group’s monthly management reporting system,
50 that nsk identification and the control of nsk are a routne aspect of
management responsibiity Detais of the: principal risks and uncertanties
and their relevance to the operation, and financial performance, of the
Company are set out on pages 36 to 39 of the Business Review Armongst
other matters, the nsks reviewed by rmanagement and the Board include
* the land and housing marksts, including changes in the
macroeconomic environment, sales and qualty of product,
* [iquidity, ncluding the avadabity of sufficient borrowing faciites,
= attracting and retaning a high callbre of employees, INcluding
the development of a skiled and expernenced workforce,
» the avallability of raw matenals, subcontractors and supplers,
* land purchasing,
* Govemment regulation and plannmg poicy,
« construction and new technologies, Including achieving key milestones
and the impact on the environment and social surroundings,
» joint ventures and consortia,
« safsty, health and environment, and
+ failure of the Group's information technology systems, anc
) complance with intermal contral and nsk management systems
15 supported by the Group’s Intemal audit team which 18 responsitle
for undertalang an annual audit plan, ad hoc audits and reporting
to the Audit Committes, and, if necessary, the Board, on the operation
and affectiveness of those systems and any matenal falings with them
The planned programme of audit apprasals across Group operations
15 approved by the Audit Commmittee and includes full dwisional audits
and targeted audits of kay nsk areas such as the land wiability process,
land acquisition conirol and momtonng, work In progress and
subcontractor payment controls Where the iIntemal audit team does
not have the expertise or resources required to conduct complex
audits they deploy extemal expertse

The Group s operations and financing arrangsments exposa it to
avanety of financial risks that Include the effects of changes in debt,
market pnices, credit nsks Iigquichty nsks and mnierest rates The most
significant of these to the Group s kqu:dity nsk and, accordngly, there
I1$ & regutar, detaled system for the reporting and forecasting of cash
fiows from the operatons to Group management to ensura that nsks
are promptly identriied and appropnate mitigating actions taken These
forecasts are further stress tested at a Group level on a regular basis to
ensure that adequate headroom within facilities and banking covenants
15 mantaned In addibion, the Group has in place a nsk management
programme that seeks to imit the atverse effects of the other nsks

on its financial performance, n parttcular by using financial nstruments,
ncluding debt and denvatives, to hedge nterest rates and currency
rates The Group doss not use denvative financial instruments for
speculative purposes The Board approves treasury policies and has
delegated certan day-to-day treasury actviies 1o a centrahised Treasury
Operating Committes, which n tum regutarty reports to the Board

The treasury department implements guidelnes that are established
by the Board and the Treasury Operating Committee
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in accordance with pnnciple C 2 1 of the Code the Board regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the Group's system of ntermnal controls,
covanng all matenal controls nciuding financial, operational and
compliance controls and nsk management systems A nsk framework
has been developed for all business processes by the intermal audtt
function and approved by the Audit Commitiee This framework forms
the basts of the intemal control audit plan for the year ahead, which
{ests i controls are being applied effectively n each operating dvision
Matenal 1ssues dentified dunng intemal audits and follow-up action
plans are reviewed by the Executive Directors and by the Board on

a quarterly basis, and necessary actions are iImmedsately taken o
remedy any falings N the intemal controd system

Cunng the course of its review of systems of intemal control, the Board
has not identdfied nor been adwsed of any falngs or weaknesses which

1t has determined to be significant Tharefors, & confimation of necessary
actions has not been considerad appropnate

In additon, the management teams of all operating dimvisions dentfy

key nsks N their monthly management reports to the Executive and
complete a control self-assessment twice a year n which they confirm
that they have applied appropnate levels of control The Audit Committes,
as a standing agenda item avery six months reviews the nsk framework
to deterrine if the system of ntemal control remains effectve and report
on their findings to the Board Dunng the year urider review, the Exacutive
prontised the nsk framework by dentdying the nsks considered most
sgnificant to the Group For each of the nsks so identrfied, an assessment
has been made of the probability and potential impact on the busness
and these nsks are reported on intemally and reviewed durng ntemal
audits and control seff-assessments
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Introduction from the Chairman

All members of the Audit Committee, as dentified in Table 1 on
page 43, are independent Non-Executve Directors n accordance
with Code provision C 31 The Board 1 sabsfied that | have recent
and relevant financial expenence

The Audit Committee met on three occastons dumng the financial year
and attendance at each of these meetngs 1s set out in Table 1 onpage
43 The Audit Committee’s annual work programme requines it to meet

a munmum of four tirmes dunng a financial year In respect of the 2011/12
financal year, the fourth meeting took place on 2 July 2012 Al outstanding
rmatters from the Audit Committee’s 2011/12 annual work programme
were dealt with at that meeting, ensunng that the Audit Committee
completed its annual work programme in full In addition to the Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary, reprasentatives from the
auditor Delaitte LLP ('Deloitte’), together with the Chuef intemal Auditor,
attended each of the Audit Commuittee meetings and met with the
Commuttee ndependently of management and the Chaiman The
Group Chief Executve, the Group Finance Director and other members
of senior management are also mated to attend mestings (or parts
thereof) as required

To enhance the effectiveness of the Audit Committee, it was agreed
that all Non-Executive Directors {excluding the Chairnan) should be
members of the Audit Commitiee Consequently, Richard Akers and
Tessa Bamiord joined the Audit Committes with effect from 1 July 2012

The foliowng section detalls the work undertaken by the Audit
Committee n respect of the 2011/12 financial year

Mark Rolfe i a

CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Activities undertaken in respect of the 2011412 financial year

The Audit Committee follows an annual work programme which

covers the prncipal responsibilities as set under its terms of reference

{available from the Company’s website www barattdevelopments co uk)

The Audit Committee undertook, amongst other matters, the following

actmties in respect of the 2011/12 financial year

* monitored the integrity of the Group's financial statements ard reviewect
all format announcements relating to the Group's financial performance,

« monitored the Group’s financial management and reporting systems
and assessed the ntegnty and effectveness of its accounting
procedures, systems of ntemal control and the process for identifying
and monitonng the matenal nsks facing the Group,

= reviewed and challenged whers necessary the consistency of,
and any proposed changes to the Group’s accounting policies,

+ monitored the effectveness, ndependence and objectamty of the
external auditor, the rato and quanturm of audit and non-aucit fees,
the effectveness of the external audit process and proposals for
partner rotation,

« made recommendations to the Board in relation to the appontrment,
re-appointment and remuneration of the external auditor including
the appointment of a new lead audit partner

» reviewed and monitored the etfectiveness of the intemal audit function,
the annual intermal audit plan and all reports produced by the infemal
auditor and management’s responsiveness to the findings and
recommendations of the intemal auditor,

* reviewed Its own composibon as part of its annual effectivenass
review and implemented the decision of the Board to appont all
Non-Executive Directors to each Board Committee resulting in the
appontment of Tessa Bamiord and Richard Akers as members with
effect from 1 July 2012, and

* reviewed whistieblowing procedures and ensured that armangements
warg in place for proportionate and independent Investigation and
follow-up action in respect of any matter raised pursuant to that process

As wall as carmying out the work assocated with the annual financial
reparting cycle under its annual work programime, the Audit Committee
undertakes other responsibilities dunng the year mcluding  reviewing
the Audit Committes's terms of reference, non-audt fees policy, the
whistieblowing pohcy, key accounting policies, the extemal audn plan
and associated reports and undertaking 1ts annual effectiveness review

Re-appointment of Auditor

‘The Audit Commnittes considered the re-appomntment of Deloitte as the
auditor to the Company n September 2012 Delotte was appointed as
the audttor of the Company through an external tender process n 2007
In accordance with UK ethical and professional gudance on tha rotation
of audit pariners, a new sad audit pariner was apponted 10 the
Company, after consderation of and nterview of the short bsted
candidates in July 2012 Taking into account this appontment, Deloitte’s
objectrty and ndependence, the rato of audd to non-audit fees,
Deloitta's performance aganst the audit pian for the 2011/12 financial
yaar, and the quality of achwice and assistance recenved throughout the
yaar, the Committee concluded that Deloitte’s performance as auditor
to the Company contruss to be satisfactory and recommended to the
Board that a resolution re-appomnting Delottta as the audior to the
Compsanty be proposed at the 2012 AGM That recommendation

was subsequently endorsed by the Board There are no contractual
ohigatons which restnet the Audnt Commuttae's choce of external audrtor
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Auditor objectivity and independence
The Audit Committee reviewed the policy which the Company
has implemented on Auditor independence and non-audit Fees
{the ‘Pokcy’) dunng the year The Policy sets out the duties of the
Audit Committee and the imited range of services which the auditor
may provide without requinng prior approval of the Audit Committes
Any services outside this scope must be approved by the Audsit
Committee in order to maintain auditor independence and morator
non-audit fees ncurred by the Group The Policy also sets out a number
of services which the external auditor 15 excluded from prowiding to the
Group These include
* tockikeepng or other services related to the accounting records

or financial statements,
* financiat nformation systems design and implementation relating

to the financial statements or accounting records,
* appraisal or valuation senvices or famess opinions,
* actuanal services,
* ntemal audit outsourcing services, and
* management functions, legal services or executrve recruiting

Under the Policy the Company 1s required to, and does, obstain wntten
confirmation from the auditor that they remain independent on an
annual basis

Dunng the 2011/12 financial year Deloitte continued 0 their role as

the Group's tax adwisers, hawng been appointed to the posttion on

1 December 2010 following a competitive tender process in which four
of the leading audt firms took part The Audit Committee, having consulted
with the Group Finance Director, concluded that the audit to non-aucit
fees ratio remaned proportionate and in Iine with best practice guidalines
and, given that the tax adwisory services are managed by a pariner

who has no mvolverment with the audit of the Group, t remans satisfied
that the appontment of Deloitte as tax advisers does not undermne their
independence as the auditor to the Group and this has been confirmed
by Deloitte The Audit Committes also considered a discrete exercise
that management proposed, and which was undertaken using the
property experiise of Drivers Jonas Deloitte, which, again, the Audit
Committee was satisfied didd not impact Deloitte’s ndependence

The Audit Committee confirms that the guidelines descnbed above
were followed throughout the year; that there are no ndependence
ssues i1 respect of the auditor; and that the Policy has been
appropnatety complied with throughout the year under review
Details of the audit related and non-audit fees ncurred by the
Group can be found on page 89

Remuneration Commitiee

Allmembers of the Remuneration Committee as set out in Table 1
on page 43, are consdered by the Company to be independent In
accordance with Code prowision B 21 Richard Akers jomed the
Committee on 2 Aprd 2012 and Mark Rolfe joned the Committee
with effect from 1 July 2012 The Remuneration Committee met on
five occasions dunng the financial year Attendance at each of these
meetings Is set out n Table 1 on page 43 The full terms of reference
for the Remuneration Committee are avadable from the Company's
weabsite www barrattdevelopments co uk. The report of the
Rermuneration Committes 15 set out on pages 53 to 66
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Activities undertaken i respect of the 2011/12 financiat year

The Remuneration Committee undertook the following actvities

n respect of the 2011/12 financial year

= determined and reviewed the overall reruneration policy of the Group
with regard to atiracting, retaning and motivating directors and senior
managers of the expenence and calibre required by the Group having
regard to remuneration paid to employees across the Group and an
external comparable group of companes,

+ determined reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration package and service contract of the Chairman,

» agreed targets and benefits n respect of performance related pay
schemes, INcluding long-term performance plans, for all participating
employees which are sufficiently challenging, fair and hughty motivating,
commensurate with sector practce and consistant with maximising
shareholkder value and the interests and expectations of shareholders,

* determined the {otal remuneration package of the Group Chief
Executive and after consultation with him, the total indvidual
remuneration package of each Executive Director and senior
management including bonuses, incentive payments and share
optons/awards and pension arangements, and

s undertook consultations with mstitutional investors on remuneration
policy and other aspects of senior remuneration, as approprate

The Remuneration Committee 1s also responsible for agreeing
severance arrangements or other compensation for loss of office
or early retirerment for the Chatrrnan, Executve Directors and senior
managerment and apponting consultants to advise on executve
remuneraton Detalls of the consultants utlised during the 2011/12
financial year can be found on page 55 of the Remuneration Report

Employment policy and mvolvement

The Group 1s cammitted to seeking to develop the talents of ts employees
so0 that they can rmeximise therr career potential and attempts to provide
rewarding careers In an atmosphere that engenders equal cpportuniies
foral Setecton for employment and promotion 1s based on ment,
following an objective assessment of abilty and expenence of candidates
after gvng full and fair consideration to all applications (ncludmng
ndmduals with disabilities) The Group 1s also cornmitted to ensunng that
its workplaces are free from uniawful discnmination of any sort The Group
strves to ensure that its polictes and practices provide equal opportuniiies
in respect of issues such as traning, career development and promotion
for all existing or potentiad staff rmespectve of gender, race, ethnic ongin,
calour, religion, physical disability, marrtal status, sexual onentation or age
Every effort 1s made to retam and support employees who become
disabled whilst working within the Group

The Board recogruses that approprate employee engagement 1s a

key factor in the long-term success of the Group It has, accordingly,
imptemented a comprehensive employes engagement programme with
the aim of creating a strong, shared culture All employees are invited

to take part N an engagement survay each year and the resuits of this
survey are fed back to each operating dwision, who use the results

to formulate plans for mamtanng or improving engagement m the
following year

A key pant of effectve employee engagement s communication The
Company seeks to ensure that all significant events, economic factors
and financial updates and the impact of these on the performance of
the Group are communicated to employees through email alerts, core




brefings and regutar newsletters Additionally the Group Chief Executive
regularty briefs senior and middle management via conference calls
which gnves them the opportunity to ask questions and enter nto
dialogue Individually and collectvely, the Board and the Executve
Committee members visit operating dvisions and sites frequently

N order {0 assess operational perfiormance, engage with employees

on a one-to-one basis and gain first-hand expenence of employees’
aspirations and concems

The Group runs a graduate Recruitment and Development Programme
consisting of a two-year mult-disciplinary programme of both on-job
and off4ob modules 24 graduates completed their two year graduate
programme in August 2012 and the Group has recruited 24 new
graduates who commenced the first year of the Group's graduate
programme in September 2012

The Group 1s committed to appropnate employee traning and
development at all tevels of the organisation It has introduced a suite
of leadership and management daveloprment programmes aimed at

alf levels within the organisation from graduates to middle management
and through 1o senior managerment The programme 1s designed and
delvered mtemally and 1s tallored to the needs of the business The
Group also offers the Bamatt Academy, a staged programme to enable
employee development frorn Apprentice to Site Manager and also in the
Technical and Commercial disciplines Succession planning is In place
across the Group and the leadership programmes assist with the
development of ndviduals as part of the succassion plan

In February 2012 the Company imvited all eligible employees of the
Group to participate in the fourth grant under the Savings Related Share
Option Scheme which was approved by sharenoiders at the Company's
2008 AGM {the 'SRS0OS") This gave those ndividuals who had
participated in previcus grants under the SRS0OS, but not used up all

of therr enttlernent, the opportunity to increase their savings and gave
other employees the chance {0 participate n the SRSOS and become
mora involved in the Group's performance As at 30 June 2012
approximately 41% of employees now participate in the SRS0S

Whistleblowing

The Group's whistleblowing policy 1s supponied by a robust
whistleblowing procedure whereby indwiduals who become aware

of possible improper, unethical or even illegal behaviour can either
raise the matter with ther manager or alteratively refer the matter

to a confidential and ndependent whistieblowing reporting ne {the
‘Whistleblowing Number’) which 1s available to all employees 24 hours
a day, seven days a week Any 1ssues reported to the Whistleblowing
Number are immediately brought to the attention of the Chief Intermal
Auditor The Chuef Internal Auditor reviews and investigates the 1ssue,
sesking guidance from appropriate ndvduals withen the Group such
as the Group Chief Executive and/or Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary, as and when he deems necessary Whistieblowing
15 a standing agenda item for every Audit Commitiee meetng The
Chief Intemal Auditor therefore updates the Committes regularty on any
new whistieblowing incidents, ongoing investigations and the outcome
of any completed investigations The Audit Committes also assesses
the adequacy of the Group’s whistieblowing policy in accordance with
the requirernents of the Code as part of this process

Relations with shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of having an ongomg relationship
with its shareholders and other stakeholders It fully supports the pnnciples
of the Code and the UK Stewardship Code which encourage open
dialogue between companies and their shareholders The Group has
amangements n place which enable it to communicate sffectvely with
shareholders in respect of Issues such as busness stralegy, govermance,
remuneration and any semor management or Board changes

Information about the Group, its Board and its business, mcluding the
annual and iIntenm reports, intenm management statements and trading
updates, company announcements and detalls on services avalable

to shareholders can be found on the Company's website at

www barrattdevelopments couk Information of a price sensitive
nature 1s communicated as requred via a Regulatory Information Sernice
and the Group strives to ensure that all key information s effectively
and clearly communicated

The Group Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director meet
regularty with nvestors and analysts in order to convey an understandmng
of the Group's operations, the market and iis management ocbjectves
These meetings take place dunng the year but particularly after the
annual and intenm results announcements The Chainman and other
Non-Executive Directors also have the opportunity to attend meetings
with major shareholders &t the request of either party and the Senior
Independent Director 1s avallable to meet with major sharehalders, as ang
when required, 1o gan an urderstanding of any 1ssues and concems

The notice of each AGM and related papers are crculated to all
shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting  All Directors,
including the Chairmen of the Committees, attend every AGM and are
available t¢ answer shareholder questions before, dunng and after the
meeting The Group Chisf Executive also gives a presentation on the
progress and performance of the Group prior to the formal business

of the meeting

[n order to ensure that alt Directors are aware of, and have a clear
understanding of, the views of major shareholders, the Group Finance
Director presents regular reports to the Board on the Company's
invester reiations actvities

Going concem

in determining the appropnate basis of preparation of the financiat
statements, the Directors are required to consider whether the Group
can continue i operational existence for the foreseeable future

The Group's business actviiies, together with factors which the Directors
consider are likety to affect ts future development, financial performance
and firancial position are set out inthe Group Chief Executive’s Review
on pages 8 to 15 and the Busmess Review on pages 18 to 35 The
matenal financial and operational rsks and uncertanties that may impact
the Group's performance and therr migation are outhned on pages 36to
39 and financial nsks including hquadity nsk, market nsk, credit nsk and
capnital nsk are outined in note 25 1o the financial staterments

The financia performance of the Group 15 dependent upon the wider
econamec ermaronment in which the Group operates As explaned

in the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties on pages 36 to 39, factors that
particularly mpact upon the performance of the Group include changes
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In the macroeconomic enironment, such as buyer confidence, averlability
of mortgage finance for the Group's customers and nierest rates

As announced in May 2011, in accordance with the terms of the Group’s
refinancing, on 26 Aprit 2012 the Group's committed revohing cradit
faciities {RCFs') totalling £1,190 5m terminated and the forward start
RCFs totaling £780m became available for drawng At 30 June 2012,
the Group's tota commtted faciities and prvate placement notes were
£1,091m The matunty dates of these facilibtes rangs from Aprl 2013

to Juty 2021, with £690m of the RCFs matunng in May 2015

The covenant package remans unchanged 1o that announced in
May 2011

On 6 September 2012, the Group gave voluntary nobice to cancel the
£90m RCF with efiect from 12 September 2012, which reduces the
Group's total committed facilibes and prvate placement notes to £1,001m
The committed facilites and private placement notes now n place prowde
approprate headroom above our curent forecast debt requirements

Accordingly, after making enguines, the Directors have formed a
Judgement, at the tme of approving the financial statements that there
15 a reasonable expectation that the Group has adeguate resources o
continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future, beng

at least 12 months from the date of these financial statements For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concem basis in prepanng
the consolidated financial statements

Post balance sheet events

As noted above, on 6 September 2012 the Group gave voluntary notice
to cancel the £90m RCF with effect from 12 September 2012 which
reduces the Group's total committed facilibes and private placement
notes to £1.001m

Wmm l/ i k
7 O g [ >V
Tom Keevil

GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
11 Septemnber 2012
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REMUNERATION REPORT

I am pleased to present the Directors’ remuneration report for the financial
year ended 30 June 2012 (the ‘Remuneration Report') on behalf of the
Remuneration Commiitee (the 'Committee’) The Rermuneration Report is
prepared n accordance with schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (S |
2008/410) (the ‘Regulations’) and wall ba subject to an advisory vote at the
2012 AGM Followng implementation of the proposed new remuneration
reporing regulations, the Company intends to align s future reporting
with those regulatons as soon as pracucable after they come into effect

The Board recognises that the Group's remuneration policy should
reflect the Group's sirategy to ncrease profitability and reduce overall
indebtedness n a challengng market whilst seeking to attract, retain
and motivate directors and senior managers of the quality reguired

1o enable successful future growth of the Group At the same time
executive remuneration must remain aligned with the kng-term
performance of the Group and the interests of shareholders In
dstermiring the levels of remuneration for Executive Directors and
members of senior management directly below the Executive Director
level {the ‘Senior Management'), consideration 1s given 1o the overall
parformance of the Group, the fixed and vanabte incentves offered
by comparable compantes in the sector and a generat group of

40 pan-sector FTSE 350 members and the pay and employment
conditions being offered to employees throughout the Group Targets
o dnve Increased prefitability and reduced overall ndedtedness are
features of the short and long-term incentve schemes to ensure that
Executive Directors’ and Senior Managemeni performance is
approprately akgned with our corporate strategy

Detats of the Group's remuneration policy and the remuneration
packages of Exacutive Directors and the Semor Management can be

found on the following pages of this Remuneration Report However,

key pomts to be aware of this year are

1 The base salanes of Steven Boyes and Dawvid Thomas have been
adjusted to reflect an ncrease in responsibilities (following the
resignation of Ciive Fenton from the Board on 5 July 2012} Mark Clare
has been awarded a salary ncrease of approximatety 3% for the
2012/13 financial year, which s in ine with the ncreases awarded
to employees across the Group To provide some context, this1s the
second year n the last five years where any ncrease has been made
to Executve Directors' salanes

2 Gen the significantly improved financial performance of the Group,
the bonus payments for the 2011/12 financial year are at 148 75%
of base salary after talang account of adjustments for the value of
land sales The Committee, on reviewing performance aganst the
targets, concluded that, after taking into account the Group's
significant improvernent in profit before tax and exceptional tems
{which represents 80% of the total award for the year) to £0107m
aganst the minimum thresheld established for the bonus of £85mm,

a target level of £95m and a maxmum threshold of £115m, reduction
n overall indebtedness, and mdwvidual contrbutions of all senior
managers to achieving these results, this level of bonus is justified

3 For the 2012/13 financial year, Executive Directors and the

Senior Management wilt be granted awards under the Long-Term

Performance Plan {the 'LTPP’) Consistent wath the approach taken

In pravious years, the Committee has decided to revert to making

awards of 200% of base salary for the three Exacutive Direciors but all

other participants’ awards will be mantaned at 150% of base salary Al
awards under the LTPP will be subject to two performance conditions
half will he based on relative Total Sharehoider Retum (TSR’) and the
other half on Eamings per Share (EPS’) targets to be measured over

a three year performance penod commencing 1 July 2012

in May 2012, the Board reviewed the roles of the Non-Executive

Directors and decided that they will st on each pnncipal Com mittee

of the Board with sffect from 1 July 2012 Consequently, Non-Executive

Drrectors' base annual fees have been mereased to £48,000 from

£40 000 to reflect the additional tsme commitment expected from

themn, with effect from the same date This is the first increasae for

Non-Executive Direciors since 2008 The Chairman's fee will

however reman unchanged

5 The Board will be askng shareholders at our forthcorming AGM
to approve the renewal of the LTPP for a further ten years The only
substantial amendment o the LTPP relates to the specific inclusion
of clawback provisions for any ewards made under the LTPP going
forward Since 2010, clawback provisions have been agreed with,
and accepted by, the Executve Directors and the Senior Management
each time an award under the LTPP has been made

6 In order to seek to mitigate the impact of key employees below Senor
Management level 1aking up new [ob opportunities with competitors,
particulary n London and the South East, we have ntroduced
& Iirmited Long-Term incentive Plan {the ‘LTIP’) for approximatety
30 of these employees Awards under the LTIP are dependent
on the Company achieving EPS targets as per the exisiing LTPP

£~
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Dunng the year the Committee complied with those aspects of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the 'Code’) relevant to its business and
took into accourt remuneration guidetines and guidance issued by the
Association of British Insurers (the ‘ABI"), NAPF and PIRC when setting
its remuneraton palicy The Committee contnues to seek to demonsirate
its accountability on executive remuneration to shareholders through

this report and through dialogues with mstrtutional nvestors As in previcus
years, the Committee did engage i dialogus with key institutionat
nvestors and shareholder representative bodies in respect of the
Group's remunerabion policy for Executive Directors and Senior
Management for the forthcoming year The Committes took nto account
the feedback it receved from this process, when setting the Group's
remuneraton policy

The Committee will consider both the shareholders® vote on the report
and views expressed by shareholders on the detall of the report at the
2012 AGM in determining future remuneration policy for all employees

It wall also undertake a review, with the assistance of its fegal and
financial advisers, of the Group’s current remuneration policy N lne with
the Govemment's announcement in June 2012, once the applicable
regulat:ons have been finalised | hope that you will be able to support
the Comimitteg’s policy at this year's AGM

After eight years on the Board of the Company, six years as the
Chairman of the Committee and three years as Senior Independent
Cwrector, | have decided to step down from each of these positions

at the 2012 AGM 1 am delighted to report that the Board has agreed

{0 appoint Richard Akers as the new Chawman of the Committee
{subyect of course to the annual shareholders’ vote on re-election of
dirsctors) In order to enhg ; he effectivenass of the Committee further,
ittee as a member on 1 July 2012

Mark R ingd -'.---'f»
oep
S
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The Comnuttee

The Committee operates within terms of reference and governance
polcies approved by the Board (the "Terms of Reference’) The full
Terms of Reference are avalable from the Company’s website at
www barrattdevelopments co uk

Prnncipal responsibilities

The pnncipal responsibiities of the Committee are

» determining and reviewing the overalt remuneration pobcy of the Group
with regard to attracting, retaining and motwvating directors and senior
managers of the expenence and calbre required by the Group having
regard to remuneration paid to employaes across the Group and an
external comparable group of companies,

= deterrmining, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration package and terms of appointment of the Chairman,

* agreeng targets and benefits n respect of performance related pay
schames, Including tong-term performance plans, for alt participating
employees which are sufficientty challenging, fair and highly motwvating,
commensurate with sector practice, and consistent with maxamising
shareholder value and the nterests and expectations of shareholders,

* agreemg severanca arrangements or other compensation for loss
of office or early retirement for the Chairman, Executive Directors
and the Senior Management,

* determining the total remuneration package of the Group Chief
Executve and, after consultation with him, the total ndnidual
remunaration package of each Executve Director and the Senior
Management including bonuses, ncentve payments and share
options/awards and pension arrangements, and

* undertaking consultations with nshtutional nvestors on remuneration
polcy and/or other aspects of senior remuneration, as appropnate

The Commitiee is also responsible for appomting consultants to advise
on executve remuneration Details of the consultants utlised dunng the
financial year ended 30 June 2012 are set out below

Membership and proceedings of the Committee

The members of the Committee throughout the financial year were

Bob Davies (Chaiman), Bob Lawson, Rod MacEachrane and Tessa
Bamford Richard Akers also joined the Committee on 2 Apnl 2012

The Group General Counsel and Company Secretary, Tom Keevil, acts
as Secrefary to the Cormmittee The Committes miet on five occasions
dunng the financal year and attendance at each of these meetings is
descnbed in Table 1 on page 43 of the Corporate Govemance Report.

All Committee members are considered to be ndeperdent with no financial
interest in the Cormmittee’s decisions, other than as shareholders and the
fees pad to them as Non-Executve Directors The only matenal issue that
arose from the annual effectiveniess exercise was whether the Committee
needed more strength In depth given the envisaged legislative changes
nthisarea Accordingly, Mask Rotfe poned the Committes with effect
from 1 July 2012 The Committee also updated its Terms of Reference

as part of the annual effectveness process Detaits of Directors’
shareholdings can be found on page 64 of this Remuneration Report

As announced on 25 July 2012, Bob Davies will step down from Hus
postion as a Directar of the Board at the 2012 AGM and taking nto
consideration the skills, knowledge and expenence of each of the
Non-Executve Directors, the Board identified Richard Akers as the
most sutable Non-Executve Director to replace Bob Davies as the
Chairman of the Committee




Advice/Advisers

Bunng the year the Commutiee has taken advice from ndependent
adwisers, New Bndge Strest (NBS'), a dmsion of Aon Hewntt Limited,
which 1s a subsidiary of Aon pic NBS was apponted by the Commttee
as its rmmunerabion consultant in 2008 and s a founder signatory to the
Remuneration Consultants Group's Code of Conduct in addion to
advising the Commiites, NBS also prowded the Company with advice
on implementing decisions rmade by the Commuttee and remuneration
benchmarking NBS's fees for providing such adwice amounted to
£26,053 2011 £27,000} for the year ended 30 June 2012 Aon Hewitt
Limited also provided broking services to the Company n respect of
private medical insurance, Death in Service benefits and Group Income
Protection In ine with best practice, the Commuttes assesses, from time
to time, whether the apportment remams appropnate or i it should

be put out to tender as part of its effectveness review Given a change n
personnel at NBS, the Committes undertook such an assessment dunng
the year and remains sabisfied with NBS's appontment, and the new lead
adviser, as remuneration adwvisers to the Committee Mercar Limited has
adwvised the Company in relation to vanous pension ssues and has been
appomnted actuary to the Bamatt Group Pension and Life Assurance
Scheme since 2004 Slaughter and May, the Company’s corporate
lagal achisers, have also provided adwice as and when necessary

In additon to adwice from extemnal consultants, the Committee receved
nput Into lis decision-making from the Group Chief Executive and the
Group General Counse! and Company Secretary, neither of whom was
praseat at any ime when his own remuneration was being considerad

Remuneration policy

The Group's remuneration poficy ams to attract, retan, motvate and
reward Executve Directors and the Serior Managerment who are iully
focused and incentmsed by short and long-term measures to sustam
the growth and profitability of the busness and reduce overa
indebtadness which remain the Group's key strategic objectves Each
year the Committee reviews the policy on executive remuneration i the
context of the busmess ermronment, reguiation and best practice, and
market trends for the cunent and subsequent financial years

The Committee beleves that executve remuneration should

« be fully aligned with the performance and strategic objectves
of the Group {such as increasmg profitability and reducing
overalt ndebtedness),

* ba algned with the interests and expeciations of shareholders,

* take account of pay and ermployment conditions of employees
across the Group

» reward the sustamed growth and profifability of the business and
the reduction of overall indebtedness, and

« conform to market-lsading best practice and regulations

The Committee has therefore based the executive remuneration

package for the forthcoming year on the following prnciples

» performance-related remunsration shouid be linked 1o the
achievernent of dermandmng performance targets

» performance-relatad remuneration should reflect the reallocation
of responsibilites upon the appantment of Steven Boyes as Chief
Operatng Otficer and changes to the rola performed by Dawd Thomas,
currently approximately 72 2% of the Group Chief Executve's and
appraximately 72 3% of the other Executve Directons’ remuneration
potential 1s performance based {see Charts 1 and 2);

« performance-related remuneration should align the interests
of axecutves with those of shareholders by settng parformance
targets based on measures of shareholder return and accordingly
the Committee’s policy is to use a combinahion of TSR and EPS
performance condibons to achieve this alignment,

« total remuneration for outstanding performance should be
competitve with that available elsewhere in the sector; and

= total remuneration should take nto acoount levels of pay and
amployment conditons throughout the Group

Chart 1

Chart 2

The Commutiee has the discretion to, and does, consider the effect of
corporate performance on ermronmental, social and govemnance nsks
and issues when setting tha remuneration of the Executve Directors
and the Senior Management to ensure that rermuneration structures

do not inadvertently rmotvate iresponsible behaviour As a result,

10% of any bonus samed will ba forfeited if the Group does not achieve
ks safety, health and ervironmental compliance targets (see page 31

of the Business Review) Dunng the year the Committee considered

the structure of Executve Directors’ and the Servor Management's
rermuneration packages from a general nsk perspective and 15 satisfied
that they do not encourage inappropnate nsk taking Risk is also taken
into account when setting the targets and when determining entitlernents
under vanable reward schemes The Commitiee ensures that targets,
whilst stretching, are realstic and attanable, for the fong-term benefit of
the Group, and not achievabie by taking mappropnate business nsks

in undertaking s review of the Group's remuneraton polcy, the
Committee considered a proposal by the Board to seek to mitgate

the mpact of key employees below Senior Management level talkang

up new job opportunities with cormpetitors operating nationally, but most
noiably in London and the South East Recognising the nsks associated
with losses from this talent pool, the Commities approved the mtroducton
of the LTIP for approximately 30 employees operating immediately below
Senior Management ievel The Executive Directors’ and Senior
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Management wilt not be granted any awards under the LTIP Onan
annual basis subyect 1o pnor approval from the Committae the equivalent
of 209 of each participant’s salary wil be deferred mte the LTIP The LTIP
will be subject 10 an EPS performance condition on the same basis as
eny LTPP award which may be granted dunng the 2012/13 financial year
{thereby aligning the objectives) and subsequent LTPP awards and a
contnued employmient condibon In the event that the participant 15 stil
an empioyee of the Group at the end of the three year performance
penod and the Group achieves the specified EPS targets, the participant
will receve an equivalent number of shares to the amount of bonus
deferred By usmng the same stretching EPS targets as the LTPP, the
Commuttee 1s ensunng that the LTIP 15 aligned with our strategic
objectves of ncreasing profitabiity and reducing overall ndebtedness

Clawback

The Company has a power of clawback n respect of any annual bonus
pard and to any share awards granted under the LTPP or the Executve
Share Option Scheme (the ‘ESOS) in respect of the financial year ended
30 June 2010 and later years, subject n the case of HMRC approved
options, to such approval These provsions have, since 2010, been agreed
with, and accepted by, Executve Directors and Senmior Management at the
tme of granting any new awards under the LTPP or ESCS It s ntended to
embed these provisions in the amended rules of the LTPP whch are io be
presented for approvat by shareholders at the 2012 AGM In addidion, the
clawback provisions wil also apply to any awards granted under the LTIP

The clawback can be nvoked if

{a) it 1s necessary to restate the Group's accounts used to cakulate

a participant’s entitiement to bonus or share awands in circumstances
where the onginal over-statemnent has led to a bonus bemng paid or share
awards being granted which would not otherwisa have been pad or
grantad, or (b} the participant s found guilty of any cnminal actmty in
connection with his or her employment and this related to an act which
led t¢ a bonus beng pad or share awards baing grantad to him or her

In such crrcumstances, the Commitiee may determine that the bonus
anglfor share award will be retrospectvely recalculated If bonus monies
have been pad, the participant will be required to remburse the
Companty for an amount up {0 the total amount of the net bonus pad,
less any bonus that the Commutiee deterrmines wouid have been paid
regardless of the event n question (f share awards have been granted,
the number of awards or optons granted will be reduced accondingly

Executive Directors’ shareholding guidelines

The Committea has implemented, and annually reviews the foliowing

shareholding guidelines for all Executve Directors in order to further

align the interests of the Executives with the expectations of the

Company's sharehokders

» within five years of being appointed to the Board, Executive Directors
are required to build up, and retan, ordinary shares in the Compary
equivalent in value 10 100% of thar base annual salary,

* the share pnce to be used for the purposas of determining the value
of the shares will be that prevaiing on 30 June in each year; and

* prowided that Executive Directors hold the appropnate level of shares,
they may sell shares (i) to realise thewr ETPP awards, or (i) upon the
exercise of share ophions, subyect to the normal Lising Rules and
Dxsciosure and Transparency Rules’ requirements for directors’ dealings

These guidelines are currently only applicable to Staven Boyes
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and Mark Clare Dawd Thomas joned the Company m July 2009
0On 30 June 2012, Mark Clare, Steven Boyes and Clive Fenton each
met tha requirements undear these shareholding guidelnes

There are no formal shareholding guidelines for the Charman the
Non-Executive Dyectors and the Senior Management, however they
are encouraged 1o hold shares in the Company in order to align their
interests with those of shareholders

The remuneration package for Executve Directors and the
Senior Managemerit

The remuneration package for Executive Directors and the Semor
Management comprises

* base salary,

= annual performance related borus,

* long-term share ncentives, and

* pension and other banefits

The performance conditions which apply to the performance retated
element of executive remuneration are the same for all Exacutive
Directors and the Senior Management and are set out in the following
sections of this Remuneration Report Details on how the expected
values for share based payments are calculated can be found n

note 28 to the financial statements on pages 118 to 123

Base salary

Base satanes for Executive Directors and the Senor Management are

a fixed annual sum payable in monthly nstalments in cash Base salanes
are reviewed annually, with assistance from NBS, having regard to
ndmdual responsitrities, skals and expenence, salary levels for similar
posions N other major house buddars and other comparable companies
comprising the FTSE 250 and a general group of 40 pan-secior FTSE 350
members with a market capitahisation and tumover of betwean 50% and
200% of that of the Company; the level of pay Increases awarded across
the Group, economic and market condiions, and the performance of the
Group Any changes to base salary take effect from 1 July annually

On 5 July 2012, Clive Fenton msigned as a Director of the Company and
all relevant Group companes He remans an employes of the Company
untl 31 December 2012, dunng which trme he will recene a base salary
of £25,000 per month and a benefits package compnsing the provision
of a motor vehicke and private medical nsurance He s also requined

to comply with certan non-compete covenants durng this penod

of employment and a further s months thereafter His exacutive
responsibiiies were prirmanly subsumed within the revised rermit of
Steven Boyes who was apponted as Chief Operating Officer ((COO")

for the Group, and to alesser extent by David Thomas

In recogribon of the additional responsibilities assumed by him, Steven
Boyes has been awarded an increase in his base salary of approdmatety
10 5% to £430,000 per annum Dawd Thomas' base salary bas also been
mcreased by approximately 5 4% to £430,000 partially also to reflact an
ncrease in his responsibilites In addition, Dawd’s pension contribubon
rate has been ncreased 1o 30% so that i comesponds with the rate

for the other Exacutve Directors The Committee has agresd {0 award
Mark Clare a salary ncrsase of 3 3% for the 2012/13 financial year, in
fina with the salary ncreases awarded to the Senior Managernent and
all employees across the Group  Executive Directors” salanes, with effect
from 1 July 2012, will therefore be as shown n Table 2




Table 2 - Exectutive Directors’ salanes

Per annum

1duly 2012 1 July 2011

£ £

Mark Clare 664,000 642,600
Dawvid Thomas 430,000 408,000
Steven Bayes 430,000 390,000
Clive Fenton 390,000 390,000

1 Chve Fenton resigned from his posihon as an Executve Drector on 5. 5uly 212 but remans an employee
of the Group untl 31 December 2072 &5 set out on page 56

Annual bonus

The Company’s annual bonus plan aims to motivate and reward
Executive Directors and the Senior Management for the achievement
of dermanding financial objectives and key strategic measures as set
by the Board The Committee ensures that performance measures
tor bonuses are stretching whilst having regard to the nature and nsk
profile of the Company and the interests of its shareholders

2012/13 financial year

For the financial year ending 30 June 2013, the Committee has
maintained the maximum bonus for Executive Directors and the Senior
Management at t50% of base salary but smpified the bonus structure,
50 that depending upon performance, this flexible element of
remuneration will pay an amount betwaen 0% and 150% of base salary
onalnear basis Any awards in excess of 100% of base salary will be
deferred into shares in the Company, held under the Co-Investment
Plan for a penod of three years with a contmued employment condition
No other performance conditions will apply to this award and the
Committee has agreed that no matching shares will be awarded against
these shares The payment for on-target performance wit again remamn
at 75% of base salary, however the ratio of profit before tax to overal
indebtedness has been adjusted from 120 15 to 100 35 1ts worth
noting that the on-target and maximum bonus potential for the
forthcoming year still remain below the levels in place prior to the
economic downturm, which were at 130% and 180% of salary
respectivety In addition, the Committee has retained an absolute
discretion in the making of bonus payments, and will continue to
consider, among other factors, the underlying financial performance

of the business refative to the sector i its decision making

The performance measures against which bonus payments for the
201213 financial year will be determined are as follows

Performance % of Salary
measure Maxamum
Prefit before tax 100
Overall indebiedness 35
Perscnal objectives 10
Employee engagement 5
Total 150*

Ay honus earned nexcess of 100% wil be determad nin shames

In addition to these performance measures, the Commuttee has retaned
the penalties introduced last year for under-performance in respect of
custormer service and safety, health and environment The customer
service penally has however been revised so that performance 1s no
longer measured aganst the achievement of the on-target percentage
for customer service but 1s dependent on the achievernent of five star

status for both the Recommend score and the Quality score under the
Home Builders Federation scheme Failure {o achieve this wall resuilt in
10% of any bonus eamed baing forfeited In terms of safety, health and
environment, 10% of the total bonus eamed will be forferted for failure
to achieve the on-larget performance measure As a result, if nertther
of these performance measures were 1o be achieved, in aggregate
20% of the annual bonus eamed would be forfeited

201112 financial year

For the financial year ended 30 June 2012, the Committee has approved

a bonus payment to Executive Directars {no part of which 1s pensionable)
of 148 75% of base salary (48 75% of which will be deferred nto shares)
based on performance aganst profit before tax, cash generation, employee
engagement and incimdual objectives and after taking account of
adustments for the vake of land sales The Committee believes that after
taking nto account the Group’s significant improvemnent in profit before tax
and excepticnal tems fwhich determined 80% of the total bonus for the
year) to £110 7m agamst the mimmum threshold established for the bonus
of £85m, the target level of £95m and maxarmum threshold of £115m, the
reducton of overall ndebtedness to £167 7m, and the contnbubion that

the Executve Directors and the Senior Management have indwidually

and collectively made to this strong operational and financel performance,
this level of bonus is pustified Clive Fenton will recemve no bonus i respect
of the 201112 financial year or the 201213 financal year

Share incentive schemes

Dunng the year the Commitee undertook a review of the share incentve
schemes currently IN operation and agreed that grant levels, parformance
ctena and vesting schedules reman approprate to the Company’s current
crcumstances and prospects  There have been no significant amendments
to the tarms and condrtions of any entitterment under any scheme Details

of all Executve Directors’ long-term performance plans and share options
are set out in Tables 7 and 8 respecively on pages B4 and 65

Each of the share schemes currently in operation 1s subject to two
performance conditions and a three-year performance penod Half

of the awards will vest on attainment of a performance target on relatve
TSR and the other half on the attanment of a target based on EPS

The TSR and EPS performance conditions are calculated as follows

TSR

The TSR element is calcutated as the percentage change i share pnce
plus dividends over a three-year performance penod aganst the
comparable group compnsing the FTSE 250 {excluding mvestment
trusts), with the opening share price averaged across the dealng days
in the three-month penod endng immediately before the start of the
performance penod and the closing pnce averaged over the dealing days
i the last three months of the performance penod Performance against
the TSR target 1s measured at the end of a thres-year performance penod

EPS

The EPS for the Company 1s calcutated by dwviding the eamings In

EPS over a three-year periormance penod by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in 1ssue at the end of the performance penod
{excluding those held by the Employee Benefit Trust) For all schemes
{except for the 2009/10 ESOS) performance against the EPS target

S tested after the end of a three-year performance penod Details m
respect of the testing of the 2000/10 ESOS can be found on page 60

of this Remwneration Report
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TSR performance 1s calculated by NBS and EPS performance s venfied
by the Committee

New awards to be granted duning the financial year ending

30 June 2013

Consistent with previous years, the Committee has decided to grant
LTPP awards to Executve Directors and the Senior Management dunng
the financial year ending 30 June 2013

The LTPP was approved by shareholders at the AGM held in November
2003 Awards under the LTPP are at the discretion of the Committes,
taking into account mdwidual performance and the overall performance
of the Group An employee s not eligible to recewe options under the
£80S and awards under the LTPP i the same financial year The

ten year imit on powers 1o grant any awards under the current LTPP
axpires on 12 November 2013 Consequently, a resolution segking the
approval of shareholders to extend the LTPP for a further ten years, to
12 Novermber 2023, will be proposed at the 2012 AGM The Committee
has also taken this opportunity 1o review and update the rules of the
LTPP n order to take into account legislative changes and to nclude
spectic provisions relating to the Committee's power of clawback
Further detals can be found in the Notice of the 2012 AGM

Any LTPP awards that are made n the 2012/13 financial year (the
‘201213 LTPP Award’} will not exceed 200% of base salary for sach of
the Executive Directors and 150% of base salary for all other participants
The 2012/13 LTPP Award will be subject to three-year TSR and EPS
conditions The vesting of half of the 2012/13 LTPP Award subject 1o

a TSR conddion will be dependent upon the Company’s performance
over three years commencing 1 July 2012, aganst the constituents

of the FTSE 250 fexcluding mvestment trusts)

Levels of vesting aganst the TSR condibion wll be as follows

Rank of Company's TSR against Level of vesting
comparator group of TSR elemant
Upper Quartile or above 100%
Median 25%
Below Median 0%
Between Upper Quartile Straight-line basis
and Median between 25% and 100%

The cther half of the award which i1s based on an EPS measure will
vast on the attanrment of the EPS target for the financial year ending

30 June 2015 Reflecting the significartt improvement n the Company’s
performance, current consensus targets for profit before tax for the
financial year 2014/15, the Board's assessment of the optimal scale

of the business and the need to ensure contnued focus on mManaging
debt, the levels of vesting against the EPS will be as follows

Level of vesting

EPS target - Financial year 2014415 of EPS element
26 pence per share or tigher 100%
22 pence per share 50%
18 pence per share 25%
Below 18 pence per share 0%
Between 22 pence and 26 pence Straight-lne basis
per share between 50% and 100%
Between 18 pence and 22 Straight-line basis
pence per share between 25% and 50%
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In addition to the above, vesting of the 2012/13 LTPP Award will be
subject to an overnding Committee discretion, in that the Commitiee
must be satisfied that the underlying financial performance of the Group
over the performance penod warrants the level of vesting as determned
by applying the above targets If the Committee 1s not of this view, then it
15 empowered to reduce the level of vesting

Co-Investment Plan

The Commitiee has decided to use the Co-Investment Pian (the ‘Plan’)
10 hold shares awarded in respect of any bonus eamed in excess

of 100% of base salary Any shares so awardled are subjecttoa
continued employment performance condiion over a three-year
performance penod The Committee has agreed that no matching
shares will be awarded against these shares

The Plan was approved by shareholders at the AGM held in Novernber
2005 for the purpose of computsenly defermng any annual bonus eamed
above target into shares held under this Plan Participants also have the
opportunity to voluntanly defer addiional amounts of annual bonus up 1
a maxarnum of 25% of base salary into the Plan Under the rules of the
Plan the Committee has a discretion which allows # to award matching
shares at a rate of one for one for compulsory deferral and at a maximum
of four for one for voluntary defemal {the *Matching Award’) Any Matching
Awards will be subject to performance conditions measured over a
penod of three years

For the financal years enced 30 June 2010 and 2011 no bonus was
eamed In axceass of 100% of base salary by Executive Birectors and
Serwor Managerment, and therefore no shares were deferred into the
Plan For the financiat year ended 30 June 2012 Executive Directors
(other than Chve Fenton who will not recene any bonus for the 2011/12
financial year) eamed, m aggregate, a bonus of £702,293 n excess of
100% of base salary, which will be deferred into shares based on the
share pnce as calculated by averaging the closing middle-market
quotations, as derved from the Daily Official List of the London Stock
Exchange, for the first five dealing days following the date of the
announcernent of the Group’s annual results for the financial year ended
30 June 2012 The actual awards wil be set out in next year's report
Any bonus eamed in excess of 100% of base salary by the Semior
Management for the 2011/12 financial year will also be deferred into
the Plan on the same basis




Executive share awards granted dunng the year

Long-Term Performance Plan

Dunng the year the Company granted LTPF awards to the Executive
Directors {the *2011/12 LTPP?} The 2011/12 LTPP was based on an
allocation of ordinary shares equivalent in vatue to a maximum of 150%
of base salary and 1s subject to three-year TSR and EPS performance
conditons There 1s no re-testing of performance conditions

Performance conditicns

Half of the 2011412 LTPP will vest on the attanment of a performance
target based on TSR over a three-year performance penod commencing
1 July 2011

The levels of vesting against the TSR targets are as follows

Rank of Company's TSR against Level of vesting

comparator group of TSR element
Upper Quartile and above 100%
Median 25%
Below Median 0%
Between Upper Quartie Straght-line basis
and Median between 25% and 100%

The other half of the 2011/12 LTPP will vest on the attanment of EPS
targets for the financial year ending 30 June 2014 The Committee
beleved given the macroeconomic uncertanties surrounding the
Group's future performance &t that time, that a wide target range should
be set for the EPS element m order to ensure full engagement from
management by having an achievable minimum vesting levef whilst
requinng outstanding performance to achieve maxmum level of vesting
Accordingly, the EPS targsts and corresponding levels of vesting are

as follows

Level of vesting

EPS target - Financial year 2013/14 of EPS element
30 pence per share or higher 100%
12 5 pence per sharg 25%
Below 12 5 pence per share 0%

Between 12 5 pence
and 30 pence per share

Straight-ne basis
between 25% and 100%

in addition to the above performance targets, the 2011/12 LTPP 1s subject
to an ovemding Committee discretion, i that the Committee smust be
satisfiad that the undertying financial performance of the Group over the
performance penod warrants the level of vesting as determined by
applying the above targets If the Committes is not of this view, 4 has

the authonty to reduce the level of vesting as # deems appropnate

Savings Related Share Option Scheme
The Savings Related Share Option Scheme {the *SRSOS’) was
approved by shareholders at the AGM held n November 2008

The SRSOS was mplemented n order to promote share ownership
amongst all employees of the Group, inking employee benefit to the
performance of the Group and to aid retention of staff All employees and
Executive Directors who work more than 26 hours per week, and have
five or mofe years of contnuous service with the Company {or any
subsiciary In the Group nominated to jom n the SRS0S} ending on the
date of grant are eligible to participate in the scheme The Board has
discretion to reduce the penod of qualifying service and o invite other

employees of the Group to partcipate Under the SRSOS, employees
can save up to £250 per month for three or five years and receive options
to purchase the Company’s shares at a discount of up to 20% on the
market value In March 2012, 1,623 employees (39 5% of those eligible)
applied to partcpate in the fourth grant of options under the SRSOS at
an exeroise pnce of 125 pence per share

Qutstanding Executive share awards

Long-Term Performance Plan

in December 2010 the Company made awards under the LTPP
{the 2010711 LTPP') These awards were based on an allocation of
ordinary shares equivalent in value to a maximum of 150% of base
salary and are subject to three-year TSR and EPS perforrmance
conditions There 18 no re-testing of performance conditions

Performance conditions

Half of the 2010/11 LTPP will vest on the attanment of a performance
target based on TSR over a three-year performance penod commencing
1 July 2010

The levels of vesting against the TSR targets are as follows

Rank of Company’s TSR agamnst Level of vesting

comparator group of TSR element
Upper Quartile and above 100%
Median 25%
Below Median 0%
Between Upper Quartile Straght-ine basis
and Median between 25% and 100%

The cther half of the 2010741 LTPP will vest on the attanment of EPS
targets for the financial year ending 30 June 2013 The Committes believed
given the macroeconommic uncertanties surrounding the Group's future
performance at that tme that a wide target range should be set for the
EPS elerment in order to ensure full engagement from management by
having an achievable minmurm vesting fevel whilst requinng outstanding
performance to achieve maximum level of vesting Accordingly, the EPS
targets and comesponding lavels of vesting are as follows

Leve! of vesting

EPS target - Financial year 2012/13 of EPS et t
25 pence per share or higher 100%
10 pence per share 25%
Less than 10 pence per share 0%
Between 10 pence and Straight-ine basts
25 pence per share between 25% and 100%

In addition to the above performance targets, the 2010/11 LTPP 1s subject
10 an overnding Committee discretron, i that the Committee must be
satisfied that the underying financial performance of the Group over the
performance penod warrants the level of vesting as determined by
applying the above targets If the Committee 15 not of this view, it has

the authonty to reduce the level of vesting as it deems appropriate

Executive Share Option Plan

The award granted under the Executive Share Option Plan {ihe 'ESOP')
n 2003 at an aexercise pnoe of 357 37 pence per share vested N 2006,
hewenver, there are a number of participants, includng Steven Boyes,
who are stil to exercise the options grarted to them.
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The ESOP was adopted by the Cormpany in November 1997 Any
optons granted under the ESOP are required to be held for a minmum
of three years from the data of grant befcre they can be exercised and
will lapse if not exercised within ten years of the grant date The level

of vesting of these options was subject to the achievement of objectve
performance conditions set by the Commettee

Under the rules of the ESOP no further optons can be granted under
this plan Options which have been grarted to Executive Directors
In grevious years remain unchanged and are set cut on page 65

Vesting of the 2009/10 ESOS

The ESOS was approved by shareholders at the AGM held in Novernber
2008 It was the view of the Commuttee that the focus on share pnce
growth ansing from the use of market vakue options combmned with
performancea conditons would ensure strong alignment with the
nterests and expectations of sharehoiders at the tme Options awarded
under the ESOS must nommally be held for a minimum of three years
from the date of grant before they can be exercised and lapse if not
exercised within ten years of grant The maximum number of shares
over which an emplioyee may be granted options m any financiat year
under the ESOS will be Imited so that the aggregate cost of exercise
does not exceed 200% of their annual base salary The exercise

of options granted under the ESOS 1s subject to the achieverment

of abjecive performance conditions set by the Committee

As the Committee has decided to grant awards under the LTPP for the
2012413 financial year it will not be making any grants under the E5035
as an employee Is not elgible to receve options under the ESOS and
awards under the LTPP in the same financial year

The last grant made under the ESOS was the 2009/10 ESOS, which s
subject to TSR and EPS performance condiions The Committes chose
these targets as the most appropnate measure of financial performance
for a house builder at the tme of the grant as they are a fundamertal
measure of the Group’s undertying performances and are directly inked
to the generation of retums to shareholders

Performance conditions

Half of the 2009/10 ESOS will vest on the attainment of a performance
target based on relative TSR, and the other half on the attanment of

a target based on EPS growth

Levals of vesting aganst the TSR targets were as follows

Rank of Company's TSR agalnst Lovel of vesting
comparator group of TSA elemeant
Upper Quartile or above 100%
Medan 25%
Below Median 0%
Between Upper Quartie Straght-lne basis
and Median between 25% and 100%

The TSR elernent was tasted after 30 Jung 2012 and as the resutt
was below median, none of the TSR element of the award will vest

The EPS element of the award has three separate annual components

with the Commitiee setting targets annually for the following financial
year Performance aganst each annual EPS target is iested at the end
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of each of the financial years durng the performance penod and each
year's EPS target will determing the vestng level of ong sixth of the total
award It should be noted that the approach of using three one-year
targets was adopted due to the uncartan economic conditons
prevaling in 2008 when optons under the ESOS were first granted
The Committee has since reverted back to the policy of setting
three-year targets

The EPS targets are before exceptional tems and the impact of the
reduction In the corporation tax rate from 26% to 24% The level of
vasting for the financial years ended 30 June 2010, 2011 and 2012

wera as follows
201112 201041 200710
Amount of EPS Element
Available for Vesting
{one third of 50%} 16 67% 16 67% 16 67%
Minimum Target 58pence 28pence -44pence
On Target 73pence 43pence -2Bpence
Masarnurn Target 89pence 73pence 18pence ‘
Achievemnent Against Target 100 0% 300% 57 6% j
Actual Level of Vesting 16 7% £ 5% 6%

In 2010 the Company disciesed that 1017% of the award had vesledd kx tha 2000/10 firancal year Due
10 & change n the Group 3 tax change kr that yesr witich was ncluded n the 2010 publishad financal
statsrments the Sompany’s EPS was margmuadly rsducsd Atconingly tha level of weshng was reduced to 8 6%

Subject to the Committee's ovemding discretion to take into account,
among other factors, performance relative o the seclor and the
undertying financial performance of the business, incluiding free cash
fiow, when deciding if the level of vesting s justified, a curnulative total
ot 32 8% of the award 1s likely to vest on 10 December 2012 (being
three years from the date of grant] Executve Directors and the Servor
Management will ther: have until 10 December 2019 to exercise ther
options, otherwise they will lapse

Executive share awards lapsed during the year

Exacutve Share Option Scheme

Tha options granted under the 2008/09 ESOS were subject o a
Retum on Capital Employed (‘ROCE') financial performance measure,
calculated as operating profit (measured across the whole financial
year to 30 June 2011} dnded by sharehoider funds plus net debt iess
goodwill and intangible assets (beng the average of the 12 month-end
figures dunng the same year) Thera s no opportunity to retest any
performance critena

The options were tested dunng the 2011/12 financial year and, as the
ROCE performance target had not been achieved, the options lapsed

Recruitment Award to Group Finance Director

The recnustment award made to Oawd Thomas in recognition of his loss
of benefit under his previous employer’s iong-term ncentive and share
option plans, which was subject to the same performance targets as
the options granted under the 2008/09 ESOS and was on substantally
the same terms and conditions as those options, was also tested and
lapsed after 30 June 2011

Dilution

On matunty or vestng of any of its share incentve schemes the Compary
seeks to satsfy the shares through a new issue of shares, market
purchases, or the Employes Berfit Trust (the ‘EBT') As at 30 June 2012




the Company proposes to satisfy outstanding eptions under the 2008/10
ESOS, the SRSOS and the ESOP through a new ssue of shares All other
share schemes, ncluding the LTPF, are to be satsfied through shares
currently heid or to be purchased n the market by the EBT

The Company regularty monitors the number of shares issued under
its schemes and the ympact on diuton imits The Comparny 15 satisfied
that as at 30 June 2012 its usage of shares 1s comphant with the relevant
dilubion lrruts set by the ABIin respect of all share plans (10% of the
Company’s 1ssued share captal n any rolling ten-year penod) and
ciscretionary share plans (5% of the Company's issued share capital

In ary rolkng ten-year penod) in the event that the outstanding options
under each of the schemes to be satisfied through a new issue of
shares were {6 vest and had been exercised on 30 June 2012, the
resulting 1Issue of new shares would represent 1 34% of the Company's
15sued share capital as at that date

Change of Control

The rules of each share scheme operated by the Company contain
prowisions relating 10 a change of control in the event that a change

of control does occur any unvested options/awards will become vested
on the date of the relevant event However, the number of options/
awards that vest will be pro-rated depending on the number of weeks
completed within the relevant performance penod and the level of
performance conditions achieved dunng that peried Ophions/awards
which have already vested as at the date of the relevant event may

stfl be exercised within prescnbed timescalas set out in the rutes

Total Shareholder Return performance graph

Figure 1, prepared n accordance with the Regulations, shows the TSR
performance over the last five years agamst the FTSE 250 [exciuding
investment trusts) and aganst an index of isted house bulders The
Board has chosen these comparative indices as the Group and its
major competitors are constifuants of one or both of these ndices

The TSR has been calcuiated using a far method n accordance

with the Regulations

Figure 1

Total shareholder return

Value £
120 1
100 P
80 Moo .
—r——

60 N\ 2
40 AN e
20 N\ 3
0 N—"

300607 300608 300600 200610 300615 300612

1 FTSE 250 Index {excludng invastment Trusts)
2 index of Rsted house bullders
3 Baratt Developments

Thes graph shows the value by 30 June 2012 of £100 nvested in Barratt
Developments PLC on 30 June 2007 comparad with the value of £100
nwvested in the FTSE 250 (excluding mwestment trusts) As a supplementary
sowrce of nformation we also show performance aganst an ndex of
currenily bsted house buiders (excluding Barratt Devetopments PLC)

The other ponts plotted are the values at intervening financial year ends

Pensicn benefits

The Company’s pension policy for Executve Directors 1s that they can
choose to pariapats n the Company’s money purchasa pension plan
or recenve a cash supplement that does not count for moentve purposes
Only the base salary element of a Director’s remuneration s pensionable
The defined benefit section of the Bamatt Group Pension and Life
Assurance Scheme (the 'Scheme’} was closed to new entrants in 2001
and 1t ceased to offer future accrual of defined benefits for cumrent
members with effect from 30 June 20098 Mark Clare s pax a cash
supplement equal to 30% of his base salary per annum Dawd Thomas
was, for the 2011412 financial year, entitled to a cash supplement equal
10 25% of his base salary, 18 5% of which he receved n cash and the
remaining 6 25% was pad into the defined contnbution secton of the
Scheme For 2012/13 financial year David Thomas’ cash supplement
has been increased to 30% of base salary s0 that it cormasponds with
the rate given to the other Exacutive Direclors

Up until 30 June 2009, when the defined benefit section of the Schems
ceased to offer future accrual of defined benefits for curment amployees,
Steven Boyes and Clive Fenton were members of the defined benefit
section of the Scheme This entitiement was based on a 1/60 accrual
rate and a normal retrement age of 85 The entitlernent of Clive Fenton
was restncted by the eamings cap imposed undar the Finance Act
1988 for service up to 5 Apnl 2006 and thereafter was calculated by
reference to his base salary Since 1 July 2009, Steven Boyes and
Clive Fenton have heen entitled to receive a cash supplement equal

to 30% of thair raspectve base salanes per annum Steven Boyes
racenves the full 30% as a cash supplement and, until his resignation
from the Board on 5 July 2012, Ciive Fenton recened 18 68% as a
cash supplement and the remaning 11 32% was paid into the defined
contnbution section of the Scheme

The last full actuanal valuation of the Scheme as at 30 November 2010
showed a defictt of £66 5m calculated on the basis of the Scheme's
technical prowisions  The Company and the Trustees of the Scheme have
agreed a plan to pay off the shortfall which requires the Comparny 1o
continue to make deficit reduction payments of £13 3m per annum unt
31 January 2017 The valuation for the financial staternents was updated
to 30 June 2012 by a qualfied ndependsnt actuary and a deficit of

£21 4m (2011 £11 8m) 15 inciuded n the Group balance sheet as shown
n note 26 of the financia statements On 30 June 2009, the Company
exercised its consent under the rules of the Scheme and agreed to cease
offerng future accrual of defined henefits for its curment employees
Members of the Scheme became eligible to jom the defined contnbution
money purchase section of the Scheme with effect from 1 July 2009

The Compary will continue to pay the deficit reduction contnbutions

at a fevef not lower than the £13 3m agreed m December 2008 and wil
discuss the funding requirements of the Scheme with the Trustees if any
matenal change i the Group's financial circumstances 15 anticipated

Members of the Scheme are also eligible for an insured ump sum

of up to five times pensionable salary on death in service Current
empioyees who were members of the defined benefit section of the
Scheme at closure afso retan their dependants’ pension entitiements

No excess retirement benefits have been pad 1o or are recevable by
current and/or past directors i respect of their qualifying services durng
the financiat year and there are no amangements m place that guarartee
pensions with limited or no abatement on severance or earty retrement
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Service contracts

In accordance with the Company's policy, it engages all Executve
Birectors on the bass of one-year roling contracts which can be
terminated by 12 months’ notice gven by etther the Company or by the
Executve at any tme  There are no specdic provisions for compensabon
on early termination (except for payment n leu of holidays accrued but
untaken) or ioss of office due to a takeover bid The Commutiee will apply
mitigation agamst any contractual obiigatons as it deems far and
reasonable and wilt seek legal advice on the Company's liabiity to pay
compensation The Committee also seeks to reduce the level of any
compensation payable and takes into account, amongst other factors,
the ndmdual’s and the Group's performancs, the Director’s obligation

to mitigate tus/her own less, and the Director's length of service when
calcutating termination payments  The contracts entdle Executive
Directors to the prowision of a company car, annual medical screening,
private medical insurance, some telephone costs and coninbutions to
the cost of obtaning independent tax advice Details of the Executve
Cirectors® service contracts are nciuded in Table 3 and theirr emoluments
are shown in Table 5 on page 63 of this Remuneration Report

Table 3 - Executive Directors’ service contracts

Executive Service Effective Notice
Director contract date date period
Mark Clare 27 June 2006 2 QOctober 2006 12 months
Dawvid Thomas 5 May 2009 21 July 2009 12 menths
Steven Boyes 25 June 2001 1 July 2001 12 menths
Chve Fenton® 1 July 2003 1 July 2003 12 months

Clva Fanton resgred as a Cractor of the Company on 5 July 2012 as sst out onpage 56 of this
Remuneraton Report

Non-Executive directorships

Subyect to Board approval, Executive Directors are permutted to accept
one Non-Executve dirsctorship outside the Company and retan any
foos recenved from such a posiion  Executive Directors are not allowed
10 take on the Chaimanship of any FTSE 100 company Board approval
will not be grven for any Non-Executive posttion where such appomntment
would lead to a matenal conflict of nterest or would have an effect on
the Director’s ability to perform tus/her dutes to the Company Dunng
the year Mark Clare was a tnustee and Director of the BRE Trust and
UKGBC uimited Mark Clare does not receive any fees for either of these
positons The time commitrent expected, in aggregate, for these
positions s appraoximately 25 hours per annum Neither David Thomas
nor Steven Boyes held any Non-Executive directorships with other
companies dunng the year

Non-Executive Directors' remuneration

The mmuneration of the Non-Executve Directors 15 set by the Board

on the recommendation of a Committee of Executve Directors having
regard i the time commitment and responsibiities associated with

the role The remuneration of the Chairman 5 set by the Board on the
recommendaton of the Committes agan having regard to the tme
commutrnent and responsibilites of the role The rermuneration of the
Chamman and the Non-Exacutive Directors is reviewed annually taking

nto accourt the fees pad by other cornpanies in the housa buikding sector

The base annual fee pad to Non-Executnve Directors dunng the financial

year ended 30 June 2012 was £40,000 The Chawrmen of the Audit and
Remuneration Commitiees receved an additional annual fee of £10,000
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and the Servor Independent Director recenved an adcstional annual

fea of £5,000 in May 2012 the Board reviewed the roles of the
Non-Executve Directors and decided that with effect from 1 July 2012

all Non-Executwve Directors would sit on each of its commitiees

In recogrbon of the additonal bme commitments this would entail

and taking into consideration the results of a benchmarking exercise
undertaken by NBS on Non-Executve Directors’ fees, it was agreed

to Increase the Non-Executive Directors' base annuat fee to £48,000
with effect from the same date it should be noted that this s the only
fee ncrease for Non-Executve Directors in the last four years and that
the total fees, after the increase, are still within the fee imits included n
the Articles of Association with the approval of shareholders at the 2008
annual general meetng The Non-Executve Directors do not participate
n any performance related schemes such as the annual bonus or any
ncentive schemes, nor do they receve any pension or private medical
nsurance benefits

The Chairman and each of the Non-Executive Directors are appointed
under terms set out i a letter of appontment They do not have service
contracts and ther apporntments can be termmated (ty the Board)
without compensation for loss of office and by gnvng the appropriate
length of notice as prescnbed n ther respective letters of appaintment
The notice penod applicable for the Chairman, Bob Lawson, 1s three
months and for each of the other Non-Executive Directors the notice

period 1s ong month Under govemance policies approved by the Board,

Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a three-year term and usualy
serve a second three-year term subject to performance review and
rg-glection by shareholders Beyond this a further term of up to three
years may be served subject to ngorous review by the Charrman and
the Nommation Comimittes and re-election by shareholders Details of
Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appomntment can be found in Table 4

Table 4 - Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment

Date first Date last
Non-Executive Date last re-elected appointed  re-appointed
Director at AGM to the Board lo the Board
Bob Lawson 16 Novernbar 2011 1 Juna 2008 1 June 204
Bob Davies 16 November 2011 5 May 2004 1 July 2011
Tessa Bamford 16 November 2011 1 July 2009 1 July 2012
Rod
MacEachrane 16 Novernber 2011 1 May 2006 1 July 2011
Mark Rolfe 16 Novernber 2011 1 May 2008 1 May 2011
Richard Akers N/A 2 Apnl 2012 N/A




The following tables and accompanying notes constihite the auditable part of the Remuneration Report as defined in the Regulations

Table 5 - Directors’ emoluments

2012 201

Gain on Gam on

Employer s exercise of exercise of

Pension pension  Performance Benefits 2012 201 share share

Salaryfiee glowance  contnbution related n kind Total Total options options

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Mark Clare 643 193 - 258 38 1,830 1,221 13 -
David Thomas 408 77 25 607 15 1,132 748 -~ -
Steven Boyes 390 117 - 580 26 1,113 744 13 -
Clrve FantonAan 390 73 44 - 27 534 747 11 -
Bob Lawson 270 - - - - 270 270 - -
Bob Daviesh 85 - - - - 55 55 - -
Tessa Bamfordas 40 - - - - 40 40 - -
Rod MacEachrane 40 - - - - 40 40 - -
Mark Rolfen 50 - - - - 50 50 - -
Richard Akers™ 10 - - - — 10 - - =
2012 Total 2,296 460 69 2,143 106 5,074 - 37 -
2011 Total 2,298 487 42 1,007 93 - 3,827 - -

Richare Akers joined the Board as a Non Executve Drector on 2 Aprl 2012
Thus figure ncludes £12 000 reiation 10 Willam Shannon who resgnad as a Drector of the Compary on 21 October 2010

A Thesa igures ncluce ks m respect of Charmanship of Board Commttees and n the case of Bob Davies the fee for his role as Senor independent Direclor

A2 Foliowng Tessa Bamford s appontment a3 & consultant wiih Spencer Shuar' on 18 Aprk 2011 her feas ane paxd drectly ona quarerlybass to Spencer Stuert. For the year 1 July 2011 fo 30 June 2012 nciuswve

the Company pawd the tull £42,000 to Spencer Stuart for her sarvaces 1o the Board

Anh Civa Ferton ressgned Bs a Dracton on 5 July 2012 Detay of the arangements n rispect of $ueh redgraton ars set out 00 page 56 of the Remuneration Report

The Executive Directors recenve taxable benefits n kind covenng the prowision of a motor vehicle, private medical insurance, some telephone

costs and payment towards the cost of obtaining independent tax advice

There was no compensation ior 10ss of office pard or any taxable expenses paid to any former or current Director of the Company dunng

the financial year There were aiso no significant awards made to past directors dunng the reporting year
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Directors’ interests in shares

The interests of the Directors serving durng the financial year and their connected persoens in the ordinary share capital of the Company at the
beginning and end of the year are shown below No notrfication has been recened of any change in the interests below dunng the penod 30 June
2012 to 11 September 2012 inclusive, with the exception of the shares to be deferred in respect of the bonus samed N excess of 100% of base
salary by Executive Directors for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 as descnbed on page 57 of the Remuneration Report and the lapsing

of outstanding options held by Clive Fenten upon his resignation as a Director on 5 July 2012

Table 6 - Directors’ interasts in shares

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

Number Number

of sharg of share

Fully options Fully options

pad and awards pard and awards™

Mark Clare 1,241,601 3,163,862 1,225179 3619533
David Thomas 292,781 2,012,786 267,781 2,296,244
Steven Boyes 394,246 2,040,023 377,824 2,221,546
Clve Fenton 07,446 1,869,704*** 291,024 2,067,649
Bob Lawson 517,023 - 517,023 -
Bob Davies 37,000 - 37,000 =
Rod MacEachrane 27,600 - 27,600 -
Tessa Bamford 31,500 - 31,600 -
Mark Rolfe 69,000 - 69,000 -
Richard Akers* 10,000 - - -

Richard Akers joined tha Board as a Non Execulve Director on 2 Agnl 2012

These figures iInclude the options granted under the 2008/08 ESOS and the recrutment award made i 2009 1o the Greup Fnance Director as appleable which were tested after the financial year ended 30 June 2011

and have lapsed. In aggregata the figure a3 at 30 June 2011 n Table B inciudes 4,397 033 awards Lnder the 2008/09 ESCS which have now kapead
™ All outstandng options and awards held by Clve Fenton psed on § July 2012 upon s resgabion as & Drectar

Table 7 - Long-Term Incentive Schemes

Details of movements in the Directors’ interests in executive long-term mcentive schemes are as follows

Market Market
At At Date price on prce at Gan

Date of 30/06/11 Granted Vested tapsed 30/06/12 from which award vesting recemvabie

award No No No No No exercisable” pence pence £
Mark Clare
LTPP 14102010 963,900 - - - 963,900 14102013 10000 - -
LTPP 2010 2011 - 1,154,786 — - 1,154,786 20102014 8347 - —
Total 963,900 1,154,786 - - 2,118,686
Dawvid Themas
LTPP 14 10 2010 612,000 - - - 612,000 14102013 106G 00 - -
LTPP 2010 2011 - 733,198 - - 733,198 20102014 83 47 - -
Total 612,000 733,198 - - 1,345,198
Steven Boyes
LTPP 1430 2010 585,000 - - - 585,000 14102013 10000 - -
LTPP 2010 2011 - 700,851 - - 700,851 20102014 8347 - -
Total 585,000 700,851 — - 1,285,851
Clive Fenton
LTPP 1410 2010 585,000 - - - 585000 14102013 10000 - -
LTPP 2010 2011 - 700,851 — - 700,851 20102014 83 47 - -
Total 585,000 700,851 - - 1,285,851

The earfiest date on whch 2n award may vest, n normal creumstances having heflied alf quakfyng condiions. aker which ardnary shares era transfarrad automatcally as soon as possisia

Al outstanding opbons and awards held by Clve Fenton lapsed ¢n 5 July 2012 upon s resignation 2s a Drecior
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Table B - Directors’ share options
Detatls of movements in the Directors’ mierests in executive share ophions are as folows

Market pnce Date
Al At Exercise  (pence) on from
Data of 300611 Granted Exarcsed Lapsed 30/0612 pnce  relevant date whnch Latest
grant No No No No No pence ol exercise  exorcisable axpiry

Mark Clare
ESOS 1812 2008 74,988 - - 74,998 - 4000 1812 2011 1712 2018
ESOS 18122008 1,526,237 - - 1,526,237 - 3640 18122011 1712 2018
SR80S 03 02 2009 16,422 - 16,422 - - 5708 13900 0104 2012 3009 2012
ESQS 10122009 1,037.976 - - - 1,037,976 12139 10122012 09122019
SRSOS 28032012 - 7,200 - - 7,200 125 00 01082015 30112015
Total 2,655,633 7,200 16,422 1,601,235 1,045176
Dawvid Thomas
ESQS 25092009 1,016,666 - - 1,016,656 - 3606 17122011 16122018
ESOS 1012 2009 25,458 - - - 25,458 11784 10122012 0912 2019
ESOS 1012 2009 634,319 - - - 634,319 12139 10122012 0912 2019
SRSCS 2803 2010 7811 - - - 7,811 11618 01062013 3011 2013
Total 1,684,244 - - 1,016,656 667,588
Steven Boyes
ESOS 1812 2008 74,998 - - 74,998 - 4000 1812 2011 1712 2018
ESOS 1812 2008 814,576 = - 814 576 = 36 40 18122011 17122018
ESQOP* 10 10 2003 153,897 - - - 153,897 35737 10102006 09102013
SR3OS 03 02 2009 16,422 - 16,422 - - 5708 13370 0104 2012 3009 2012
ESCS 1012 2009 576,653 - - - 576,653 12139 10122012 0812 2019
SRSOS 2803 2012 = 7,200 - - 7,200 125 00 01062015 3011 2015
Totat 1,636,546 7,200 16,422 889,574 737,750
Ciive Fenton
ESQOS 1812 2008 74,998 - - 74,998 - 4000 1812 2011 17122018
ESQOS 18 12 2008 814,576 - - 814,576 - 36 40 1812 201t 17122018
SRSOS 03 02 2009 16,422 - 16,422 - = 5708 12400 0104 2012 3009 2012
ESOS 1012 2008 576,653 - - - 576,653 12139 10122012 09122019
SR308 2803 2012 - 7.200 - - 7,200 12500 01062015 30112015
Total 1,482,649 7,200 16,422 889,574 583,853

The performance condition set by the Committee for the ESOF award granted n 2003 that the growth n EFS of the Gompany over a period of three consecuive fnancl years should excaed the growih n (he RPY by at sast 9%
waa mat n 2008 but the opton has not et been exercised
AN outstand ng options and awards helc by Cive Fenton zpsed on 5 July 2012 upon bis resigraton as a Drecter

The ESOS 15 divided into two sub-schemes, one of which s approved under the Income Tax (Eamings and Pensions) Act 2003 and the other of which
1snot The exercise pnce 1s caiculated differently for each sub-scheme in accordance with the ules of the ESOS  The performance conditions for the
ESOS grants are descnbed on page 60

The performance conditions of the 2008/09 ESOS awards together with the performance condition of the recrutment awand to the Group Finance
Director made n 2009 were tested after the year end and none of the conditions had been achieved Accordingly, the 2008009 ESOS awards and
the recruitment award to the Group Finance Director lapsed

The mid-market share pnce of the Compary on 30 June 2012 was 139 1 pence The mid-markst high and tow share prices of the Company dunng

the year were 151 5 pence and 67 5 pence respectively
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Table 9 - Directors’ pension benefits
Steven Boyes and Clive Fenton were mambers of the Scheme during the year ended 30 June 2012 Details of therr accrued benefits are as follows.

Transfer value of

the increase in

accrued pension

Increase In over the year to
acerued pension 30 June 2012 increase [n

over the year to Total pension  (netof inflation) accrued pension  Transfer value of  Transfer value of
30 Jure 2012 accrued at the less Directors'  owvertheyearto accrued pension accrued pensionat  Changen iransfer

{net of inflation} end of the year contributions 30June 2012 at 30 June 2012 30 June 2011 value over the year

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Steven Boves {192) 299,595 (4,431) 15,706 6,252,591 4,477,540 1,775,051
Clve Fenton (31) 45,765 {664} 2,397 880,815 642,697 238118

Notes

With affact from 30 June 2009, the Scheme ceased to offer future accrual of defined benefit pensions for current employees and the Ink between
accrued benefits and fulure salary Increases was removed As the Scheme is closed, no Directors have made any contrnibutions to the Scheme
dunng the year to 30 June 2012

The total pension accrued at the end of the year 1s the amount that sach Director had accrued when the Scheme ceasad to offer future accrual
at 30 June 2009 plus revaluation In accordance with the Scheme nules

The infiation figure of 5 6% 1s based on the change in RPI from September 2010 to September 2011, consistent with previous years

All transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accerdance with the Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Value)
{Armendment) Regulations 2008 The transfer values of the accrued pension represent the value of assets that the pension scherme would need
to transfer to another pension provider on transfemng the Scheme's kabilty n respect of the Directors' pension benefits They do not represent
sums payahle to ndmdual Directors and, therefore, cannot be added meaningfully to annual rermuneration

The increase in the transfer value Includes the effect of fuctuations I the transfer value due to faciors beyond the controt of the Company and
1ts Oirectors, such as market movements and the Trustees’ decsion to update the assumptions used

The figures do not take account of any retained benefits the members may have

Excapt as disclosed in respect of Clive Fenton and David Thomas on pages 61 and 83 none of the Directors have any nghts under the Company’s
money purchase pension scheme

This Remuneration R s approved by the Board on 11 Septernber 2012 and signed on its behalf by

66 « BARRATT OEVELOPMENTS PLC Annval Report and Accounts 2012




OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Actrvittes of the Group

The Company Is the holdng company of the Group The Group's
prncipal actvities compnse acquinng and developng land, plannng,
desigring and constructing residential property developments and
seling the homes 1t bullds These core actvities are supported by the
Group's commercial development, urban regeneration, procurerment,
design and strategic land capabilities

Results and dividends

The profit from continuing actwtias for the year ended 30 June 2012
was P67 4m (2011 loss of £13 8m)

No intanm dividend was paid dunng the financial year (2011 nif)
The Directors do not recommend a final dwvidend for the year
ended 30 June 2012 (2011 nil)

Enhanced Business Review

The Charman's Statement, Group Chief Executive’s Review, Business
Review and Group Fnance Director's Review on pagss € to 39 together
compnse the Group's Enhanced Business Review

Annugl General Meeting

The 2012 AGM will be held at the Royal College of Physicians,

11 St Andrews Place, Regent's Park, London NW1 4LE on Wednesday
14 Novemnber 2012 at 2 30 p m The Notice convening the 2012 AGM
15 set out in a separate letter to shareholders

Directors and their interests

Each of the Directors isted on pages 40 and 41 held office throughout
the financial year and as at 30 June 2012, apart from Richard Akers
who joned the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 2 Aprit 2012

Cive Fenton resigned as a Director with immediate effect on 5 July
2012 As announced on 25 July 2012, Bob Davies will step down from
fus positon as a Non-Executive Director of the Company at the 2012 AGM

The beneficial nterests of the Directors and connected persons in the
ordinary share capital of the Company together with tha nterests of the
Exacutive Directors in share options and awards of shares as at 30 June
2012 and as at the date of ths report are disciosed in the Remuneration
Report on pages 53 to 66

At no time dunng or at the end of the yaar did asty Director have
a matenal interest 1N a contract of significance in relation to the
busness of the Group

Appomtment and replacement of Directors

In accordance with the Articles there shall be no less than two and

no more than 15 Directors apponted to the Board at any one time
Directors may be appounted by the Company by ordinary resolution

or by the Board The Board may from time to time appotnt one or

more Directors to hold employment or executive office for such penod
{subyect to the Compantes Act 2006 the *Act’)) and on such terms as
they may determme and may revoka or terminate any such appointment
Directors are not subject to a maxmum age hmit

In addition to the power under the Act for shareholders io remove any
Director by ordmary msolubon upon the gmng of special notice, under
the Articles the Company may by special resolubon rermove ary Director
before the expiration of his/her term of office The office of Director shall

be vacated if (i} he/she resigns or offers to resign and the Board
resolves to aceept such offer; {i) his/her resignation 1s requested by

all of the other Directors and all of the other Directors are not less than
three In number, (i) he/she 1s or has been suffenng from mental or
physical ill health, {v) he/she 1s absent without permission of the Board
from meetings of the Board for six consecutive months and the Board
resolves that his/her office 1S vacated, {v) he/she becomes bankrupt or
compounds with hisher creditors generally (v he/she s prohubited by
taw from beng a Director; {vii) hesshe caases to be a Dwector by virtue
of the Act, or (vii) hesshe 1s removed from office pursuant to the Articles

Details relating to the retirement and re-etection of Directors at each
AGM can be found on page 45

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Arlicles, the Act and any directions given by special
resolutron, the business of the Company 15 ultimately managed by
the Board who may exercise all the powers of the Company, whether
relating 1o the management of the business of the Company or
otherwise In particular, the Board may exercise all the powers of

the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge any of

its undertakings, property, assets and uncalled capital and to 1ssue
debantures and other secuntigs and to give sscunty for any debt,
liability or obhgation of the Company to any third party

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions

As at the date of thus eport, there are qualifying third party mdemnity
provisions governad by the Act in place under which the Company has
agreed o Indemnify the Directors, former Directors and the Compary
Secretary of the Company, together with those who have held or hold
these positions as officers of other Group companies or of associate
or affiliated companies and mambaers of the Executive Committee,

1o the extent permitted by law and the Articles against all iability ansing
In raspect of any act or omission in their duties 1n addibion the Comparty
mamntans directors’ and officers’ iability msurance for each Dwector

of the Group and its associated companies

Ne Diractor of the Company or of any assoctated cornpany shall be
accountabls to the Company or the members for any benefit prowded
pursuant to the Articles and receipt of any such benefit shall not disqualfy
any person from beng or becoming a Director of the Company

Related party transactions

The Board and cartan members of seror management are related
parties within the definiion of IAS 24 (Revised) ‘Related Party
Disclosures’ and Chaptar 11 of the UK Listing Rules There i1s no
difference between transactions with key personnel of the Company
and transactions with key personnel of the Group

Dunng the year the Group entered into the following srmaller related

party transactons’ as defined in Listing Rule 11 110R

« In Novernber 2011, the partner of Gary Enrus, a Director of the
Company’s mam tradng company, BDOW Trading Lirmnited (BOW')
purchased an apartment from BDW at a purchase pnce of £242,250

= In Decamber 2011, the spouse of Richard Brookse, also a Birector
of BDW, purchased three properties from BOW for an aggregate
purchase pnce of £231,950

» In February 2012, the son of Douglas McLeod, a Direcior of the
Company's Scottish trading entity, BDW East Scotland Limited
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(East Scotland’), purchased an apartment from East Scotland
ata purchase pnce of £176,025

Each of the aforementongd purchases was conducted at a farr and
reasonable market pnce based on comparable transactions at that
time and wers undertaken between a subsidiary director and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company No shareholder approval

15 therefore required for these purchases under the Act or the Listing
Rules There were no amounts outstanding at 30 June 2012 in retation
{0 these transactions

Property, plant and equipment

The Directors are of the opinion that the vatue of land and buildings
nchided within the Group’s property, plant and equipment 1S N excass
of book vatue but that the difference 1s not matenal in relaton to the
affars of the Group

Disclosure of information to auditor

So far as each of the Directors 1$ aware, thers 1s no relevant audit
information (that 15, nformation needed by the Company’s auditor in
connection with prepanng its report) of which the Company's auditor
18 not aware

Each of the Directors has taken alt the relevant steps that he/she ought
to have taken in accordance with his/her duty as a Director to make
him/erself aware of any relevant audit infermation and to establish that
the Company's auditor is aware of that nformation  This confirmation

1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions

of section 418(2) of the Act

Chantable and political contnbutions
Dunng the year the Group made chantable donatrons of £30,205 (2011
£45,700) The total amounts gmven for each chantable purpose were

Purpose £
The advancement of education 3,450
The advancement of religion 1,100
The advancemient of health and seving Ives 4,340
The advancement of community development 2,879
The advancement of amateur sport 1975
The relief of those n need because of youth, age,

i-health, disabikty, financial hardship or other

disadvantage 8,507
The promotion of efficiency of the armed forces 1,000
Any other purposes 5954

No politcal contnbutions were made dunng the year (2011 £nil)

Offices

The Group had 25 offices (exciuding those offices undertakng

an administrative function only) located throughout Great Britain at
the end of the financial year A full bst of the Group's offices and therr
locations can be obtaned from the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company or from
the Company’s website www bamattdevelopments co uk
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Risk management objectives

The pnngipal eperational neks of the business are detaled on pages

36 to 39 The Group's financial assets, financial labiities and denvative
financial nstruments are detatted in notes 22, 23 and 24 to the financial
statements Details of the Group's liquidity, market pnce, credt and cash
flow nsks are set out In note 25 to the financial statements

Likety future developments

An ndicabon of ikely future devetopments in the Group including in the
field of research and development s gven in the Business Review on
pages 180 35

Creditor payments

The Group 1s responsible for agreeng the detall of terms and conditions
relating to transactions with its supplers. It1s Group pelicy fo ensurs that
supplers are macte aware of the terms of payment and to abide by the
agreed terms of payment with suppliers whera the goods and services
have been supplied in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions
of contract implementation of this policy resulted in a suppler payment
period by the Group of 29 days 2011 26 days) for its trade creditors as
at 30 June 2012

Captal structure

The Company has a single class of share capital which 1s dvided nto
ordmary shares of 10 pence each Alhissued shares are in registered
form and are fully paid Details of the Compary's issued share capital
and of the movemants in the share capital dunng the year can be found
N note 27 to the financial stataments on page 118

Subject to the Articles, the Act and other shareholders’ nghts, shares
are at the disposal of the Board At each AGM the Board seeks
authonsation from its shareholders to allot shares At the AGM held on
16 Novermnber 2011, the Directors were gven authonty to allot shares up
to a nommal value of £32,181,332 {representng 33 33% of the nominal
value of the Company’s issued share capital), such authonty to remain
vald until the end of the 2012 AGM or close of business on 15 February
2013, whichever 1s earier A resolution to renew this authonty will be
proposed at the 2012 AGM

Rights and obligations attaching to shares

Subgect to any nghts attached to existing shares, shares may be issued
with such nghts and resinctions as the Company may by ordinary
rasolution decids, or (if there 1s no such resolution or so far as it does
not make specific provision) as the Board may decide

Subject 1o the Act, the Articles specify that nghts attached to any
existing class of shares may be vaned either with the wnitten consent of
the holders of not less than three-fourths In nominal value of the issued
shares of that class (excluding any shares of that class held as treasury
shares), or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate
general meeting of the holders of those shares The nghts conferred
upon the nolders of any shares shall not unfess otherwise expressly
provided In the nghts attaching to those shares, be desmed to be vaned
by the crestion or issue of further shares ranking pan passu with them




Voting

Subject o any special terms as 10 vobing upon which any shares may
be 1ssued or may at the refevant time be held, every member prasent in
person or by proxy at a ganeral meeting or class meeting has one vote
upon a show of hands or, upon a poll vote, ona vote for every share of
which such member s a holder In the case of joint holders of a shars,
the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy,
shall be accepted to the exciusion of votes of the other joint holders and
senionty shall be deterrmined by the order in which the names stand in
tha register in respect of the jont holding

In accondance with the Act, each member 15 entitied to appoint one or
mare proxes and n the case of corporations, more than ona corporate
representative to exercise all or any of thair nghts o attend, speak and
vote on their behalf at a general meeting or class meeting The tmescales
for appointing proxies are set out in the Notice of the 2012 AGM

No member shall ba entitled to vole at any general mesting or class
meeling i respect of any shares held by them if any call or other sum
then payable by them in respect of that share remains unpad or if they
have been served with a restnchion notice {as defined n the Artictes)
after fallure to provide the Company with information conceming
interests i those shares required to be provided under the Act

Transfer of shares

Shares n the Company may be in uncertficated or certificated form
Title to uncertificated shares may be transferred by means of a relevant
systern and certificated shares may be transferred by an instrument of
transfer as approved by the Board The transferor of a share 1s deemed
to remam the holder until the transferes’s name s entered nito the
Company's register of members

There are no restnctions on the transfer of shares except as follows

The Board may, N ts absolute discretion and without ging any reason
decline to register any transfer of any share which s not a fully paid
share Regsirabon of a fransfer of an uncertificated share may be
refused in the crcumstances set out n the uncertificated secunties rules
{as defined in the Articles) and where, in the case of a transfer to jont
holders, the number of joint helders 1o whom the uncertificated share

15 to be transferred exceeds four The Board may decine to registera
transfer of a certificated share untess the nstrument of transfer {i) 1s duty
stamped or certfied or otherwise shown to the satisfaction of the Board
to be exempt from stamp duty and 1s accompanied by the relevant share
certificate and such other evidence of the nght to transfer as the Board
may reasonably require, (i) 15 n respect of only one class of shars, and
() f yomt transferees, 1s In favour of not more than four such transferees,
orwhere the transfer s requestad by a person with a 0 25% interest

{as defined in the Artcles) ff such a person has been served witha
restnchon notice after fature 1o provide the Company wath information
conceming interests m those shares required to be prowded under the
Act, unless the transfar 1s shown to the Board to be pursuant to an arm's
length sale (as defined in tha Articles)

Shareholder authonty for purchase of own shares

Al the Comparny’s AGM held on 16 Novernber 2011, sharehoiders gave
authonty to the Comparny to buy back up to an aggregate of 96,543 990
ordnary shares (representing 10% of the Comparny's 1ssued share capital)
This authonty 15 valid until the end of the 2012 AGM or close of busness
on 15 February 2013, whichever 1s the earier Under the authority there

1$ @ minmum and maximum prce o be pad for such shares Any shares
which are bought back may be held as treasury shares or, If not so held,
will be cancelled immeadiately upon completion of the purchase, thereby
redueng the Company's issuad share capital

No purchases had been made under this authonty as at the date of this
report A resoluton renewing the authonty will be propesed at the 2012 AGM

Dividends and distributions

Subject {o the provisions of the Act, the Company may by ordinary
resolution from time to time declare dmdends for payment to the
holders of the ordinary shares of 10 pence each, of an amount which
does not exceed the amount recommended by the Board The Board
may pay Intenm dvidends, and also any fixed rate dmdend, whenever
the financial position of the Cormpany, in the opinion of the Board,
Justifies ther payment if the Board acts in good faith, it i1s not hable

to holders of shares with preferred or pan passu nghts for losses ansing
from the payment of ntenm or fixed dwvidends on cther shares

The Boand may withhold payment of all or any part of any dvidends or
other monies payable m respect of the Company’s shares from a person
with a 0 25% interest If such person has been served with a restnction
rotice after falure to provide the Company with information conceming
nterasts in those shares required to be provided under the Act

Shareholder arrangements tc warve dividends

The Barratt Developments Employes Benefit Trust (the 'EBT’) holds
ordinary shares in the Company for the purpose of satisfying options
and awards that have been granted under the vanous employee share
schemes operated by the Company Detats of the shares so held arg
set out In note 27 to the financia statements

The EBT has agreed to waive all or any future nght to dvidend payments
on shares held withn the EBT and these shares do not count n the
calcutation of the weighted average number of shares used to calculate
EPS untl such tme as they are vested to the relevant employes

The Trustees of the EBT may vote or abstain from voting on shares held
in the EBT in any way they thrnk fit and in doing so may take into account
both financial and non-financial interests of the beneficanes of the EBT
or their dependants

Major shareholders

In accordance with the UKLA s Disclosure anct Transparency Rules (the
‘DTRs" all notfications recenved by the Company are published on the
Company’s website www barrattdevelopments couk and via a
Regulated Information Service

As at 30 June 2012 the persons set out in Table 10 have notified the

Company, pursuant to DTR 51 of their mterasts in the voing nghts m
the Company's 1ssued share capital
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Table 10 - Notifiable Interests

% of total

% of total Issued

Number Issued share ghare
ofvoting  capital when  capital as at Nature
Name rights™ notified* 3006 2012** of hotding
MR LLC 34,579,199 824 354 Indirect
Ruffer LLP 48,776,046 500 500 Direct
Phoanix Asset Management Partners Limited 48,256,698 499 495 Direct
JP Morgan Chase & Co 17,286,856 498 177 Indirect
Direct &
Standard bife Investments Ltd 47,711,714 494 489 Indirect
Polans Capital Management LLG 34,606,679 359 355 Indirect
Norges Bank 26,071 919 301 298 Direct

Represents the number of yvolng nghts kst notSed i the Compary by Ir

vou with OTA § 1 Cartan of such not&caions pre-ciaie i Company s Placng and Rights Issus n 2009 and may not

n
teflect the revavant sharehoider s hoking oiowng the scquty ssue wher the revsad hoidng hes not Inggered & Rrihin AoUSCANON recrrerment.

* Based on the Total Voung Rights a3 at the revant notfication dates.

* Besed on the Total Votng Rights as st 30 Jurw 2012 fas amounced on 2. July 2012) anc accordingly may not Accurataly ot [Ne poslion 1 respect of those st

|ssue na referred {0 anove

Between 1 July 2012 and 11 Saptember 2012 the following changes
n respect of mterests in the votng nghts m the Company’s 1ssued share

capital were notified to the Comparny
Total %
Number of issued
of voting share Naturer
Name rights capltal* of holding
Ruffer LLP 46,887,233 480 Direct
Norges Bank 29,004,346 297 Direct

Basad on the Total Votng Rignts as at the date of the ralavant noticaton

The Total Voling Rights of the Company as at the date of this report,
as announced on 3 September 2012, are 976,312,867

Empioyee share schemes
Detaiis of employee share schemas are set out In note 28 to the
financial statements

Articles of Asseciation

The Articles contam reguiations which deal with matters such as

the appontment and removal of Directors, Directors' nterests and
proceedings at general and board meetngs Any amendments to the
Articles may be made n accordance with the provisions of the Act by
way of special resolution at a general meeting

Significant agreements

The following signdicant agreements contan provisions entiting the

counterparties to exercise terminaton or other nghis in the event of

a change of control of the Company-

» Both of the forward start credit facility agreements dated 10 May 2011
and in each ¢case mada between, amongst others, the Company,
Lioyds TSB Bank Pic {as the facility agent) and the banks and financial
nstiiutions named theremn as lenders (together, the ‘Credit Faciity
Agreements’) contan a mandatory prepayment provision on change
of control The Company must notify the facility agent promptly upon
becoming aware of the change of control After the change of control
the faciity agent must by notice to the Compary, cancel the total
commitment under the Credit Faciity Agreements and must also
declare all amounts outstanding under the Credit Faciity Agreements
immediately due and payable For these purposes, a ‘change of
controf’ occurs if any parson or group of persons acting N concert
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(as defined in the Takeover Code) gains control (as defined in the
Corporation Tax Act 2010) of the Company,

= gach of the note purchase agreements entered into in respect of the
Group's privately placed notes (being the £105m and! $380m of notes
rssued pursuant to the foliowng note purchase agreements () a note
purchase agreement dated 23 August 2007 (as amended and restated
on 10 May 2011}, (i) a note purchase agreement dated 23 Apnl 2008
(as amended and restated on 10 May 2011), (i} a note purchase
agresment n respect of the 1ssue of 15 Om notes dated 10 May 2011,
and () a note purchase agraement n respect of the issus of $65 Om
notas also dated 10 May 2011) contamn a change of control prepayment
provision Each such control provision provdas that within five business
days of the Company becomng aware that a change of controf has
occumed the Comipany shall notify all the holders of the notes of the
same and gve the holders the option 1o require the Company to prepay
&l outstanding amounts {prncipal and nterest) under the Notes No
‘make whole premiem’ s payable by the Company in respect of such
prepayment if noteholders elect (or ame deemed to have so electad)
to accept the Company's oifer such prepayment shall iake place
on a date that 15 not more than 90 business days after the Company
notfied the holders of the change of control For these purposes a
‘change of control’ means the acquision by a person or a group of
parsons acting in concert (as defined In the Takeover Code) such that
they gan beneficial ownership of more than 50 per cent of the ssued
share capital of the Company; and

« the £100m term facility agreement between, amongst cthers, the
Company and Prudental/MEG UK Companies Financing Fund LP
dated 10 May 2011 also contans a mandatory prepayment provision,
such mandatory prepayment provsion 15 ihe same as that desenbed
for the Creqit Facity Agreements

The note purchase agreements also impose upon the holders
custornary restnctions on resale or transfer of the notes other than

in compliance with applicable securities laws

On behalf of ths Board ’
o S
Tom Keewil

GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
11 Saptember 2012




STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Financial statements and accounting records

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and
Accounts ncluding the Directors’ Remuneration report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year The Directors are required by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Regulabion (the 'IAS Regulation’) to prepare

the Group financial staternents under Intemational Financial Reporing
Standards as adopted by the Eurcpean Union ('IFRS’) and have

also elected to prepare the Parent Company financal statements m
accordance with IFRS  The financial staternents are also required by law
to be property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation Under the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules, the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and far view of the stats of aflairs of the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements
present faity for each financial year the Company's financial position,
financial performance and cash flows This requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions
In accordance with the defimibons and recognition critena for assets,
liabilities, ncome and expenses set out N the Intematonal Accounting
Standards Board's 'Framework for the preparation and presentation
of financial statements’ In wrtually all circumstances, a far presentation
will be achieved by compliance with all apphcable IFRS Directors are
also required to
* property select and apply accounting policies,
» present nformation, ncluding accountng policies N a manner that
provdes relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information,
* provide additionat disciosures when comphiance with the specific
requirements in IFRS are insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and condiions
on the entity's financal posion and financial performance, and
* make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a
going concem

The Directors are responsible for keepng adequate accountng records
that ars sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial posiion of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding
tha assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonabte steps for the
prevenhon and detection of fraud and other imeguilaribes

The Directors are rasponsible for the maintenance and mitegnty of
the corporate and financial information Included on the Company’s
website Legisiaton in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation
and disseminabion of financial statements may differ from legisliation
in other unsdictions

Directors' responsibility statement

The Directors confirm that, to the best of each person's knowledge

a) the Group and Parent Company financial statements in thes report,
which have been prepared n accordance with IFRS, Standing
Interpretaton Commuttee nterpretations as adopted and endorsed by
the European Union, Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committes interpretations and those parts of the Companies Act 2006

applicable to companies reporting under IFRS, give a true and farr

wigw of the assets, abilites, financial positon and profit or loss

of the Company and of the Group taken as a whole, and

b) the management report contaned n this report ncludes a far review
of the developrnent and performance of the business and the position
of the Company and the Group taken as a whole, together with a
descnphon of the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties they face

The Directors of the Company and therr functions are kisted on pages
40 and 41

ol s d

Mark Clare Dawvid Thomas
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
11 September 2012 11 September 2012

‘The Report of the Directors from pages 2 to 71 nclusive was approved

W September QOngned onets behalf by
PO e— g \QJ—\/&

Tom Keewl
GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
11 September 2012
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ACCOUNTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Barratt Developmenis PLC
for the year ended 30 June 2012 which compnse the Consolidated
Income Statement, the Group and Parent Company Statements of
Comprehensie Income, the Group and Parent Comparny Staterments
of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Group and Parent Company
Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements,
the Accounting Policies, the Impact of Standards and interpretations

n Issue but not yet Effective, Cntical Accounting Judgements and

Key Sources of Estmation Uncertamnty and the related notes 1 to 35
The financiat reporting framework that has been applied in ther
preparahion s apphcable law and iniemational Fmancal Reporting
Standards (FRSs) as adopted by the European Unlon and, as regards
the Parent Company financial statements, as applied n accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a bedy,

n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companias Act 2006
Our sudit work has baen undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state o them
n an auchitor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permittad by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company's members as a body,

for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explaned more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiities Statement,

the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view

Cur responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements mn accordance with applicable law and intemational Standards
on Auditing (UK and ieland) Those standards require us to comply

with the Audiing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audt invvolves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosuras
in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial staterments are free from matenal misstaterment, whether caused
by fraud or ermor This ncludes an assessrment of whether the accounting
polictes are appropnate to the Group's and the Parent Comparny's
crcumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately
disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
ty the directors, and tha overall presentation of the financial statements

In addkbon, we read &l the financal and non-financial nformation n the
annual report to entify matenal nconsistencies with the audited financal
statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstaterments
or mconsistencies we consider the mplications or our raport,

Opinton on financial statements

in our opinion

= the financial staternents gve a true and far view of the state of the
Group's and of the Parent Compary's affairs as at 30 June 2012
and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

+ the Group financial statements have been property prepared
n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Urion,

= the Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Uricn and as apphed in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and
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* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
reqguirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the Companies

Act 2006

In Qur opnion

» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been
property prepared In accordance with the Comparies Act 2006, and

» the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial staternents are prepared 1s consistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

linder the Companies Act 2006 we are required to raport to you If,

N oUr opIrion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Comparty, or retums adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not wisited by us, or

« the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Dinectors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not m agreement with the
accounting records and retums, or

» certain disckosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

= wi have not receved all the information and explanations we require
for our audit

Under the Listng Rules we are required fo review

« the Directors’ statement, contained within the Report of the Direciors,
In retation to going concem,

» the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the
Company’s complancs with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate
Govemance Code specified for our review, and

» certan elerments of the report to shareholders by the Board
on directors’ rermuneration

G Ker\MJJW

Graham Richardson (Senior statutory auditor}
for and on behalf of Delotta LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

11 September 2012




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 30 June 2012
2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
Before Exceptionat Belore  Exceptional
exceptional items exceptonal ems
Rems {note 3) ilems {note 3}
Notes £m £m £m £m £m fm
Continuing operations
Revenue 1,2 2,323 4 - 23234 20354 - 20354
Cost of sales (2,027 2} - {2,027 2 (1,8078) - {1.8076)
Gross profit 296 2 - 296 2 2278 - 2278
Admmistrative expenses {1051 - {105 1} 92 §) {r7) {1005
Profit from operations 4 1911 - 1911 1350 77 1273
Finance income 5 169 - 16 9 180 - 180
Finance costs 5 97 7) - (97 7) (110 4) (46 5) {156 9)
Net finance costs 5 (80 8) - {80 B) 92 4} {46 5) {138 9}
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 13 05 - 05 01 - 1
Shara of post-tax loss from associates 13 {01) - {01) - - -
LOss on re-measurement of joint venture interest on
acqusition of control 3 - {107) {107) - - —
Profit/{loss) before tax 107 {107) 1000 427 54 2) (11 8}
Tax 7 (32 6) - {32 6) (172 149 {23}
Profit/{loss) for the year 781 (107) 674 255 (393 (138
Profit/{loss) for the year atinbutable to equity
shareholders 781 (107} 674 255 393 (13 8)
Eamings/loss) per share from continuing operations
Basic 9 70p (14p
Diuted 9 6 9p {14p

The notes on pages 79 to 128 form an integral part of thesa financial staterments
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE iINCOME

Year ended 30 June 2012
Group Company
2012 201 2012 201
Notes £m £m £m £m
Profit/{oss) for the year 674 {138) (36 5) 731
Other comprehenstve (expenselinceme
Amounts deferred in respect of effectve cash flow hedges 529 {211) {23 6) (211) (23 6}
Actuanal flossesigans on defined benefit pension schemes 26 (24 1) 220 {24 1) 220
Fair value adustrnent on gvailable for sale financal assets 15 (3 4) 25 - -
Tax on tems above 7,16 108 (17 103 09)
Net loss (377) 8 {34 9) {2 5)
Amounts reclassified to the ncome statement in respect of hedged cash flows 5,29 51 285 51 285
Amounts reclassified to the income statement In respect of hedged cash flows
no longer expected to occur — exceptonal 5,29 - 298 - 208
Tax on items above 7.16 (13 (16 0) {13} (16 0)
Net profit transferred 38 423 38 423
Total comprehensive incomef{expense) recogmised for the year attnbutable to
equity shareholders 335 277 {67 6) (333)

The notes on pageas 79 to 128 form an integral part of these financral statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Group 30 June 2012
Share- Total
Share Share Merger Hedging Own based  Retained retalned
capital premium reserve reserve shares payments eamings eamings Total
£m £m £ £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 July 2010 965 206 6 1,1090 (489) 50 132 1,528 8 1,5370 29002
Loss for the year - - - - - - {138) {138 (13 8)
Amounts defermed in respect
of effectve cash fiow hedges - - - (23 6) - - - - {23 6}
Amounts reclassified to the
incoms statement in respect
of hedged cash flows - - - 285 - = - - 285
Amounts reclassified to the
income staterment in respect
of hedged cash flows no longer
expected to occur - exceptional - - - 208 - - - - 298
Far value adjustments on
avallable for sale financial assets - - - - - - 25 25 25
Actuangt gans on
pension scheme - - - - - - 220 220 220
Tax on items above - - — (104) - - {73} {73) (177}
Total comprehensive Income
recogrised for the year ended
30 June 2011 - - - 243 - - 34 34 277
Share-based payments — — - - - 18 04 22 22
At 30 June 2011 965 2066 1,109 0 {24 6} 50 150 15326 15426 29301
Profit for the year - - - - - - 674 674 674
Amounts deferred in respect
of effectve cash fiow hedges - - - {211) - - - - (211)
Amounts reclassified to the
income siatement 1N respect
of hedged cash flows - - - 51 - - - - 51
Far value adjustmants on
available for sale financial assets - - - - - - (34) 34) 34)
Actuanal losses on
pension scheme - - - - - - (24 1} (241) {24 1)
Tax on derms above - - - 32 - - 64 64 96
Total comprehensive income/
{expense) recogmsed for the
year ended 30 June 2012 - - - {12 8) - - 46 3 463 335
Issue of shares 11 51 - - - - - 62
Share-based payments - - - - - 33 - 33 33
Transfer of share-based
payrments charge for non-vested
ophons - - - - - {36) 36 - -
Tax on share-based payments - - - - - {04) 11 Q7 07
At 30 June 2012 976 M7 11090 (37 4) {50) 143 1,583 6 1,592 9 29738

The notes on pages 79 to 128 form an integral part of these financial staterments
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Company 30 June 2012
Share- Totaf
Share Share Merger Hedging Own based  Retalned retained
capltat premium reserve rasarve shares payments eamings eamings Total
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 July 2010 965 2066 11090 (48 9) (50} 94 15939 1,598 3 29615
Loss for the year - - - - - - {73 1) {73 1) {731)
Amounts deferred in respect
of effective cash flow hedges - - - (236) - - - - (236)
Amounts reclassified to the
ncome statement In respect
of hedged cash fiows - - - 285 - - - - 285
Amounts reclassified to the
ncome statement in respect
of hedged cash fiows no longer
expected 1o occur - exceptional - - - 298 - - - - 298
Actuanal gains on
penston scheme - - - - - - 220 220 220
Tax on lems above - - — {104) ~ o1 {68} 65) {16 9)
Total comprehensive income/
{expense) recogrsed for the
year ended 30 June 2011 - - - 243 - 01 (677) (57 6} {333)
Share-based payments - — — - - 18 04 22 22
At 30 June 2011 965 2086 11090 (?48) 50 13 1,536 6 1,542 9 28304
Loss for the year - - = - - - {36 5) {36 5} {36 5)
Amounts deferred In respect
of effective cash flow hadges - - - (211) - - - - (211)
Amounts reclassified to the
ncome staterment in raspect
of hedged cash flows - - - 51 - - - - 51
Actuarial lossas on
pensicn scheme - - - - - - (24 1) (24 1) (24 1)
Tax on tlems above - - - 32 - - 58 58 90
Total comprehensive expense
recogrused for the year ended
30 June 2012 - - - (12 8) - ~ (54 8) {54 8) (67 6)
Issue of shares 11 51 - - - - - - 62
Share-based payments - - - - - 33 - 33 33
Transfer of share-based
payments charge for non-vested
options - - - - - 07N {3 6) (43 (4 3)
At 30 June 2012 976 217 1,090 (37 4) {5 Q) 139 1478 2 1,4871 28680

The notes on pages 79 to 128 form an ntegral part of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEETS

At 30 June 2012
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
QOther intangible assets 11 1000 1000 - -
Goodwill 10 792 2 7922 - -
Property, plant and equipment 12 64 56 12 07
Investments 14 - - 26140 26177
Investments accounted for using the equity method i3 856 1028 - -
Avallable for sale financial assels 15 189 2 160 4 - -
Trade and other recevables 18 41 57 - -
Deferred tax assets 16 1186 1432 491 487
Denvative financial Instruments — swaps 24 294 250 204 250
1,325 5 1,3439 26937 2,6921
Current assets
Inveniones 17 3,226 6 3,296 8 - -
Trade and other recevables 18 503 587 5580 7818
Cash and cash equvalents 21 150 3 727 701 571
Current tax assets 04 32 - -
34276 34314 6281 B389
Total assets 4,7531 47753 33218 35310
Liabilities
Non-current habilities
Loans and bomowings 23 {331 2) {405 5) {331 2) (405 5)
Trade and other payables 19 {359 4) (3525) - -
Retirament benefit obligatons 26 (21 4) (118} (21 4) {118)
Denvative financial nstruments — swaps 24 (53 3) {370} (53 3) (370)
{765 3) (806 8) {405 9) (454 3)
Current habihties
Loans and borrowings 23 {121) (112 (13 2) {106 6}
Trade and other payables 19 (1,019 (10272 {347) {397}
(1,0140) (1.0384) 479 (146 3}
Total liabiiibes (1,7793) (1,8452) {453 8) {600 6)
Net assets 29738 2,9301 2,868 0 29304
Equsty
Share capital 27 976 965 976 965
Share premium 2117 206 6 217 206 6
Merger reserve 1,108 0 11080 1,109 0 11080
Hedging reserve (37 4) (24 6) {374) {246)
Retaned samings 14,5929 1,542 8 1,4871 1,5429
Total equity 29738 28301 2,8680 29304

The financial statements of Barratt Developments PLC (registered number 804574} were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed

for 1issue on 11 September 2012 Signed on behalf o the Board of Directors

Uy = A

Mark Clare Dawvid Thomas
Group Finance Drector

Group Cheef Executve

The notes on pages 79 to 128 form an integral part of these financial statements
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Year ended 30 June 2012
Group Company
202 2011 2Mm2 2011
Notes LI £m £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 30 1497 1002 1426 465
Cash flows from investing actrviies
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 24) 07 (10) 01)
Acqussshon of subsidianes net of cash acquired 32 16 [} - -
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking 80 - - -
Increase in investments accounted for using the equity method 13 {7 9) (22 8) - -
Interest receved 02 44 373 401
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities {0 5) (202) 363 400
Cash fiows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 62 - 62 -
Hedging termination costs {0 4) 271) (0 4} 271)
Cther fees related 1o amendment of financing armangements 5 - 8 6) - {8 6}
Loan repayments {774 (5181) (1717} {515 8}
Net cash outflow from financing activities {71 6) (553 8) {165 9) (551 5)
Net increase/(decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 776 {473 8) 130 {465 0)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 727 5465 571 5221
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 21 150 3 727 701 571

The notes on pages 79 to 128 form an integral part of these financial statements
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Year ended 30 June 2012

Basis of preparation

These financial staternents have been prepared n accordance with
intemational Fnancial Reporting Standards (IFRS') as ssued by the
intemational Accountng Standards Board ('1ASB'), Intemational Financial
Reporting interpretations Committes (IFRIC’} nterpretations and
Standing Interpretations Committee ('SIC") interpretations as adopted
and endorsed by the European Union (EU) and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to comparuas reporting under IFRS and
therefore the Group financeal statements comply with Article 4 of the EU
Intemational Accounting Standards Reguiation The financial staterments
have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of availlable for sale financial assets, dervative financal
instruments and share-based payments A summary of the more
significant Group accountng policies 1s set out below

The preparation of inancal statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting pnnciples requires the use of estimates and
assumphions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilites

at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expensas dunng the reportng penod Although these
estimates are based on the Cwrectors’ bast knowledge of the amounts,
actual results may uttimately differ from those estmates The most
significant estimates made by the Directors in these financial statements
are set out n ‘Cntical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estmaton Uncertanty'

Going concern

In determining the appropnate basts of preparation of the financal
statements, the Directors ara required to consider whether the Group
can continue in operational existence for the foreseeabile future

The Group's business actmties, together with factors which the Directors
consider ara likely to affect its future development, financial performance
and financial position are set out in the Group Chief Executive’s review
on pages B to 15 and the Busness review on pages 1910 38 The
matenal financial and operational nsks and uncertanties that may impact
the Group's parformance and therr rigation are outhined on pages 36
10 39 and financial nsks ncluding lguidity nsk, market nsk, credit nsk
and capital nsk are outimed N note 25 to the financial statements

The financial performance of the Group s dependent upon the wider
economic environment in which the Group operates As explained

In the prncipal nsks and uncertanties on pages 36 1o 39, factors

that particutarly impact upon the performance of the Group include
changss in the macroeconomic environment inchuding buysr
confidence, avaiabiity of mortgage finance for the Group's cusiomers
and interest rates

As announced in May 2011, in accordance with the terms of the Group’s
refinancing, on 26 Apnl 2012 the Group's committed revoling credit
facities {RCFs') totaling £1,190 5m termnated and the forward start
RCFs totaling £780m becarne avalable for drawing At 30 June 2012,
the Group's total committed faciities and private placement notes were
£1,091m. The maturity dates of these faciities range from Apnl 2013

10 July 2021, with £690m of the RCFs matunng in May 2015

The covenant package remans unchanged to that announced n May 2011

On 6 Septernber 2012, the Group gave voluntary notice to cancel the
£90m RCF with effact from 12 Saptembar 2012 which reduces the
Group's 1otal committed faciktres and private placement notes to
£1,001m The commutted facilities and private placement notes now
In place prowide appropnats headroom above our current forecast
debt requirements

Accordingly, after making enqumnes, the Directors have formed a
jiigement, at the time of approving the financial statemments, that there
1s a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, beng at
least twelva months from the date of these financial statements For this
reason thay continue to adept the gong concem basis n prepanng the
consolidated financial statermenis

Adoption of new and revised standards
In the year endad 30 June 2012, the Group has adopted

Amendment 1o IFRS7 ‘Disclosures ~ Transters of Fnancial Assets’,
Amendment to IFRIC14 *Prepayment of a Mirurmum Funding
Reguirement’, 1AS24 (Rewised) Related Party Transactions' and
the Annual Improvernents to IFRS (2010 tranche)

The adoption of these standards, nterpretations and amendments
has not had any impact upon the profit or net assets of the Group
n either the current year or comparative year and has not required
any additional disclosures

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements Includs the results of Barratt Developments
PLC (the ‘Company'), mcorporated n the UK, and all its subsidiary
undartakings made up to 30 June The financial statements of subsidiary
undertakings are consodated from the date when control passes to the
Group usng the purchase method of accountng and up to the date
control ceases Al transactions with subsidiaries and mtercomparny profits
or losses are eimnated on consoldation

Business combenations

All of the subsidianes’ dentifiable assets and llabilies, including
contingent liabiibes, existing at the date of acquisiion are recorded

at therr fair values All changes to those assets and liabiliies and the
resulting gams and lossas that arise after the Group has gained conirol
of the subsidiary are ncluded in the post-acquisibion income statement

Jointly controlied entities

A jointly controlied entity 1s an entity i which the Group holds an interest
with one or more other parties where a contractual arrangerment has
established yoint control over the entity Jontly controlled entities are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Jointly controlled operations

The Group enters into jointly controlled operations as part of its
housebuiicing and property development actvties The Group’s share
of profits and losses from its irmvesiments i such jointly controlled
operations 5 accounted for on a direct basis and s ncuded n the
consolidated mcome statement The Group's share of s mvestments,
assats and habiities 1s accounted for on a directly proportional basis

in the Group balance sheet
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Associated entrties

An associated entity 1s an entity, including an unincorperated entity such
as a parinership, in which the Group holds a significant nfluence and
that 1s neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture Associated
entibes are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Revenue

Revenue 1s recognised at legal completion in respect of the total
proceeds of bullding and development An appropnate proportion

of revenue from construction contracts is recogrised by reference

to the stage of completion of contract actvity Revenue 1s measursed

at the far value of consideration receved or recevable and represents
the amounts recevable for the property, net of discounts and VAT The
sale proceeds of part-exchange properties ara not ncluded n revenue

Interest ncome Is accrued on a tme basis, by reference to the pnncipal
outstanding and at the effactve nterest rate applicable

Construction contracts

Reverwe 1s only recogrised on a construchon contract where the
outcome can be estimated reably Vanations to, and claims ansing in
respect of, construction contracts, are ncluded in revenue to the extent
that they have been agreed with the customer Revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of contract actnty
at the balance sheet date This 1s nommally measured by surveys of work
performed to date Contracts are only treated as construction contracts
when they have been specifically negotiated for the construction of a
development or property When itis probable that the total costs ona
construction contract will exceed total contract revenue, the expected
loss 15 recognised as an expense in the ncome statement immediately

Amounis recoverable on construction contracts are ncuded n trade
receivables and siated at cost plus attnbutable profit less any foreseeabls
losses Payments recened on account for construction contracts are
deducted from amounts recoverable on constructon contracts

Payments recenved in excess of amounts recoverable on construction
contracts are ncluded n trade payables

Exceptiona! items

ftems that are matenal in seze or unusual or nfrequent m nature are
presented as excepbonal items n the income statement. The Directors
are of the opnion that the separate presentation of exceptional tems
provdes helpful nformation about the Group’s underying business
perforrmance Examples of events that, imfer ala may give rise o the
classffication of iems as excephional ame the restructunng of existing and
newly-acquired busmnessas, refinanaing costs, gans or losses on the
disposal of busnesses or ndmdual assets, pension scheme curtatiments
and asset mparments, ncludng land, work i progress, goodwll

and rmvestments

Restructunng costs

Restructunng costs are recegnised in the ncome statement when the
Group has a detaled plan that has been communicated to the affected
parties A liabiity 1s accrued for unpad restructunng costs

Profit from operations

Profit from operations nchudes a1 of the revenue and costs denved from
the Group's operating businesses Profit from operabons exchudes finance
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costs, finance ncome, the Group's share of profits or 10s56s from omnt
ventures and associates, tax and gans/losses) on disposal of vestments

Segmental reporting

The Group consists of two separate segments for intemat reporting
regularly reviewed by the chisf operating decision maker to allocate
resources to the segments and 1o assess their performance, beng
housebulding and commercial developments These segrments
tharefora compnse the pamary reporting segments within the financial
statements All of the Group's operations are within Bntan, which is one
geographec market in the context of managing the Group's actmities

Goodwall

Goodwil ansing on consohdation represents the excess of the far value
of the consideration aver the farr value of the separately identfiable net
assets and kabilites acquired

Goodwill ansing on acquestion of subsidiary undertakings and businessas
1s capialised as an asset and reviewed for impament at least annually

For the purpose of imparment testing, goodwilhis allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination at acquisiion Cash-generating units

10 which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment at least
annually If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1s less
than the camying amount of the unit, the mpaiment loss 1s allocated
first 10 reduce the camying amount of any goodwill allocated io the
unit and then 1o the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis

of the carmying amount of each asset in the unit Any impaiment

loss s recognised mmediatsly in the income statement and 1s not
subsequently reversed

intangible assets

Brands

Intemally generated brands are not capitalised The Group has
capitalised as intangible assets brands that heve been acguired
Acquired brand values are calculated using discounted cash flows
Where a brand 15 considered o have & firute life, it 15 amortised over
is useful ife on a straight-ine basis Whers a brand 1s capitaised
with an indefinits Iife, it 15 not armortised The factors that contnbute to
the durability of brands capitabsed are that there are no matenal legal,
regulatory, contractual, competitve, economic or other factors that
Iimit the useful #fe of these ntangible assets

The Group camas out an annual impamment review of Indefinie
ife brands as part of the review of the carmying valug of gooawill,
by performmg a value-n-use calcutation, using a discount factor
based upon the Group's pre-tax weighted average cost of capital

Investments
interests in subsidiary undertakings are accounted for at cost lass
any provision for imparmernt

Where share-based payments are granted to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings by the Company, they are treated as a capital
coninbution to the subsidary and the Company's irnvestment in the
subsidiary 15 increased accordingly




Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment s camed at cost less accumutated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses Depreciation 1s
provided to wite off the cost of the assets on a straght-ine basis

1o therr residual value over therr estimated useful bves Residual values
and asset Ives are reviewed annually

Freehold properties are depreciated on a straght-ine bass over 25 years
Freehold tand 1s not depreciated Plant is depreciated on a straight-ing
basts over its expected useful Iife, which ranges from one to seven years

Inventones

Inventones are vaiued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost
compnses drect matenals, drect labour costs and those overheads
wthuch have been incurred in bringing the inventones to their present
locaton and condition

Land held for development, ncluding land n the course of development,
1s nhially recorded at discounted cost Where, through deferred purchase
credit termns, the camying value differs from the amount that will uttrately
be pad n setting the habilty, ths difference 15 charged as a finance cost
in the ncome statement over the penod of settiement

Due to the scale of the Group's developments, the Group has to allocate
site-wide development costs between units built In the current year

and i future years |t also has to estimate costs to complete on such
davelopments In making these assessments there 1s a degree of mherent
uncertamty The Group has developed intemal controls to assess and
review carmymg values and the appropnateness of estmates made

Leases as lessee
Cperating lease rentals are charged to the income statement in equal
instaiments over the hife of the leass

Leases as lessor

The Group enters into leasing arangements with third parties following
the completion of consiructed developments untl the date of the sale
of the development to third parties Rental ncome from these operating
Isases 15 recogmsed in the ncome statement on a straight-ine basis
over the term of the lease inihal direct costs ncumed 1 negoliating and
arranging an operatng lease are added to the carmying amount of the
leased asset and recogrised in the ncome statement on a straight-ing
basts over the lsase term

Share-based payments

The Group ssues both equsty-settied and cash-settled share-based
payments to certan employees In accordance with the transitional
provisions, IFRS2 ‘Share-based Payments' has been appled to all
grants of equity instrumenits after 7 Novamber 2002 that had not vested
at 1 January 2005

Equity-setiled share-based payments are measured at the far value of
the equity nstrument at the date of grant Far value 1s measured either
using Black-Scholes, Present-Economuc Value or Monte Carlo models
dependent upon the chamactenstics of the scheme The far vakua s
expensed n the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the
vesting penod, based on the Group s estmate of shares that will
eventually vest where non-market vesting condibons apply

Non-vestng condiions are taken nto account in the estimate of the far
value of the equity nstruments

Cash-settled share-based payments are measured at the far value

of the kability at the date of grant and are re-measured both at the end
of each reporting period and at the date of settlement with any changes
in far value being recogrised n the mcome staterent for the penod Far
value s measured nitially and at the end of each reporting penod using
a Black-Scheles model and at the date of settlement as cash pad

Tax
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax cumently payable and
deferred tax

The tax currently payable 15 based on the taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported rn the income statement
because it excludes items of iIncorme or expense that are taxable or
deductible In other years and 1t further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible The Group's liability for current tax s calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date Deferred tax s recognised in respect of all
temporary ditferences that have ongnated but not reversed at the
balance sheat date where transactions or events that result i an
obligation to pay more tax in the future or a nght to pay less tax n

the future have occurred at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax s calculated at the rates that are expected to apply in the
penod when the lability 1$ settied or the asset 15 realised based on tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the ncome statement, except
when It relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax s also dealt with m equity

A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and therefore
racogrised only whan, on the basis of alf avallable evidence, it can be
regarded as more likety than not that there will be suitable taxable profits
from which the future revarsal of the undertying timing differences can
be deducted Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when therg 1s
a legally enforceable nght to set-off current tax assets agamnst current
tax labiiies and when they relate io taxes levied by the same tax
authonty and the Group mtends to settle its curent tax assets and
abdittes on a net basis

Pensions

Defined contnbution

The Group cperates defined contribution pension schemes for certan
employees The Group's contnbutions io the schemes are charged n
the ncome staterment in the year in which the contnbutions fall due

Defined benefit

For the defined benefit scheme, the cost of providing bensfits 1s
determuned using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuanal
valuations being camed out at each balance sheet date Actuanal gans
and losses are recogrnuised in full in the penod n which thay occur They

" are recognised outside profit or Ioss and presented in the staterment

of comprehensive INcome

Past service cost, until the scheme ceased to offer future accruat
of defined benefit pensions to employees from 30 June 2009, was
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recognised immediately 1o the extent that the benefits were already
vested, and otherwisa was amortised on a straghit-lne basis over
the average penod until the benefits become vested

The retirement benefit abligaton racogmised in the balance sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted
for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the farr value

of the scheme assets Any asset resultng from #his calculation s hmited
to past service cost, plus the present value of avalable refunds and
reductions in future contnbutions {o the scheme

Borrowing costs

The Group capitalises borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the
acquisition, construction ¢or production of a qualifying asset as part
of tha cost of the asset where developments are considered to fall
under the requirements of IAS23 (Revised) Otherwise, the Group
expanses borrowing costs in the penod to which they relate through
the nnicome statement

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financral liabnties are recognised on the Group's
balance sheet whan the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisiens of the instrument

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire, or 1t transfers the financial
asset and substantially alf the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another antity

The Group derecognises a financial liability only when the Group's
obligations are dischargad cancelled or they exprre

Financial assets

MNon-dernvative financial assets are classified as either avalable for sale
financial assets' or loans and recevables’ The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and s determined

at the tima of initial recognition

Available for sale financial assets

Non-interest beanng icans granted as part of sales transactions that
are secured by way of a second legal charge on the respecive property
are classified as beng avalable for sale and are stated at fair value

Farr value 1s determmned in the manner descnbed n note 15

Revenue from transactions mvolving availlable for sate financial assets
15 recognised at the fair value of consideration recenvable

Gains and losses ansng from changes in farr value are recogrised

mn equity within other comprehensve ncome Gams and losses ansing
from impaiment losses, changes in future cash flows and interest
calculated using the ‘effective mterest rate’ method are racogrised
directly in the income statement

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recenables are financal assets with fixed or determunable
paymenis that are not quoted i an aciive market. They are ncduded

0 current assets, except for those with metunties greater than twehve
months after the balance sheet date, which are classified as non-cument
assets and are measured at amortised cost less an allowance for any
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uncolectable amounts The net of these batances are classified as
‘tragde and other recevables’ n the batance sheet.

Trade and other recenvables are classified as “loans and recevables’

Impamment of financiat assets

Trade and other recenvables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each balance sheet dale and are impaired where thera 1s cbjective
ewidenca that the recovery of the recenable 1S n doubt

Obyacirve svidence of imparment could include significant financial
difficuity of the customer, default on payment terms or the custorner
gomg into igudatbon

The carrying amount of trade and other recevables 1s recuced through
the use of an allowance account When a trads or other recevable i1s
considered uncollectable, 1t 1Is wntten off against the allowance account
Subsequent recovenes of amounts previousty written off are credited
aganst the allowance account Changes in the carmying amount of the
allowanca account are recogrused in the ncome statement

For financial assets classified as avallable for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the value of the property underpinning the value
of the loan or ncreased nsk of default are considered to be objective
evidence of impairment

i respect of debt nstruments classified as avalable for sale financl
assats, Increasss N the far value of assets previously subject to
wmpairment, which can be objectvely related to an event cccurnng
after recognition of the impaimment loss, are recogrised in the Income
statament to the extent that they reverse the impagrment loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents Include cash on hand and balances m bank
accounts with no notice or less than three months notice from inception
and are subject to an msignificant nsk of changes n value

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as ‘loans and recevables'

Financial habilhes and equity
Financial labiiities and equsty are classified accordng to the substance
of the contractual arrangemants entered iNto

Equity instruments
Equity instruments consist of the Company’s ordinary share capital
and are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1Issue costs

Financial habilibies

All non-dernvative financial babiities are classified as ‘other financial
liabuities’ and are nitidy measured at fair value, net of transaction costs
Other financial kabiities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the ‘effectve interest rate’ method

Other financial labilities consist of bank borrowings and trade
and other payablas

Financial abiities are classified as curent habiites unless the Group
has an unconditonal nght to defer settiemnent of the lability for at feast
twelve months after the balance sheet date




Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables on normal terms are not interest beanng
and are stated at amortised cost

Trade and other payables on extended terms, parbcuiary n respect of land,
are recorded at therr far valug at the date of acquisition of the asset to which
they relate by discounting at prevaiing market nterest rates at the date of
recogretion The discount to nomnal vaue, whch wil be pad n setting the
deferred purchase terms liability, 1s amortised over the penad of the credit
term and charged to finance costs using the effective niterest rate’ method

Bank borrowings
Interest beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the procesds
recened, net of direct issue costs

Where bank agreements include a legal nght of ofiset for n hand and
overdraft balances, and the Group ntends to settle the net outstanding
position, the offset arangements are applied to record the net position
in the balance sheet

Finance mcome and charges are accounted for using the ‘effective
interest rate’ method in the ncome statement

Finance costs are recogmsed as an expense in the ncorme statement
in the penod {0 which they relate

Dervative financial instruments

The Group has entered into denvatve financial instruments in the form
of nterest rate swaps and cross curency swaps to manage the nterest
rate and foregn exchangs rate nsk ansing from the Group's operations
and sources of finance The use of financial derfvatives 1s govermed by
the Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors as detaled

In notes 24 and 25 to the financial statements

Cenvatves are nitially recogrised at far value at the date a denvative
contract 1s entered mto and are subsequentty re-measursd to ther far value
at each balance sheet date The resulbng gam or loss 1s recognised n the
profit or loss immediately unlass the dervative 15 designated and effective
as a hadging nstrument, N which event the tming of the recognition N
profit or ioss depends on the nature of the hedge relatonship

The nterest rate and cross currency swap arrangements are designated
as hedgng mstruments, being etther hedges of a change m future cash
flows as a result of nterest rate movements, or hedges of a change In
future cash flows as a resutt of forexgn currency exchange rate moverments

The farr value of hedging derivatives 1s classdied as a non-curment asset
or a non-current kabilty if the remanmg matunty of the hedging
relatbonship is more than twefve months and as a current asset

or a current kabifity if the remaming matunty of the hedge relationship
15 less than twebve months

Hedge accounting

Al of the Group's nterest rate and cross curency swaps are designated
as cash flow hedges At the ncaption of the hedge relationship the Group
documents the relationship between the hadging nstrument and the
hedged tern, along with its nsk management objectives and is strategy
for undertakong vanous hedged transactons In addibion, at the nception
of the hedge and on an ongoing bass, the Group documents whather

the hedgng nstrument is highly effective in offsettng the changes in cash
flows of the hedged tems

Details of the far values of the intgrest rate and cross cumency swaps
are provided n notes 22, 23 and 24 to the financial statements
Movements on the hedging reserve In equity are detatted in the
statements of changes in shareholders’ equity

Cash flow hedge

To the extent that the Group's cash flow hedges are effective, gans
and losses on the fair value of the niterest rate and cross curmency swap
arangerments ars deferred in equity 1n the hedging reserve until realised
On reaksabon, such gans and losses are recognised within finance
charges in the mcome statement

To the extent that any hedge s ineffactive, gans and losses on the far
value of these swap amangaments are recognised Immediately in finance
charges n the mcome staterment.

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled n profit or loss n the penods
when the hedged tern 1s recognised in profit or lass

Hedge accounting i discontinued when the Group revokes the hedgmng
refationship, the hedging instrument expires, 1s sotd or terminated or no
longer qualfies for hedge accounting At that tme, any curnulative gan

or loss deferred in equity remars n equity and s recognised when the
forecast transaction 1s uthmately recogrised n profit or loss When a
forecast transacton 15 no longer expected to occur, the cumulatve gain or
loss that was deferred In equity 1s recognised immedchately in profit or loss

Government grants

Govermiment grants arg not recognised untlt there 1s reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants wil be receved

Government grants are recognised o the mcome statement so as

1o match with the related costs that they are intended to compensate
Grants related to assets are deducted from the carmying amount of the
asset Grants related to ncome are included in the appropnate Ine
within the mcome statement

Kickstart

The Group has been granted assistance for the development of a
number of sites under the Homes and Communites Agency {HCA)
Kkstart” scheme Where receipts under the Kickstart scheme relate
to grants they are accounted for m accordance with the policy for
Govemment grants stated above

In addion the Group has receved cash upon specific sites under the
"Kickstart eguity’ scheme which is repayabde n future penods as the sites
to which it relates are devetoped, along with the sharg of the profits or
losses attributable to the HCA ansing from the sites This lability s nchuded
within bomowings and s ndially recogrised at fair value by discounting t at
prevailing market nterest rates at the date of recogniion The discount to
nomnal vaiue, which will be pasd n seiting the liabdty, s amortisad over the
expactad life of the site and charged to finance costs usmg the ‘effectve
nterest rate’ mathod Gans and losses ansing from changes in farr value of
the abiiity related to the HCA's share of e profits or losses of the sile are
recognised directly in the meome statement
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IMPACT OF STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Al the date of approval of these financial statements there were a number
of standards, amendments and mterpretations that have been published
and are thersfore mandatory for the Group's accountng periods begrnmg
on or after 1 Juty 2012 and later penods IFRSS *Financial Instruments®
{2010), \FRS10 ‘Consolidated Financial Staterments’, IFRS11 UJont
Arrangements’ IFRS12 ‘Disclosure of Interest in Other Entites’, IFRS13
‘Far Value Measurernent’, IAS27 (Revised), 1AS28 (Remised), Amendment
0 IFRS7, Amendment to 1AS1, Amendment to IAS12, Amendment

t0 IAS19 ‘Empicyee Benefits' and Armendment to 1AS32 have been
adopted by the EU The Group has not earty adopted any standard,
amandment or nterpratation

The standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected

o impact upon the Group are

* [FRS9 ‘Financial Instruments' 1s ikely 1o apply to the Group from
1 July 2015 The standard was reissued in October 2010 as the
second stap in the 1ASB project to replace IAS39 *Financial
Instruments  Recognition and Measurement’ IFRSS (2010) now
ncludes new requirements for classifying and measunng financial
assets and financial iabiities and the derecognition of financial
nstrumants The tASB 15 continuing the process of expanding IFRS9
to add new requirements for impairment and hedge accountng The
Group Is currently assessing the impact of the standard on the
Group's results and financial position and will continue to assess the
impact as the standard 1s revised by the IASB

+ IFRS10 ‘Consclidated Financial Statements’ wall apply to the Group
from 1 July 2013 The new standard was issued n May 2011 to
gstabhsh prnciples for the presentaton and preparation of consotidated
financial statements when an entity controls one or more other entities
The Group 1s currently assessing the impact of the standard on the
Group’s resuits and financial position

¢ [FRSH1 ‘Jont Arrangements’ will apply to the Group from 1 July 2013
The new standard was ssued n May 2011 and requires that a party
to ajont arangement determines the type of jont arrangement
in which it 15 nvolved by assessing its nghts and obligations and
accounts for those nghts and cbitgations in accordance with that type
of jont arrangement  The Group 1s currently assessing the impact
of the standard on the Group's results and financal postion

+ IFRS12 'Disclosure of Interest n Other Enthies’ will apply to the Group
from 1 July 2013 The new standard was ssued in May 2011 and
requires the disclosure of nformation that enables users of financial
statements to evaluate the naturs of, and nsks associated with, its
nterests m oiher entities and the effects of those nterests onits
financial position, financal performance and cash flows The Group
15 currently assessing the impact of the standard on the financlal
staternents of the Group

« IFRS13 ‘Far Vatue Measurement’ wilt appiy 10 the Group from 1 July
2013 The new standand was issued in May 2011 and defines far
value, sets out in a single IFRS a framework for measunng fair value
and requires disclosures about fair value measurements The Group
1 curmently assessing the impact of the standard on the Group's
results and financial postion

+ 1A527 (Rewvised) ‘Separate Fmancial Statements’ wall apply to the
Group from 1 July 2013 The Group s currently assessing the mpact
of tha amendment on the financial statemants of the Group

= 14528 Revised) ‘Investments i Associates and Jont Ventures' will
apply to the Group from 1 July 2013 The Group 1s currently assassing
the mpact of the amendment on the financial statements of the Group.

+ |AS19 (Revised) ‘'Employee Benefits” will apply to the Group from 1 July
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2013 it pnncipally revises existing accounting treatment for pensions
and other post-employment benefits and terminaiion benefits The
Group s cumently assessing the impact of the standard on the
Group’s results and financial position

* Amendment to IFRST 'Fmnancial Instrument Cisclosuras’ This amends
the disclosura requirements in respect of financal nstruments that are
set-off In accordance with guidance N 1AS32  Financial Instruments
Presentation’ The amendment apphes {o the Group from 1 January
2013 and 15 expected to impact upon the Group by requinng additonal
disclosurss i the annual financial statements

« Amendment to 1AS32 will apply to the Group fram 1 July 2014 This
amendment provides guidance on the application of offseting
in financial statements The Group 1s currently assessing the impact
of the standard on the Group's results and financial position

The adopton of the following standards, amendments and interpretations
1S not expected to have any matenal impact on the financial staternents
of the Group
* Amendment to IAS12 ‘Deferred tax Recovery of Undertying Assets’
prowides an exception 1o the generat pnnciples of 1AS12 for investment
property measured using the far value model in IAS40 ‘Investment
Property’ The amendment applies to the Group from 1 July 2012
and 1s not expected to have an impact on the Group
= Amendment to 1AS1 ‘Financial Statement Presentation’ will apply to the
Group from 1 Juty 2012 Ths amends the presentation of other
comprehensive ncome n the statement of comprehensve ncomea
The amendment s not expected to have matenal impact on the Group
» Amendment to IAS1 ‘Government Loans” (Armendments to IFRS1)
will apply to the Group from 1 January 2013 This amends IFRS1
‘First-ime Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards'
to address how a {irst-time adopter would account for a Government
loan with a bekow-market rate of nterest when transitoning to IFRSs
This amendment 1s not expected to impact the Group




CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES

OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

in accordance with the requirements of IFRS, the Group has detaied
below the crtrcal accounting judgements made and the key sources
of estimation uncertainty within these financial stalements

Critical accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are
descnbed in the accounting pohicies note, the Directors have made no
indrvicduat prdgements that have a significant impact upon the financial
staternents, apart from those nwvohing astimations, which are dealt
with below

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertanty at the balance sheet dates, are discussed below

Carrying valug of tand and work in progress

The Group's principal activity 15 housebulding and commercial
development The majonty of the development actmty 1s not contracted
pror to the development commencing Accordingly, the Group has

m its balance sheet at 30 June 2012 curent assets that are not covered
by a forward sale The Group’s intemal controls are designed to dentify
any developments whare the batance sheet value of land and work

in progress ts mora than the lower of cost or net realisable value

As a result of the dowmntum in the market n 2007/08 and continued
market uncertanhes, the Group conducts cngomg six-monthly reviews
of the net realisable valua of its land and work In progress Where the
estirnated net realisable value of the site was less than is current camying
value within the balance sheet, the Group has impaired the land and
work In progress vatus  The mception and utilisation of these provisions
15 sat out in the table below

impaiment charges and reversals of £31 5m 2011 £65 Om) In addition,
due to changes ansing from nommal trading, such as planning status,
there was a net inventory impauirrment charge of £6 6m (2011 £5 4m)
included within profit from operations  There was Cnil 2011 £nil) net
impairment for the commercial developments busness although there
were gross impaimment charges and reversals of £3 3m (2011 £12m)
due to performance vanations upon indwdual commercial sies

Excluding the operating impairment charge of £6 6m (2011 €5 4m),
included within gross profit is a charge of £6 7m (2011 benefit of £4 7m}
relating to the realisation of witten down mwentory above its onginalty
estmated net realisable value

The key judgements in thesa reviews were estimating the realisable value
of a site which s determined by forecast sales rates, expected sales
prices and estimated costs to complete Sales pnoes were estimatad

on a site-by-site basis based upon local market conditions and took

into account the cument pnces beng achieved upon each site for each
product type In addition, the estimation of future sales pnces Included

an allowance on a ste-by-site basis for low single digit sales pnce nflation
in future penods The estmation of costs to complete also included an
allowance for kow sngle digit build costs mfiation in future penods

At 30 June 2012 the Group had a totat land holding of £2,077 3m of
which £1,964 2m s land held for curent housing development  Of this
£319 7m1is made up from imparred land, £677 2m consists of non-
impared land purchased pnor to mid-2009 where the gross margin

15 on average ¢ 9%, and the remanmg £967 3m has an average gross
margin of around 20% based on current house pnces

In the past sx months, in general, the Group has not seen an Improverment
n undarlyng prces and has contnued to manage costs to achieve no

Houssbulding a£2$?£;ﬂ$ Tog  OVerelinet cost nfiation ¥ the UK housig markat were to change beyond
Year ended 30 Juns m m ¢m  Management expectations mn the future, N parbcutar with regards to the
Irmparment charged assumptons around likely sales prces and estimated costs to complete, |
2008 1572 5192 oog4  thenfurther adustments to the camyng value of land and work in progress i
2009 4315 650 4005  May berequred
2010 74 48 122
2011 54 _ 54 Theland held al the balance sheet date that has aready been impared
2012 66 _ 66 'S most sensitve to the jJudgements being applted and the potential for
Total 608 1 1240 7321 further mparment or reversal Forecasting risk also increases i relation
Impaiment utiised to those sites that are not expected to be realised i the short to
008 _ - — medumterm The Group's current forecasts indicate that, by volurme,
2009 o827 86 3 3400 around 36% of the impaired plots are expected to be realised within
2010 917 48 a5  Oneyear 23% between one and two years, and 41% in more than
2013 714 138 g5p twoyears
2012 701 5 706
Totat 4959 1054 6013 The Group estmates that the smparment sensitaty for the
Imparment remaining housebuldng business to an mmediate uruform fall in house prices
2008 572 512 soga  cross the UK, from those prevating as at 30 June 2012, 15 as follows
2009 3260 329 3589 Uniform fall in national house pces Indicative impainment
2010 2417 328 2746 % £m
2011 1757 191 1948 5 200
2012 122 186 1308 10 456

In 2012, this review resutted n £nil 2011 £ral) net exceptional imparment
charge for the housebuilding business Due to performance vanatons
upon ndmdual houssbuikding sites, there were gross exceptional

These estimates are dustrative as any changes in house prices have
Pistoncally tanded o be waightad either posidively Or negatively towards
particular gecgraphic regions of the UK, they exclude any senstimty upon
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our commercial developments segment in addiion, vanances in future
build cost nfiabion from that allowed for n the Group's base calcudation
woulkd impact upon the mpamment sensitvty The value of mparrment
1S pnor to attnbuting any tax credit that may accrue for future use

Estimatron of costs to complete

In order to determne the profit that the Group 1s able to recognise on its
developments n a specific penod, the Group has to allocate site-wide
development costs between units built n the cument year and n future
years [t also has to estimate costs to complete on such developments

in makmng these assessmernits thers 1$ a degres of nherent uncertainty
The Group has developed ntamal controls 10 255858 and review camying
values and appropnateness of eshmates made

Recognition of prohit where developments are accounted for under
1AS11 'Construction Contracts’

The Group applies its policy on contract accounting when recognisng
revenue and profit on partially completed contracts The application of this
policy requires judgements 1o be made i respect of the total expected
costs to compiete each site The Group has in place established ntemal
control processes to ensure that the evaluation of costs and revenues s
based upon appropnate estimates

impairment of goodwaill

The determination of the impaiment of goodwall of the housebulding
business requires an estimation of the value-n-use of the housebuilkding
cash-generating unit as defined n note 10 The vake-in-use calculation
requres an estimate of the future cash flows expected from the houssbuiding
business, meluding the anticipated growth rate of revenue and costs, and
requires the determination of a suttable dscount rate to calculate the present
value of the cash fiows The discount rate used 1s based upon the average
capital structure of the Group and current market assessments of the trme
value of money and nsks appropnate 1o the Group s houssbulding busness
Changes n these may impact upon the Group's discount rate n future
penods The carmying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2012 was £792 2m
with no impaiment recognised dunng the year ended 30 June 2012

Impairment of brands

The determination of the impairment calculation for the Group's mdefints
Ife brand, Dawvid Wilson Homes, requires an estmation of the value-in-use
of the brand as defined i note 11 The value-In-uss calcutabon requires
an estmats of the future cash flows expected from this trand as part

of the remew of the camying value of goodwil, including the anticipated
growth rate of revenue and costs, and requires the deterrrination of a
sutable discount rate 10 calculate the present value of the cash flows
The discount rate used 1S based upon the average capital structure of the
Group and current market assessments of the tme value of money and
nsks appropnate to the Group's housebuilding busness Changes n
these may impact upon the Group's discount rata in future penods The
camying amount of ndefinite ife brands at 30 Juneé 2012 was £100 Om
with no smpainment recognised dunng the year ended 30 June 2012

Deferred tax assets

A 30 June 2012 the Group recognised a net deferred tax asset of

£118 6m compnsng of gross deferrad tax assets of £148 3m and gross
deferred tax kabiities of £29 7m. £124 9m related (o losses that amose
during preceding years, predommnantly as a resutt of the refinancmg and
tand imparrments, that are to be camed forward and relieved aganst
profits ansing in future penods  The pidgement to recogrise the defered
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tax asset 1s dependent upon taxable profits ansng m the same company
as the losses onginally arose and the Group's expectabons regarding
future profitability »icludag ste rvenue and cost forecasts for future years
which contan a degree of nherent uncertarty

Defined benefit pansion scheme

The Directors engage a qualfied ndependent actuary to calcuiate the
Group's hability in respect of #s defined benefit pension scheme In
calcufating ths kability it 15 necessary for actuanal assumphons to be
made, which include discount rates, salary and pension iNncreases, prce
inflation, the long-term rate of retum upon scheme assets and mortality

As actual rates of ncrease and mortalty may difer from those assurmed,
the pension kabiity may differ from that ickuded n these fimancial statements

Hedge accounting

The magonty of the Group's facilites are ficating rate, which exposes the
Group to ncreased interest rate nsk The Group has in place £192 0m
(2011 £192 Om) of ficating-to-fixed interest rate swaps The Group has
adopted hedge accounting for these swaps on the basis that it 1s highty
probable that there is sufficent forecast debt to match with the penod

of swaps If this basis was nct met n future then any changes In far value
of the swaps wouid be recognised n the iIncome statement, rather than
n equity Duning the year ended 30 June 2012, there was a loss of

£16 6m (201 gan of £6 1m) ncluded in equity related to these swaps

In adation, the Group has 5267 2m 2011 $267 2m) of cross currency
swaps to manage the cash flow nsks related to foreign exchange,
ansing from the Group's sources of US Dollar denominated finance
These swaps are designated as a cash flow hedge aganst future foreign
exchange rate moverrents If the hedges ceased to be highly sffectve
then any changes in fair value of the swaps would be recogrised in the
ncome statement, rather than equity Dunng the year ended 30 June
2012, there was a gan of £4 6m (2011 loss of £8 2m) inciuded n equity
related to these swaps

Avallable for sale financial assets

The Group holds available for sale financial assets pnncipally compnsing
interast free loans granted as part of sales fransactions that are secured
by way of a second legal charge on the respective property The loans
are held at far value The farr value caiculation requires an estimate

of the future cash flows expected from the redemption of Interest free
loans, nciuding an estimate of the market value of the property at the
estimated time of repayment, and requires the determenation of a
suntable discount rate to calcutate the present vatue of the cash flows
The estimated market value 1s based on onginal sefling pnees, local
market condibions with an allewance for low single digt sales pnce
inflaton The estimated repayment profile s based on histoncal data

for first time buyers seling ther property The discount rate used 1§
consistent with the interest rate payable on a third party second charge
loan of a similar amount and duration Changes i these may impact
upon the Group's discount rate in future periods At 30 June 2012 the
asset recognised on the balance shest was £189 2m {2011 £169 4rr)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Revenue

An analysis of the Group's revenue s as follows

2012 2011

Notes £m m

Sale of goods 21623 18685
Contract accountng revenug 1611 1669
Revenue as stated in the iIncome statement 23234 20354
Lease Income 31 34 41
Finance ncome 5 169 180
Forfeit deposits 05 14
Other income 166 125
Total revenue 2,360 8 20714

Sale of goods inchides £448 9m (2011 £373 im) of revenue generated where the sale has been achieved using part-exchange incentves

Procaeds received on the disposal of part-exchange propertes, which are not ncluded m revenue, were £271 5m (2011 £198 2m}

2. Segmental analysis

The Group consssts of two separate segments for management reporting and control purposes, being housebuikiing and commercial
dovelopments The segments are considered appropnate for reporting under IFRSS ‘Operating Segments’ since these segments are regularty
reviewed intemalty by the Group Board without further significant categonsation The Group présents its prmary segment information on the

basis of these operating segments As the Group operates mn a single geographic market, Bntain, no secondary segmentation 1s provided

House- Commercial 2m2 House- Comrnerctal 2011
bulichng  developments Total buiding developments Totai
Units Units Units Units Unis Urils
Residential completions 12,637 - 12,637 11,078 - 11078
Income statement em £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 2,286 8 366 2,323 4 19862 492 20354
Cost of sales {1,997 7} {29 5) {2,027 2) (1,764 4) 432 {1.8076)
Gross profit 2891 71 296 2 2218 60 2278
Admmustrative expenses before
resiructunng costs {99 5) (5 6} {105 1) (B7 6} 52) {82 8)
Profit from operations before restructunng costs 1896 15 1911 134 2 08 1350
Restructunng costs - - - 77) - @7
Profit from operations 1896 15 1911 1265 08 1273
Shiare of post-tax profitfloss) from joint ventures
and assocates 07 {0 3) 04 01 - 01
Loss on re-measuremsnt of joint venture
miterest on acqusition of control (10 7) - (107} - — -
Profit from operatrons ncluding post-tax profit/
{oss) from joint ventures and associates 1796 12 180 8 126 6 08 1274
Finance mcome 169 180
Financa costs - non exceptionat 977) {110 4)
Finance costs — exceptional - {46 5)
Profitfloss) before tax 1000 {115)
Tax {32 6) 23)
Profitf{ioss) for the year from
continuing operations 674 {13 8}
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2 Segmental analysis (continued)

House- Commercial 202 House- Commercal 201%

building developments Total budding devaloprments Total

Balance sheet £m £m £m £m £m &m
Segment assets 4,443 5 795 4,5230 45495 1010 46505
Elmination of ntercompany balances (39 2) (94 3)
4,483 8 4,556 2

Deferred tax assets 1186 1432
Current tax assats 04 32
Cash and cash equivalents 150 3 727
Consohdated total assets 47531 47753
Segment habilities (1,437 Q) (38 2) (1,475 2) (1,480 0 (42 8) {1,522 8)
Elimination of Intercorpany balances 392 943
{1,436 0) {1,428 5)
Loans and borrowngs (343 3) {416 7)
Consolidated total habiibes (1,779 3) (1,845 2)
Other information £m £m £m £m m £m
Capital addibons 20 04 24 Q7 - 07
Depreciaton 15 01 16 17 01 18

3 Exceptional items
In the ysar ended 30 June 2012 there was the following exceptional dem

Loss on re-measurement of joint venture nterest on acquistion of control

in 2006 the Group entered Mo & joint venture agreement to develop sites in Greater Manchester mcluding one in Hattersley The Group's joint
venturg partner went mto liquidation in March 2012 and on 9 May 2012 the Group acquired their share for £1 As required by IFRS3 (Revised)
‘Business Combinations’ the Group has disposad of its share in the joint venture entities and acquired the entities as subsidianes resulting in
an exceptionatioss of £10 7m Further details are prowided in note 32

In the year endad 30 June 2011 there were the following exceptional tems
Amended financing arrangements
The Group agreed a complete debt refinancing package n May 2011 and ncurred costs of £46 5m compnsing of refinancing fees of £8 6m,

accelerated amortisation of previously capitalised refinancing fees of £8 1m and interest rate swap cancellations and adjustments of £29 8Bm

Restructuring costs
The Group incurred £7 7m of costs in refation to reorganising and restructunng the business, including redundancy costs of £3 7m
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4. Profit from operations
Profit from operations 15 stated after chargngAcrediing)

202 201
Notes £m m
Staff costs 8 2390 2050
Government grants (180 373
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 16 18
Lease ncome 3t (34) a1
Operating leasa chargas
- hirg of plant, machinery and vehicles 176 127
— gther 127 111

Staff costs in 2012 include all short-term employes benefits N accordance with IAS19 *Employee Benefits', wiich includes healthcare, car costs
and fliexable benefits

Government grants of £8 3m 2011 £16 8m) were receved in the year refating to Govemment nitiatives mcluding the National Affordable Housing
Programme, Affordable Homes Programme and Kickstart Grant ncoma of £18 Om (2011 £37 3m) was recognised in the Income statement i

relation to house sales completed under these mitiatves

Adminstrative expenses before exceptional costs of £105 1m (2011 £92 8m} ncludes sundry ncome of £17 1m (2011 £13 9m) which s disclosed
wathn other revenue in note 1

Profit from operations 1s stated after charging the Direclors’ emoluments disclosed m the Remuneration report on page 63 and in note 8

The remuneration pad to Deloiite LLF, the Group's prncipal auditor, 18 disclosed below

2012 2011
Auditor's remuneration £000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Parent Company
and consobdated financial statements 65 65
The audit of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 235 235
Total fees for audit of the Company and its subsidianes 300 300
Cther services pursuant 1o legslabon 50 50
Other senaces relating to tax 181 167
Corporate finance services 139 -
Other senaces 58 37
Total fees for other services 428 254
Total fees relatad to the Company and its subsidranes 728 554

Deloitta LLP was apponted as the Group's pnncipal tax adviser i the pror year Auditor objectvity and independence 1 considered in the Report
of the Directors (see page 50}

Corporate finance services related to property advice provided in relation to certam pieces of land held by the Group Other services pursuant to
legislation comprise the reviews of ntenm financiat statements In the years anded 20 June 2012 and 30 June 2011, other services manly compnsed
adwisory services related 1o significant transactions including new joint venture agreements and other accounting advice

In addition to the remuneration paid 10 the Group's prncipal auditor, Deloitte LLP, for services related to the Company and its subsidanes, Deloitte
LLP recerved the followng remuneration from joint ventures in which the Group participates

2012 201t
£000 £000
The audit of the Company’s jont ventures pursuant to legisiaiion 54 40
Other services - _
Total fees related to jotnt ventures 54 40
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5 Net finance costs
Recogrised in income statement

2012 2011

Notes £m m
Finance income on short-term bank deposits {01) (12}
Imputed interest on availabte for sale financial assets 15 (12 0) {136}
Finance income related to employee benefits 26 12) -
Other interest recevable {3 6) {32)
Finance income {16 9) {18 G}
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 489 4862
Imputed nterest on deferred term land payables 288 276
Finance costs related 10 employee benelits 26 - 09
Amounts raclassified to the Income staternent in respect of hedged cash flows 29 51 285
Foreign exchange lossesfgans) on US Dollar debt 8 40 7
Amortisation of facility fees 35 62
Imputed nterest on Kicksian equsty funding 02 09
Other intergst payable 76 71
Finance costs before exceptional items 977 1104
Net finance costs before exceptional tems 808 924
Exceptional finance costs
Hedging termination costs - 298
Write-off of previous facility unamortised fees = 81
Other fees refated to amendment of financmg arrangsments - 86
Exceptronal finance costs 3 - 465
Total finance costs 977 1569
Net finance costs 808 1389
Recogrised in equity

2012 2011

Notes £m £m
Amaounts deferred in respect of effectve cash flow hedges 29 211 2386
Total fair value losses on cash flow swaps included tn equity 211 236
Amounts reclassiiied 1o the Income staterment in respect of hedged cash flows 29 (51) {28 §)
Amounts reclassified to the mcome staternent in respect of hedged cash flows no longer
expacted to ocour - exceptional 29 - {29 8)
Total fair value losses on cash flow swaps transferred to equity (51} (58 3)

6 Financial instruments gains and losses

The net {gains) and lossas reconded in the consolidated ncome statement, N respect of financial nstruments {excluding mterest shown in note 5)

were as follows
2012 2011

Notes £m £m
Loans and recewvables
Imparment of trade recenables 18 24 23
Available for sale financial assets
Net loss transferred on sale 03 08
Net mpanment of avalable for sale financial assets 15 18 163
Other financtal habilities
Foreign exchange losses/Agams) on US Doliar debt 40 Q)
Transfers {from)/to hedged tems
Transfer {fromiAo equity on currency cash fiow hedges {4 0} 70
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7 Tax
Analysis of the tax charge for the year

2012 2011
Notes £m £m
Current tax
UK comoration tax for the year (0 9) -
Adustment in respect of previous years 02 (105)
{11 {105)
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of termporary differences 273 44
Adustment in respect of previous years (2 3} 76
Impact of reduction in corporation tax rate 87 96
16 337 128
Tax ¢charge for the year 326 23

In addition 1o the amount charged to the ncome statement, a net deferred tax credit of £10 3m (2011 charge of £17 7m) was recogrused directly

N equity (note 16

Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
The tax rate assessed for the year 1§ higher {2011 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 25 5% (2011 27 5%)

The differences are explained below

2012 2011
£m £m

Profit/{loss) before tax 1000 (115}
Profit/loss) before tax multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax of 25 5% (2011 _27 5%) 255 (32
Effects of

QOther tems including non-deductible expenses - 04
Loss on re-measurament of jomt venture interest on acquisition of control 27 -
Additional tax relief for land remediation costs (2 0} {i7)
Adustment in respect of previous years {2 5) 29)
Taxn respect of jant ventures 02) 1)
Tax on share-based payments 04 02
Impact of change in {ax rate on deferred tax asset 87 96
Tax charge for the year 326 23

Legrslation reducing the mam rate of corporation fax to 24% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012 was substantvely enacted on 29 March 2012 Accordingly,
the current year tax charge has been prowided for at an effective rate of 25 5% and the closing deferred tax asset has been provided for &t a rate of

24% i these financial statements

An additional reduction n the mam rata of corporation tax from 24% to 23% with effect fram 1 Apnl 2013 was enacted within the Fmance Act 2012 on
17 July 2012 As this reducton was ot substantvely enacted by the balance sheet date, its effect has not been reflectad n these financal statements

A further reduction i the mam rate of conporation tax of 1% to 22% on 1 Apnl 2014 has been announced by the Government but has not yet been

substantvely enacted, therefore its effect has not been reflected in thess financial stataments

If the deferred tax assets and habilitios of the Group were all to reverse after 2014, the effect of the reducton from 24% to 22% would be to reduce
the net deferred tax asset by £09m To the extent that the net deferred tax asset reverses more quckly than this, the impact of the rate reductions

on the net deferred tax asset will be reduced
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8 Key management and employees

Key management personnel, as defined under 1AS24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, have been dentified as the Board of Directors as the controls
operated by the Group ensure that at key decisions are reserved for the Board Detailed disciosures of Dectors’ ndmdual remuneration, pension
enttlernents and share options, for those Dirsctors who served dunng the year, are given in the audiled sections of the Remuneration report on
pages 53 to 66 which form part of these financial statements A summary of key management remuneration is as foliows

2012 20M

£m £m

Salangs and fees (including penston compensation) 28 28
Social secunty costs 08 07
Performance bonus 21 10
Benefits 01 01
Share-based payments 19 —
68 46

Group

2012 2011

Number Number

Average staff numbars (excluding subconiractors, ncluding Directors) 4,451 4,405
Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes £m £ £m m

Wages and salanes including bonuses (including Direclors) 2061 174 4 160 159
Redundancy costs 3 06 37 03 Q6
Social secunty costs 225 191 15 19
Cther pension costs 26 67 64 05 06
Share-based payments 28 31 14 08 {01)
Total staff costs 4 2390 2050 1940 189

Staff costs n 2012 nclude al short-tenm employee benefits n accordance with IAS19 Employee Banefits', which ncludes healthcare, car costs and

flexible benefits

9, Earmings/(loss) per share

Basic samings/loss) per share is calculated by dviding the profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of £67 4m (2011 loss of £13 8m)
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year, excluding those held by the Employee Benefit Tnust which are treated

as cancelled which was 963 9m 2011 961 4m).

Dituted eamings per share is cakculated by dmding the profit for the year attnbutable to ordimary sharsholders of £67 4m by the wesghted average number
of ordnary shares m issue adusted 10 assume conversion of all potentially diltive share options from the start of the year, gving a figure of 979 6m
shares Thera was no difference between the basic and diluted loss per share for the Group In the prior year as the Group was loss making

The eamings/loss) per share from continuing operations wers as follows

2012 204
pence pence
Basic samngsAloss) per share 70 (1 4)
Adusted bagic gamings per share 81 27
Diluted eamings/floss) per share 69 {14)
Adusted diuted eamings per share 80 27
The calculation of basic, diuted, adjusted basic and adjusted diuted eamings/loss) per share 1s based upon the following data
Basic Diluted
202 2012 202 201 20m
£m pence pence fm penca
Profit/loss) for basic and diluted loss per share 674 70 69 {138) (14)
Add excephonal finance costs - - - 465 48
Add excephonal loss on disposal of jont veniture 107 11 11 - -
Add exceptional restructunng costs - - - 77 08
Less tax effect of above items - - - (149) S
Earmungs for basic and adjusted diluted eamings per share 781 81 80 255 27
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9 Earnings/{loss) per share (continued) !
Eamings/losses) are adjusted, removing exceptional finance costs, exceptional loss on disposal of joint venture, exceptonal restructunng costs
and the related tax to reflect the Group's undertying profitfloss)

10. Goodwill

Group

m

Cost
At 1 July 2010, 30 June 2011 and 30 Jung 2012 8167
Accumutated impairment losses
At 1 July 2010, 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2012 245
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2012 792 2

The Group's goodwill has a carrying value of £792 2m relating to the housebuiding segment The goodwill retating to the commercial developments
segment, with cost of £24 5m, was fully mpared in the year ended 30 June 2008

The Group conducts an annual imparrment review of goodwill and intangibles together for both the housebuliding and commercial developments
segments The Impaimment review was performed at 30 June 2012 and compared the value-in-use of the housebuilding segment with the carrying
value of its tangible and intangible assets and allocated goodwilt The Group allocates any identified imparment first to goodwll and then to assets
on a pro-rata basis, which in the case of the Group s ts ntangible assets and property, plant and equiprment

The valug-n-use was determined by discounting the expected tuture cash flows of the housebuilding segment The first two years of cash flows
were determined using the Group's approved detailed site-by-site business plan The cash flows for the third to fifth years were determined using
Group leve! intemal forecasted cash flows based upon axpected volumes selling prces and marging, taking mto account avalable land purchases
and work In progress levels The cash flows for year sx onwards were extrapoiated n parpetuity using an estimated growth rate of 2 5%, which was
based upon the expected long-term growth rate of the UK economy

The kay assumphions for the value-in-use calculabons werg

* Discount rate this 15 a pre-tax rate refiecting current masket assessments of the tme value of money and nsks appropnate to the Group's
housebulding busness Accardingly the rate of 12 9% (2011 12 3%) 1s considered by the Directors to ba the appropnate pre-tax nsk adusted
discount rate being the Group’s estimated long-term pre-tax weighted average cost of caputal This rate used in the 30 June 2012 mpairment
review is calculated using the average capital structure of the Group dunng the financial vear, consistent with the pnor year, due to the cychcality
of the Group's borrowng requirements

» Expecied changes n seling prces for completed houses and the related smpact upon operating margin these are determined on a site-by-site
bass for the first two years dependent upon local market conditions and product type For years thrae 1o five these have been estmated at
a Group lavel based upon past expenence and expactations of future changes in the market taking nto account extenal market forecasts

« Sales volumes these are detarmined on a site-by-site basis for the first two years depsndent upon local market conditions, land avaltability
and planning permissions For years three to five these have been estimated at a Group level based upon past expensnce and expectations
of future changes in the market taling into account external marlet forecasts

» Expected changes i site costs to complete these are determned on a site-by-site basis for the first two years dependent upon the expected
costs of complating all aspects of each indmiduat development Including any additional costs that are expected to occur due to the business being
on an ndvidual development sita for longer due to curment market conditions For years three to five these have been esimated at a Group level
based upon past expenence and expectations of future changes in the market talkuing nto account extemal market forecasts

The conclusion of this Impairment review was that the Group's goodwll related to the housebulkling segment was not impaired

The mpairment review of goodwill and intangible assets at 30 June 2012 was based upon current expectations regarding sales volumes, expected
changes In seling prices and site costs to complete in the uncertain condiions withn the UK housing market and used a discount rate consdered
appropnate to the position and fisks of the Group The resuit of the iImpaiment review was that the recoverable value of goodwill and mtangible
assets exceeded its carrying value by £379 1m (2011 £428 5my)

if the UK housing market and expectations regarding its future were to detenorate with either operating margms reducng by 1 0% per annum
(2011 1 5% per annum) or the appropnate discount rate were to Increase by 10% 2011 10%) and alf other vanables were held constant then
the recoverable value of goodwill and ntangible assets would equal its carrying value Further information is given in Cntical Accounting
Judgements and Key Sources of Estmation Uncertanty on page B6
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11 Other intangible assets

Group
Brands
£m
Cost
At 1 July 2010, 30 June 2011 and 30 Jung 2012 1070
Amortisation
At 1 July 2010, 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2012 70
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2011 and 30 Juneg 2012 1000
Brands

The Group does not amortise the housebulding brand acquired with Wilson Bowden, beng Dawid Wilson Homes, valued at £100 0m, as the Directors
consider that this brand has an ndefinite useful economic lfe due to the fact that the Group ntends to hold and support the brand for ant indefinite
penod and there are no factors that would prevent it from doing so

The Group tests indefinite Iife brands annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are Indications that they rmight be mpaired At 30 June 2012
an impairment review was conducted using the calculations and assumphons as explained mn note 10 The conclusion of this Impaiment review was
that the Group's David Wilson Homes brand was not impared

The brand of Wilson Bowden Developments (valued at £7 0m pnor to amortisation) was being amortised over ten years as (tis a busness-to-business
brand operating i niche markats Following an impairment review at 30 June 2008, the Wison Bowden Developments brand was fully impaired

Further information 1s gnven in Cnitical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertanty on page 88

12. Property, plant and equipment

Plant and Group Plantand Company
Property equipment Total Property equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 July 2010 100 103 203 0B 48 56
Additons - 07 07 o1 - 01
Transfers (24 24 - - - -
Disposals - (t4) (14) - - -
Al 30 Junse 2011 76 120 196 09 48 57
Additions - 24 24 - 10 10
Disposals - 19} {19} - - -
At 30 June 2012 76 125 201 09 58 67
Depreciation
At 1 July 2010 38 98 136 08 37 45
Charge for the year 04 14 i8 01 04 05
Transfers 05 05 - - - -
Disposals - (14 {1 4) - - —
At 30 June 2011 37 103 140 o)) 41 50
Charge for the year 04 12 16 - 05 05
Disposals - {19) {19} - - -
At 30 June 2012 41 96 137 09 46 55
Net book vatue
At 30 June 2011 39 i7 56 — 07 o7
At 30 June 2012 35 29 64 — 12 12

Authonsed future captal expenditure that was contracted but not provided for i these financial statements amounted to £0 1m 2011 £ni).
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13 Investments accounted for using the equity method
Dunng the year the Group entared nto two new ont venture arrangements The Aldgats Place Limited Partnership and Aldgate Place (GP) Limited

The Group equity accounts for jointly controfied entities The Group has significant interests in the following jontly controlled entities

Joint venture Parcentage owned Country of registration Pningipal activity
Barratt Wates (Horley) Limited’ 78 5% England and Wales Housebuilding
Ravenscraig bimited? 33 3% Scotland Commercial development
DWH/Wates (Thame) Limited 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding
Bamatt Metropolitan LLP 80 0% England and Wales Housebulding
Wandsworth Parkside LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding
Alig Street LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebulding
Queensland Road LLP S00% England and Wales Housebuiding
Bamatt Wates (East Gnnstead) Limited? 50 0% England and Wales Holding Company
Barratt Wates (East Gnnstead) No 2 Limited* 50 0% England and Wales Housebuiding
Barratt Osbome Worthing LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding
Barratt Osbome Bexley LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housabuildng
The Aldgate Place Limited Parinership 50 0% England and Wales Housebulding
Aldgate Place (GP) Limited 50 0% England and Wales Holding Company

Barratt Wates {Horley) Limited s classified as & xnt veriuns a3 the Group has equal control with one other jont ventune parner

'
2 g Limited s classiiec 23 & i veniure s iha Griun has equal eontrol and ownershp parcentages with two jont venture pariners
T On2i November 2011 APCA Liméed changed ds nam it Barratt Watkea (East Grnstead) Limited

4 On 2l November 2011 Baran East Grnstead) Lmded changed tsnarme i Barratt Weces. (East Grrstenach No.2 Limutsd Barratt Wates (East Grrestead) No.2 Limited 13 8 wholy owred subscary of Barratt Waies [Exst Grrstead) Lemited

The Group equity accounts for nvestments N associates The Group has significant nterests in the following associates

Asgociate Percentage cwned Country of registration Principal activity
BKY LLP 33 3% England and Wales Holding Company
New Tyne West Development Company LLP! 16 7% England and Wales Housebuilding

1 New Tyre Weat Daveroprment Comparty LLP & classi5ed a8 an associate as the Group exerts signiicant infenca over the entily 23 pert f the BKY LLP arrangemants

BKY LLP and New Tyne West Development Company LLP prapare financial statements to 31 December which 1s non-cotermnous with the Group

Joint ventures and assoclates
Group
2m2 201
Notes £m £m
At 1 July 1028 799
Net increase in mvestments in jomt ventures 76 28
Net increase in nvestments n associates 03 -
Disposal of joint ventura interest on acquisition of control 32 (25 5) -
Share of post-tax profit for the year from joint ventures 05 01
Share of post-tax loss for the year from associales {01) -
At 30 June 856 1028
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13. Investments accounted for using the equrty method (continued)

In 2006 the Group entered nto a pont venture agreement to develop sites in Greater Manchester ncluding one in Hattersley The Group's joint
venture partner went nto iquidation in March 2012 and on 9 May 2012 the Group acquired the remaining 50% equsty n Base Regeneration and

its subsidianes, Base East Central Rochdale LLP, Base Hatlersiey LLP and Base Wemeth Oldham LLP for £1 Therefore, in accordance with IFRS3
{Revised) ‘Business Combinahons' the ‘Group’ has disposad of its share in the jont venture and acquired the entiies as subsichangs resulting In an
exceptional loss of £10 7m Further details are provided in note 32

In relation 1o the Group's interests in joint ventures, the Group's share of assets and iabilities of the joint ventures s shown below

Group
2012 2013
£m £m
Current assets 1139 1086
Non-current assets 06 -
Current liabilibies {13 0} (355
Non-current liabihes (101 3) B827)
Net assets/Ahabilities) of joint ventures 02 06)

The Group has made loans of £83 6m (2011 £111 0m) to s jont ventures which are moiuded wathin Group rwestments accounted for usng the equity
method Included withn the Group's share of net assets/{iabiites) of jont ventures 1s a proportion of koans 1o the jont ventures calculated usng the
Group's ownearship share of £82 4m (2011 £96 4m)

The Group's share of the joint ventures' ncome and expenses during the year s shown below

Group

2012 2011

£m £m

Income 326 180
Expensas (313 {i73)
13 07
Tax (0 8) {0 6)
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 05 01

During the year the Group entered nto a number of transactions with its jont ventures n respect of funding and development management sarvices
{with charges made based on the utilsation of these services) n addition to the prowvision of construction senices Further details on these transactions
are provided in note 34 The Group has a number of contingent labilines relating to1its joint ventures Further details on these are provided m note 33

Associates
In relation 1o the Group's nterests in associates, the Group's share of assets and liabilities of the associates Is an asset of £0 3m at 30 June 2012
2011 Crd) The Group's share of the associates’ expenses dunng the year was £0 1m (2011 £nil).

The Group has made loans of £0 3m (2011 €ni to its associates, which are ncluded within the Group rvestments accounted for using the equity
method Further details of transactions with associates are provided mn note 34

The Group has coniingent kabiities relating 10 its associates Further details on these are provided in nole 33
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14. Investments

Company
2012 2011
£m £m
Cost
At 1 Juty 26753 26730

([Dacreasa)increase In Investment n subsichanes related to share-based payments

37} 23

At 30 June

2,671 6 26753

Impairment

At 1 July and 30 Jung

576 576

Net book value

At 1 July

26177 26154

At 30 June

26140 26177

The subsidiary undertakings which pnncipally affected profits and net assets of the Group were

Subsldiary Percentage owned Country of registration Principal activity

BDW Trading Limited 100% England and Wales Housebuilding and development
BOW East Scotland Lirnited 100% Scotland Housebuilding and development
David Wilson Homes Limited 100%" England and Wales Housebuilding and development
Wilson Bowden Developments Limited 100%" England and Wales Commercial development

Cwned hnough ancther Group com pany
A full list of subsidiary undertakings s avallable on request from the Company’s registered office

15, Available for sale financial assets

Group

2012 2011

Notes £m £m

A1 July 169 4 136 3
Additions 277 4086
Disposals 47 73
Imputed interest 5 120 136
Net impairment taken through income statement 5} {11 8} {16 3)
Faur value adjustment taken through other comprehensive ncome (34) 25
At 30 June 189 2 169 4

Avalable for sals financial assets pnncipally compnse nterest free loans which are granted as pant of sales transactions and for which the cash flows
recenvable are based on the value of the property at redemption These loans are secured by way of a second legal chargs on the respective property
{after the first mortgage) These koans are held at the prasent value of expectad future cash flows taking nto account the estmated rmarket value of the
property at the estimated time of repayment The ncome statement includes a net impaimment of £11 8m (2031 £16 3m) n cost of sales

The present value of expected future cash flows is calcutated using a discount rate consistent with the interest rate payable ona third party second
charge loan of a similar amount and duration This 1s considered to be the most appropriate rate as the interest free loans are similar in nature to
second chargs loans offered by third party financial nstitutions The averags discount rate used for year ended 30 June 2012 was 7 5% (2011 70%)
The movement in the discount rate dunng the year has resuited n a far vatue adustment debil which has been iaken through other comprehensive

income of £3 4m (2011 credit £2 5m)

The estimated far value 15 based on onginal seling pnces jocal market condiions with an allowance for low smgle digit sales pnce mflation
The Group has also used ndependent valuation specialists to review and assess the estmaied porifolo value

The repayment profile used to calculate the iming of future cash flows 1s based on hustorical data for first time buyers selling their property

The net Imparment of the available for sale financial assets taken through the ncome staterent relates to borrower default ncliding an estimate
mada for losses ncurred that have not yet been reportad to the Group by the home owner or the first charge provider and the impact of the decine

m UK housa pncas on the present value of the estimated future cash flows of these assets

Further disclosures relating to financial assets are set out n note 22 and note 25())
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16 Deferred tax

The Group recogrused a deferred tax asset/fiability) with the following movements n the ysar

Peansion Share Tax Other

scheme options losses Hedging Brands ACA {net} Total
Group £m £m fm £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 July 2010 129 18 1767 191 (280) 12 (10 4} 1733
Income statement {chargelcredit 32 - {197) - 20 04 BS5 {128}
Acquired - - - — - - 04 04
Amounis taken directly to equity {6 6} - - (10 4) - - 07} (177)
At 30 June 2014 31 18 1570 87 260 08 (22) 1432
Income statement {charge)/credit {0 3} {C 6) {36 4) - 20 04 i2 (337)
Acquirad - - - - - - (12) 12
Amounts taken directly to equity 24 0 4) 43 32 - - 08 103
At 30 June 2012 52 08 124 9 119 {24 0) 12 {14) 1186

It 15 not anticipated that any of the defered tax kabilty In respect of brands wall reverse in the twelve months following the balance sheet date Whilst
it 1 anbieipated that an element of the remaining deferred tax assets and labiities will reverse dunng the twelve months following the balance sheet

date, at present it 1s not possible to quantify the value of these reversals

In addition 10 the above the Group has not recorded a deferred tax asset of £6 4m (2011 £5 6m) in respect of capital and other losses because

these are not considered recoverable in the foresesable future

The Company recogrised a deferred tax asset with the following moverments in the year

Pension Share Tax
scheme options logses Headging ACA Other Total
Company £m £m fm £m £m £m £m
At 1 July 2010 129 02 478 191 0B 02 808
Income statement {charge)credit 32 {01 (129) - 01) 11 (152
Amounts taken directly to equity (6 B} 01 - {10 4) - - {16 9)
At 30 June 2011 31 02 349 87 05 13 487
Income statement {charge)/credit {03) {0 2) {5 3) - (01} 07 52}
Amounts taken directly to equity 24 - - 32 - - 56
At 30 June 2012 52 - 296 g 04 20 491
All deferred tax relates to the United Kingdom and 1s stated on a net basts as the Group has a legally enforceable nght {o set-off the recognised
amounts and intends to settle on a net basis
The deferred tax asset recogrised compnsas
Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
Noles £m £m £m £m
Pension scheme 26 52 31 52 31
Hedging 19 87 19 87
Losses 124 9 1570 296 349
Share options 08 18 - 02
Other itemns, including capstal allowances 55 48 24 18
Deferred tax assets 1483 175 2 491 487
Brands {24 0) (26 0) - -
Other items 57) B0 - -
Deferred tax abilibes (28 7) {320) - -
Net deferred tax asset 118 6 143 2 491 487
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17 Inventones

Group

2012 2011

£m £m

Land held for development 20773 21897
Construction work In prograss 1,065 5 1,023 2
Part-exchange properties 802 789
Other inventories 36 50

32266 32068

a) Nature of inventones

The Bwectors consider all nventonss to be essentally current n naturg although the Group's operational cycle 15 such that a proportion of nventones
will not be reaised withint twelve months It 15 not possible to determine with accuracy when specific inventory wilt be realised as this will be subject
to a number of vanables such as consumer dernand and planning permission delays

b) Impairment of mventories

At 30 June 2012 the Group reviewed the net realisabile value of 1s land and work 1n progress carrying values of its sites The impaument review
compared the estimated future net prasent realisable vaiue of development sites with ther balance sheet canying value This review resulted in £ni
(2011 £nil) net exceptional imparrment charge for the housabudding business Due to performance vanations upon ndidual housebulding sites,
there wers gross excepbonal imparment charges and reversals of £31 5m (2011 £65 O} In addibon, due 1o changes ansing from nomal trading,
such as planning status, there was a net nventory impament charge of £6 6m {2011 £5 4m) mcluded within profit from operations There was £nil
(2011 £nd) net mparment for the commercial developments business, although there were gross impaimment charges and reversals of £3 3m
(2011 £12m) due to performance vanations upon indvidual commercial sites

The key udgaments in these reviews were estimating the realisable value of a site which 15 determined by forecast sales rates, expected sales
prices and estimated costs to complete Sales prces were estimated on a site-by-siie basis based upon local market condibions and took Into
account the current prices being achieved upon each site for each product type In additon, the estimation of fulure sales pnces included an
allowance on a site-by-site basis for low sngle digit sales price nflation in future penods The estimation of costs to complate also included an
allowance for low single digit build cost inflation in future penods Further mformation regarding these judgements 1s Included within the Critcal
Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertanty section on page 85

In the past s months, N general, the Group has not seen an improvement N underfying pneas and has continued to control overall cost nflation
If the UK housmg market were to change beyond management expectations in the future, n particular with regards to the assumptions around likely
sales pnces and estimated costs to complate, then further adjustments 1o the carmying value of land and work in progress may be required

Followng these impairments £607 5m (2011 £793 1m) of nventones are valued a1 far value less costs to sell rather than at histoncal cost

¢) Expensed inventones

The value of rventones expensed in 2012 and nciuded in cost of sales was £1,900 5m (2011 £1,686 7m) ncludng £18 8m (2011 £11 8m) of rvantory
write-downs incurrad n the course of normal trading and a reversal of Enil 2011 £0 4mj) on mveniones that were witten down N a previous accountng
penod, but excluding the £nil (2011 £nily exceptonal imparment and £6 6m (2011 £5 4m) operating impamment

The valus of nventories wntten down and recognised as an expense in 2012 {otalled £25 4m (2011 £17 2m), being the £6 6m 2011 £5 4m)
operating impaiment and £18 8m 2011 £11 8m) ncurred n the nonmal course of trading

d) Company
The Company has no inventones
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18 Trade and other recevables

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m fm £m

Non-current assets
Other recenvables 41 57 - -
41 57 - -

Current assets

Trade recenvables 346 439 - -
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings - - 556 4 7807
Other recevables 84 g4 05 03
Prepayments and accrued :ncoms 73 54 11 08
503 587 5§58 0 7818

Trade and other recevablas are non-interest heanng and the Group has no concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number
of debtors Of the year end trade recenables the following were overdue but not impaired

Group

2012 201

Ageing of overdue but not imparred recemvables £m m
Less than three months 43 35
Greater than three months 21 29

The carrying values of trade and other receivables are stated after the following allowance for doubtful recervables

Group

2012 2011

Notas £m £m

At 1 July ] 30
Charge for the year 6 24 23
Uncoftectible amounts wniten off net of recovenss 27 (15)
At 30 June 35 38

The allowance for doubtful recervables consists of ndvduatly impasred trade recenvables which are in default The impairment recogrised in cost
of sales represents the difference between the carrying amount of these trade recevables and the present value of any expected recovenas

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances

The Directors consuder that the camying amount of trade recenvables approxmates to therr far value

Further disclosures relating to financial assets are set out in note 22

100 » BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2012




19 Trade and other payables

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m

Non-current kabilities
Land payables 358 0 3516 - -
Other payables 14 09 - -
3594 3525 - -

Current liabilities

Trade payables 2014 3038 28 30
Land payables 3681 3491 - -
Accruals and deferred mcome 2894 3028 N9 367
Other tax and social secunty 15 15 - -
Other payablas 515 700 — -
1,001 9 1,0272 347 397

Accruals and deferred meorme ncludes a £0 7m (2011 £1 8m) social secunty accnual relating to share-based payments (note 28)
Total payables nclude £284 7m 2011 £263 6m) secured by legal charges on certain assets

Other non-current payables are unsecured and non-mnterest beanng

Further disclosures relating to financial labilties are set out in note 23

20 Contract accounting
In retation to contracts n progress at the balance sheet date

Group

2012 2011

£m £m

Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and other recenvablas 108 114
Amounts due to contract customers included in trade and other payables {131) (208)
{2 3) ®2)

Contract costs mcurred plus recogrised profits less recogrised losses to date 142 5 3264
Less progress bilngs (144 8) {335 6)
23 02

At 30 June 2012, retentions held by customers for contract work amounted to £8 6m (2011 £77m) of which £2 3m 2011 £3 im} are due for settiement
after twelve months  Advances receved from customers for contract work amounted to £171m (2011 £35 9m) of which £8 6m 2011 £5 1m) relates
to work which 1s not expected to be parformad in the next twelve months

21. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company

202 201 2012 201

£m £m £m Em

Cash and cash equivalents 1503 727 701 571

Cash and cash equivalents are held at fioatng nierest ratas Iinked to the UK bank rate, LIBOR and money market rates as applcable Cash and cash
equvalents compnsa cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less

Further disclosures relating to financial assets are set out in note 22
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22, Financial assets
The carrying values and far valuas of the Group's financial assets are as follows

Group
2012 201
Fair  Carrying Far Carnmg
value value vale valug
Notes £m £m om £m
Designated as cash flow hadges
Denvative financial instruments 24 294 294 250 250
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 21 150 3 150 3 727 727
Trade and other recevables 274 274 368 368
Available for sale
Avallable for sale financial assets 15 189 2 189 2 189 4 1694
Total financial assets 396 3 3963 3039 3039
The carrying values and far values of the Company's financial assets are as follows
Comgany
2012 201
Carrying Far Carrying
Fair value valus valug value
Notes £m £m £m £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Dernvative financial nstruments 24 294 294 250 250
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash egqunalents 21 701 701 571 571
Trade and other recenables 18 05 05 03 03
Intercompany loans 18 556 4 556 4 7807 7807
TJotal inancial assets 656 4 656 4 8631 863 1

Trade and other recevables excludes accrued ncome, amounts recoverable on contracts, prepayments and tax and social secunty The far values

of financial assets and iabilities are determined as indicated n this note and note 23 {a}

The following table provides an analysis of financial assets that are measured subsequent to il recogrution ai far value, grouped into Levels

1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

» Level 1 far vakue measurements are those denved from quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets,
* Lavel 2 farr value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted pnees ncluded within Levet 1 that are observable for the asset,

aither directly {ie as pnces) or ndirectly (ie denved from pnoes), and

* { svel 3 far value measuraments are thosae derved from valuation techrigues that nclude inputs for the asset that are not based on observabla

market data {unobservable mputs)

Group
2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Denvative instruments in designated hedge accounting relatonships
Dernvatrve financial assets 24 294 - - 294
Avatlable for sale
Avaifable for sale financial assets 15 - — 1892 189 2
Total 294 - 189 2 2186
Group
201
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota
Notes £m £m £m £m
Dervative nstruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvaiive financial assets 24 250 - - 250
Available for sale
Avalable for sale financial assets 15 — - 169 4 169 4
Total 250 - 169 4 194 4
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22 Financizl assets (continued)

In the curment year the Group has reviewed the farr value hisrarchy applied 1o the measurement of the farr value of our avadable for sale fnancial
assets and concluded that the assets should be classfied as Level 3 rather than as Level 2, as previously classified The previous year has been

restated to reflect this Further disclosures upon available for sale assets are provided m nota 15 and note 25 ()

Company
2012
Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Dernvative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Derwativg financial assets 24 294 - - 294
Total 254 - - 294
Company
200
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m m m
Denvative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Cenvatve financial assets 24 250 - - 250
Total 250 - - 250
23. Financial liabihies
a) Fair value and carrying value
The camying values and far values of the Group's financial habilities are as follows
Group
2012 2011
Fair  Garrying Far Carrying
vatue value value vale
Notes £m Em £m £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Denvative financiat instrurments 24 533 533 370 370
Other financial habilities
Trade and other payables 1,204 5 1,1991 1,2328 1,2273
Loans and bomrowings 23b 3659 3433 4219 4167
Total financial labilives 1,623 7 1,5957 16814 16810
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23. Financial habilrbes (continued)
a) Fair value and carrying value (continued)
The camyng values and far values of the Company’s financal labiities are as follows

Company
2mz2 201
Falr  Carrying Farr Carmyng
value value value value
Notes £m £m £m £m

Designated as cash flow hedges
Denvative financial nstruments 24 533 533 370 370

Other financial habilities

Bank overdrafts 23b 24 24 1063 1063
Trade and other payables 288 288 340 340
Loans and bormowings 23b 364 6 3420 4110 4058
Total financial babdities 4491 426 5 5883 5831

Trade and other payablas excludes deferred income, payments recerved in excess of armounts recoverable on contracts, tax and social secunty

and other non-financial kabilities

The farr values of financial assets and llabiities are determined as follows

» The fair valuas of avalable for sale financial assets represent the vatue of their discounted cash flows, which have been calculated using market

assumptions of the Iikely penod to redemption and movements in UK house pnces

« Dervative financial nstruments are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield

curves denved from quoted interest rates

« The far values of other non-denvative financial assets and liabilities are determmed based on discounted cash flow analysis using current market

rates for similar nstruments

Trade and other payables include land payables, which may bear interest on a coniract specific basis Trade and other payables ncludes items

sacured by legal charge on certan assets as disclosed innote 19

The following table provides an analysis of financial kabiltes that are measuired subsequent to ikl recognition at farr value, grouped nto Lavels

1 to 3 based on the degree to which the far value 1s observable

 Level 1 far value measurements are those denved from quoeted prices funadpssted) in active markets for kentical kabiibies,

* | gvel 2 far value measurements are those derved from inputs other than quoted pnces included within Level 1 that are observable for the liabiity,
either directly {ie as pnces) or ndirectly (e denved from prices}, and

| eval 3 far value measurements are those denved from valuation techrques that mclude iInputs for the bty that are not based on observable

market data (uncbservable nputs)

Group
2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m

Dervative Instruments in designated hedge accounting relabonships
Denvatve financial iabilities 24 533 - - 533
Total 533 - - 533
Group
20m
Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Total
Notes m £m £m £m

Denvative instruments in designated hedge accounting refationships
Dervatve financial iabiites 24 370 - - 370
Total 370 - - 370
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23. Financial habihties (continued)
a) Farr value and carrying vatue {continued)

Company
2012
Level 3 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m fm £m
Dervative instrurments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvative financial hiatilities 24 533 - - 533
Total 533 - - 533
Company
2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Derivative Instruments tn designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvative financial iabilities 24 370 - - 370
Total 370 - - 370
b) Drawn debt faciities
The drawn debt at 30 June compnses
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201
£m m £m £m
Non-current
Bark loans 106 2 1752 106 2 1752
Pnvate placement notes 2250 2303 2250 2303
Total non-current borrowings 32 4056 3312 4055
Current
Bank overdrafts - - 24 1063
Loan notes 02 03 o2 03
Prvate placernent notes 106 - 106 =
Kicksiart equity funding 13 109 - -
Total current borrowings 121 nz 132 1066
Total borrowings 3433 4167 344 4 5121
The weighted average Interast rates, including fees, pad in the year weare as foliows
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
Bank loans net of swap nterest 73 74 73 74
Loan notes 07 05 Q7 05
Privats placement noles 11 115 111 115
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23. Financial habihtes {continued)
bj Drawn debt facilities (continued)
The pnncipal features of the Group's drawn debt facilities at 30 June 2012 were as follows

i} Commitied facihties

* A committed £690 0m revolving cradit facility, of which £20 Om was drawn at 30 June 2012, made avallable under a credit agresment dated
10 May 2011 The matunty date on this debi 1s 10 May 2015

» A cormumutted £90 Om revohving credit facility, none of wiich was drawn at 30 June 2012, made avallable under a credit agreerent dated 10 May
2011 The matunty date on this debt is 31 October 2013, however on & September 2012 the Group gave voiuntary notice for its cancellahion
Further detats of the cancellation are set out in note 35

* A commutted £100 0m term loan of which £100 O was drawn at 30 June 2012, made avallable under a credit agreement dated 10 May 2011
The matunty of which 1s 25% scheduled to be repaid on 1 July 2019, 25% on 1 July 2020 and 50% on 1 Juty 2021

1i} Fixed rate Sterling private placement notes
» 65 8rm of fixed rate Stering prvate placement notes expire between 23 Apnl 2018 and 23 Apnl 2020 and were 1ssued pursuant to a note
purchase agreement dated 23 Apnl 2008 (as amended from ime to time and maost recently with effect from 10 May 2011}

ni} Fixed rate US Dollar private placement notes

« US Dollar prvate placement notes of $80 Om due on 23 August 2017 were issued pursuant to note purchase agreements dated 10 May 2011

« US Dollar ten-year prvate placement notes of $42 6m issued pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated 23 Apnl 2008 {as amended from
trme to time and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011)

» US Dollar five-year private placement notes of $20 8m 1ssued pursuant to a note purchase agreemeant dated 23 Apnl 2008 (as amended from
tme to time and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011)

» US Dollar ten-year private placemant notes of $124 Om issued pursuant 1o a note purchase agreement dated 23 August 2007 (as amended
from tme to tme and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011)

) Floating rate Sterling loan notes
The Group had £0 2m 2011 £0 3m) Sterfing loan notes at 30 June 2012 These loan notes were repayable at 30 June or 31 December each year a1
the opbon of the notehoiger or, to the extent not previously repaid, were dus n July 2012, and are subject to floating rates of nterest inked to LIBOR

v) Bank overdrafts and uncommitted money market facithes

The Group also usaes vanous bank overdrafts and uncommitied borrowing facilities that are subject to fioatng iNnterest rates inked to UK bank rate,
LIBOR and money rmarket rates as applcable All debt 1s unsecured
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23 Financial liabihties {continued)
C) Net debt
Net debt at 30 June 2012 15 shown below-

Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
Em £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 150 3 727 701 571
Non-current borrowings
Bank ipans {106 2} {175 2 (106 2) (175 2)
Prvate placement notes {225 0) (2303) (225 0) {2303}
Total non-current borrowings (3312} {4055 (331 2) {405 5)
Current borrowings
Bank overdrafts - - {2 4) (106 3}
Loan notes ¢ 2) 03 0 2) {03}
Private placement notes {10 6) - {10 6} -
Kickstart equity funding {13} 109) - -
Total current borrowings (12 1} {112 {13 2} {106 6}
Total borrowings (343 3) {316 7 {344 4) _(5121)
Denvative financial nstruments
Foreign exchange swaps 253 214 253 214
Net debt (167 7) (3226) {249 0} {433 6)

Cash and cash equivalents compnise ¢ash at bank and other short-term highly iquid investments with a matunty of three months or less Net debt
15 defined as cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, mterest beanng bormowings and foreign exchange swaps The Group includes foreign
axchange swaps within net debt as these swaps were entered Into to hedge the forexgn exchange exposure upon the Group’s US Dollar denominated
private placement notes The Group's foreign exchange swaps have both an interest rate and an exchange rate element and only the exchange rate
element on the notional amount of the swap 1s Included within the net debt note above

The Group's denvatrve financial instruments at 30 June ara shown below

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m m £m £m

Foreign exchange swap — exchange rate glement 253 214 253 214
Foreign exchange swap — interest rate glemesnt 33 26 33 26
286 240 286 240

Interest rate swaps {52 5) (360) {52 5) (36 0)
Net denvative financial mstruments {23 9) {120) {23 9) {120}
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24 Denvative financial instruments - swaps
The Group and Company have entered into denvatve financial nstrurnents to manage nterest rate and foreign exchange nsks as explaned n note
25 Neither the Group nor the Company enter into any denvatves for speculative purposes

Group and
Company
2012 201
Asset Liability Assat Liabuiity
£m £m fm £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Non-current
Interest rate swaps - {52 5) - (36 0)
Foreign exchangs swaps 294 (0 8) 250 {10}
Total derrvative financial instruments 204 {53 3) 250 (370)

a) Interest rate swaps
The Group and Company enter mto dervative transactions in the form of swap armangements to manage the cash flow nsks, related to interest rates,
ansing from the Group's and Company’s sources of finance

Al of the Group's and Company's Interest rate swap amangements contain a clause that allows the Group/Company or the counterparty to cancel
the swap in May 2015 at far value

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2011 swaps with a notional amount of £288 Om were cancelled following the Group's refinancing Cumulative losses
on interest rate swaps of £29 8m were recognised in exceptional finance costs n the ncome statement following these cancellations

As at 30 June 2012 the Group had outstanding net floating rate Sterling debt of £106 5m (2011 £175 5m) and the Company had outstanding net
floating rate Sterling debt and overdrafts of £108 9m (2011 £281 8mj In obtanmng ths fundng the Group and the Company sought to achieve
cerlainty as to both the avalability of, and ncome statement charge related to, a designated proportion of anticipated future debt requirements

The Group and Comparly have entered 1o swap arrangements to swap £192 Om (2011 £192 Om) of this debt nto fixed rate Sterling debt in
accordance with the Group and Company treasury policy outined in note 25 After taking into account swap arrangements the fixed niterest rates
applicable to the debt were as follows

Fixed rate 2012 Fred rate 201

fm payable % Maturity £m payable % Maturty
600 608 2m7 600 608 2007
195 618 2017 195 618 2017
325 583 2017 325 583 2017
300 594 2022 300 594 2022
500 563 2022 500 563 2022

192 0 1920

The swap amangements are designated as a cash flow hedge against future nterest rate movements The fair value of the swap amangements as at
30 June 2012, which s based on third party valuations, was a hability of £52 5m (2011 £36 Om) with aloss of £16 6m {2011 gan of £6 1m) charged
directly to equity In the year

There was no neffectiveness to be taken through the income statement dunng the year or the prior year

Further disclosures relating 1o financial Instruments are set out In note 25
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24 Denvative financial instruments — swaps (continued)
b) Foreign exchange swaps

The Group and Company enter into denvative transactions n the form of swap arrangements to manage the cash flow nsks related to foreign

exchange ansing from the Group's sources of finance denommated n US Dollars

As at 30 June 2012 the Group and Company had outstanding fixed rate US Dollar loan notes of $267 2m (2011 $267 2m)

The Group and Company have entered into swap amangements to swap all of this debt mnto fixed rate Sterling debt in accordance with the Group
treasury policy cutined In note 25 After taking into account swap arangements the fixed nterest rates apphcable to the debt were as follows

Fixed rate 2012 Fixed rate 20m
Sm payable % Maturity sm payable % Maturity
182 898 2013 182 898 2013
10 10 95 2013 10 1085 2013
14 1078 2013 14 1078 2013
1037 6 61 2017 1037 661 2017
75 1055 2017 75 1055 2047
128 975 2017 128 975 2017
800 814 2017 800 814 2017
337 924 2018 337 924 2018
36 12 23 2018 36 1223 2018
53 1137 2018 53 1137 2018
2672 2672

The swap arrangements are designated as cash flow hedges agamst future foregn exchange rate movements The hedges match the contractual
nital receipt, the final settiement and match 82% of the nterest payments The far value of the swap amangerments as at 30 June 2012, which is
based on thurd party valuations was an asset of £28 6m {2011 £24 Omj with a gain of £4 6m credited (2011 Ioss of £8 2m charged] directly to equity

in the year

There was no Ineffectiveness 10 be taken through the ncorne statement dunng the year or the pnor year Further disclosures relatng to financial

instruments are set out m note 25

25 Financial nsk management

The pnncpal operabonal nsks of the busness are detaled on pages 36 to 39 The Group's financial assets, financal katrities and denvative financial
instruments are detalled n notes 22, 23 and 24

The Group's operations and financing arrangements expose it to a vanety of financial nsks that ncluds the effects of changes i debt market prices,
credit nsks, kquidity nsks and interast rates The most significant of these to the Group 1s lquidity risk and, accordingly, there s a regular, detailed
system for tha reporting and forecastng of cash flows from the operations to Group management to ensure that nsks are promptly identified and
appropnate nigating actions taken by the central treasury department These {orecasts are further stress tested at a Group level on a regular basis
fo ensure that acfequate headroom within facikiies and banking covenants 1s mamtaned In addibon, the Group has in place a nsk management
programme that seeks 1o lrmit the adverse effects of the other nsks on iis financial performance, In particutar by using financial nstruments, mchding
dabt and dervatves, 10 hedge interest rates and currency rates The Group does not use denvative financial instruments for speculatve purposes

The Board approves treasury policies and certan day-to-day treasury actvibes have been delegated to a centraiised Treasury Operating Committee,
which In tum regularly reports 1o the Board The treasury department mplements guidelnes that are established by the Board and the Treasury

Operatng Committee
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25, Financial nsk management {continued)

a) Liquidity sk

Liquidity nsk s the risk that the Group will be unable to meet iis llabilites as they fall due The Group actively mamntans a mixture of long-term and
medum-ierm committed faciities that are destigned 1o ensure that the Group has sufficient avallable funds for operations The Group's borrowings
are typcally cyclical throughout the financial year and peak n Apnl and May and October and November of each year, due to seasonal trends

N ncome Accordingly the Group maintains sufficient facikity headroom to cover these requirements On anormal operating basis the Group has
a policy of mantaning headroom of up to £150 0m The Group identifies and takes appropnate actons based upon its regular, detalled system for
the reporting and forecasting of cash flows from its operations At 3Q June 2012, the Group had commutted bank and other facikties of £1,091 Om
(2011 £1,501 6m) and total facilities of £1,137 2m (2011 £1,547 8m} The Group's drawn dabt against these facilities was £342 Om 2011 £405 8m)
This represented 31 3% (20411 27 0%) of avallable committed facilites at 30 Jung 2012 In addition the Group had £150 3m (2011 £72 7m} of cash
and cash equivalents

On 6 September 2012, the Group gave voluntary notice to cancel the £90 Om revohing credit facility with effect from 12 September 2012 Further
details of the canceltation are set out in note 35

The Group was 1n compliance with its financial covenants at 30 June 2012 At the date of approval of the financial statements the Group's intemall
forecasts ndicate that it will remain in compliancs with these covenants for the foraseeable future being at least twelve months from the date of
signing these financial statements

The Group's objective 1s to minimise refinancing nsk The Group therefore has a policy that the average matunty of its committed bank faciities and
private placement notes s at least two years on average with a targst of three years At 30 June 2012, the average matunty of the Group’s faciites
was 3 7 years (2011 37 years)

The Group mantains cerlain commitied floating rate faciities with banks to ensure suffictent hquidity for its operations The undrawn comrmitted
faciihes available to the Group, n respect of which all conditions precedent had been met, were as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2m2 2011

Explry date £m £m £m £m
In less than one year - 2285 - 2285
In more than one year but not more than two years 900 - 900 -
In more than two years but not more than five years 6700 7700 6700 7700
In morg than five years - 1000 - 1000

7600 10885 7600 1,0985

In addition, the Group had £46 2m (2011 £46 2m) of undrawn uncommitted faciites available at 30 June 2012

The expected undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s financial iabilbies, excluding denvative financial labilities, by remamning contractual matunty
at the balance sheet date were as foliows

Carmrying Contractual Less than Over
amount  cash flow 1year 1-Zyears 2-Syears Syears
Group Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
2012
Loans and bormowings (including bank overdrafis) 23a 3433 558 5 627 497 1161 3300
Trade and other payables 23a 1,1991 1,253 2 849 4 2591 126 3 184
1,542 4 18117 9121 308 8 2424 348 4
2011
Loans and bormowings {includng bank overdraits) 23a MN67 663 4 54 8 547 208 4 2555
Trade and other payables 23a 1,2273 1,2857 8835 2041 1846 135

16440 1,9491 9383 2588 4830 2690
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25. Financial nsk management {continued)
a} Liqudty nsk (continued)

The expected undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial kabilities, excludng dervatve financial labiities, by rematring contractual matunty

at the balance sheet date were as follows

Carrying Contractual Lessthan Chver
amount  cash flow 1year 1-2years 2-5years Syears
Company Notes £m £m £rm £m £m £m

2012
Loans and bormowings (inchuding bank overdratts) 23a 3444 559 6 638 487 1161 3300
Trade and other payables 23a 288 288 288 - - -
3732 588 4 92 6 497 1161 3300

2011

Loans and borrowings (ncluding bank overdratts) 23a 5121 7588 1502 547 2984 2555
Trade and other payables 23a 340 340 340 - - -
5461 7928 184 2 547 208 4 2555

Trade and other payables excludes defermad income, payments recened n excess of amounts recoverable on contracts, tax and socal secunty

and cther non-financial habilities

The expected undiscounted cash flows of the Group's and the Company's denvative financlal instruments, by remairung contractual matunty,

at the balance sheet date wers as follows

Camying Contractual Less than Qver
amount  cash flow 1year 1-2years 2-Syears 5 years
Group and Company Noies £m £m £m £m £m £m
2012
Financial assets
Gross settied denvatves
Recena feg 22 294 2207 243 109 158 5 270
Payleg - (189 9) {20 8} {10 0) {1371) (22 0)
Financial habilihies
Gross settled denvatives
Recenve leg 23a {0 8) 115 14 07 69 25
Pay leg - (122 (15 (o8 73 26)
Net setiled denvatives 23a (52 S) {55 4) (9 0} (9 6) (259 {10 9)
(23 9) {25 3) {5 6} {8 8) 49 (60)
2011
Financial assets
Gross settled denvatives
Receve teg 22 250 224 6 116 182 332 16186
Pay leg - (197 2} (109} {1863 (30 8) (139 2)
Financial batalities
Gross settled demvatives
Receve ieg 23a {10) 121 07 14 21 79
Pay leg - (131 09 {15 248 83
Nat settled denvatves 23a 36 0) (38 9) {90 82 {156} 81)
{120) {12 §) B 5) {64) {135) 159

Under the Group's Intemahonal Swaps and Denvatives Association Master Agreernent (ISDA’) agreements the interest rate swaps are sattied

on angt basis
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25 Financial nsk management (continued)

b) Market nsk {pnce nsk)

i) UK houstng market risk

This section specrfically discusses UK housing market nsk in the context of the financial instruments in the Group balance sheet

The Group 1s subgct to the prevaiing conditions of the UK economy and the Group’s eamings are dependent upon the level of UK house prices
UK house prices are determined by the UK economy and economic conditions including employment levals, interest rates, consumer confidence,
mortgage avalabiity and competitor pnoing However, the Group does seek to maintan an appropnate geographic spread of operating drisions
and an appropnate product mix to mitigate any nsks caused by local economic conditions The Group has detaled procedures to manage its
market refated operabonal nsks which nclude
* a weekly review of key trading ndicators, Including reservations, sales rates, visitor levels, levels of ncentves, competitor actvty and cash

flow proections,
* tha provision to mortgage providers with complste transparancy of house purchase pnces alongside any discounts or other incentves in

order that they have appropnate nformation upon which to base tharr lending decision, and
* collaboration with key mortgage lenders 1o ensure that products are appropnate wherever possible for therr customers

The UK housing market affects the valuation of the Group's non-financial assets and labilibes and the cntical judgements applhed by management
In these financial statements, including the valuation of land and work In progress, goodwill and brands

The Group's financiat assets and liabilities which are directly Inked to the UK housing market are as follows

Not linked
Linked to to UK
UK housing housing
market market Total
Group £m £m £m
2012
Non-denvative financial assets 189 2 1777 3669
Non-denvative financial hatiliiies - (1,5424) (1,5424)
Demvatves - {23 9) {23 9)
1892 {1,3886) (1,1994)
2011
Non-dernvatve financial assets 169 4 1085 2789
Non-demvative financial liabdties - {16440) (1,644Q)
Dervatives - 20 (120

1894 (15465  (1.3771)

The valug of the Group's avallabla for sale financtal assets 1s directly inked to the UK housing market At 30 June 2012 these assets were carried
at a far value of £189 2m (2011 £169 4m) Further information i1s set out nnote 15

The Comparty has no financial assets and kabiliies which are directly inked to the UK housing market

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2012, if UK housa pnces had been 5% lower and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's house price Inked financial assets
and liabiities, which are solely avadable for sale financial assets would decrease in value, excuding the effects of tax, by £ 7m (2011 £8 1m) with
a corresponding reduction in both the result for the year and equity

i) Interest rate nsk
The Group has both interest beanng assets and interest beanng liabiliies Floating rate borrowings expose the Group 1o cash flow nterest rate nsk
and fixed rate bormowings expose the Group o far value niterest rate nsk

The Group has a poficy of mantamning both long-term fixed rate funding and medium-term floating rate funding so as to ensure that there s
appropnate flexbility for the Group's operational ragutrements  The Group has entered into swap arrangements to hedge cash flow nsks relating
to interest rate movements on a proportion of its debit and has entered nto fixed rate debt i the form of Sterling and US Dollar denominated
prvate placements
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25 Financial nsk management {contiued)

b) Market nsk (price nsk) (continued)

i) Interest rate nsk (contiued)

The Group has a conservative treasury nsk management strategy The proportion of the Group's median gross bomewrgs calculated on the Latest
three-year plan that shouid be at fixed rates of nterest s determined by the average expected interest cover for that penod The cument target is for
30-60% to be at fixed rates of mterest Dua to the cyclicality of our borrowings throughout the year, at 30 June 2012, 61 7% (2011 99 3%) of the
Group’s gross bomowings were fixed Group interest rates are fixed using both swaps and fixed rate debt instruments

The exposure of the Group's financial haliities to nterest rate nsk s as follows

Non-interest
Floatng rate  Fixed rate bearing
financial financial financial

liabilities liabilities liabilities Total
Group £m £m £m £m
212
Financial habilities (excluding demvatives) 1065 2368 1,1991 1,542 4
Impact of nterest rate swaps {192 0} 1920 - -
Financial hability exposure to interest rate nsk (85 5) 428 8 1,1991 1,542 4
201
Financial kabilibes {excluding dernvatives) 1755 2303 1,238 2 1,644 0
Impact of interest rate swaps (192 0) 1920 - -
Financtal hability exposure to interest rate nsk {16 5) 4223 1,238 2 1,644 0
The exposure of the Company's financial labrtes to nterest rate nskais as follows

Non-interest

Floating rate  Fixed rate bearing
financ:al financial financial

liabllities llabilities liabilities Total
Company £m £m £m fm
2012
Financial labilites {excluding denvatives) 1089 2355 288 3732
Impact of interest rate swaps (192 0} 1920 - -
Financial lability exposure to interest rate nsk _(831) 4275 288 3732
2011
Financial liabikhes {xcluding dervatves) 2818 2303 340 5461
impact of nterest rate swaps (192 0) 1820 = -
Financial habtlity exposure to interest rate nsk 898 422 3 340 5461

Floaiing nterest rates on Steriing bormrowings are Inkad to UK bank rate, LIBOR and money market rates  The floating rates are fixed in advance for
penods generally ranging from one to sx months Short-term flexibility 1s achieved through the use of overdraft, committed and uncommutted bank
faciities The wesghted average interest rate for floating rate bormowings in 2012 was 3 5% (2011 24%)

Sterling private ptacement notes of £65 8m (2011 £65 8my) were amanged at fixed nigrest rates and exposed the Group to farr value interast rate
risk. The weighted average interest rate for fixed rate Sterling private placement notes for 2012 was 12 0% (2011 11 9%) with, at 30 June 2012
a weighted averags penod of 6 9 years (2011 79 years} for which the rate 15 fixed

US Doflar denominated private placement notes of £145 0m 2011 £145 Om) were aranged at fixed interest rates and exposed the Group to far
value interest rate nsk The weighted average interest rate for fixed rate US Dollar denominated private placement notes, after the effect of foreign
exchange rate swaps, for 2012 was 10 2% (2011 11 0%} with, at 30 June 2012 aweighted average penod of 4 9 years (2011 5 9 years) for which
the rate 1s fixed

Sensitivity analysis

In the year ended 30 June 2012, if UK ntarest rates had been 50 basis ponts higher/iower and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's
pra-tax profit would decreasa/increase by €16m 2011 £0 4m), the Group's post-tax profit would decrease/increase by £1 2m (2011 £0 3m) and
the Group's equity would decrease/increase by £1 2m {2011 £0 3m)
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25 Financial nsk management {continued)

by Market nsk (pnce nsk) (comtinued)

i} Foreign exchange rate nsk

As at 30 June 2012, the Group has fixed rate US Dollar denominated private placement notes of 3267 2m (2011 8267 2m) In order to mitigate nsks
associated with the movement n the foregn exchange rate, the Group has a policy of fully hedging the pancipal of its US Dollar denomnated debt
and a significant proportion of the interest payments The Group therefore entered into foreign exchange swap armangements on the ssue of its US
Dollar denominated debt, all of which are designated as cash flow hedges Accordingly the Group has no net exposure to foreign curency risk on
the pnncipat of its US Dollar debt  The foreign exchangs swaps match 82% of the nterest payments and therefore the Group 1s subject to foreign
exchange rate nsk upon the remaning 18%

Details of the Group's foreign exchange swaps are provided in note 24

Sensitivity analysis

In the year ended 30 June 2012, if the US Dollar per Pound Stering exchange rate had been $0 20 higherflower and all other vanables were heild
constant, the Group's pre-tax profit would decrease/increase by £0 3m (2011 £0 7m), the Group's post-tax profit would decrease/ncrease by
£0 2m 2011 £0 5m) and the Group's equity would decrease/increase by £0 2m 2011 £0 5m)

¢) Credit nsk

in the majonty of casas, the Group receves cash upon legal completion for pnvate sales and receves advance slage payments from Registered
Social Landlords for social housing The Group has £189 2m (2011 £169 4m) of available for sale financial assets which expose it to credit nsk,
although thes asset 1s spread over a large number of properties As such, the Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure
spread over a large number of countarparties and customers

The Group manages credit nsk n the followng ways

+ The Group has a credit policy that 1s imited to financial nstitubons with hugh credit ratngs as set by intemational credit rating agencies and has
a policy determining the maximum permissible exposure to any single counterparty

+ The Group only contracts derivative financial nstruments with counterparties with which the Group has an ISDA Master Agreerment in place
These agreements parmit net settlement, thereby reducing the Group's credit exposure to ndividual counterparties

The maxamum exposurs to any countarparty at 30 June 2012 was £42 5m (2011 £15 8m) of cash on deposit with a financial insttution The carrying
amount of financial assets recorded in the financial staternents, net of any alowance for losses, represants the Group's mavamum axposure to credit nsk.

As at 30 June 2012, the Compary was exposed to £556 4m (2011 £780 7rm) of credit nsk in relabon 1o iIntercompany loans, as well as financial
guarantees performance bonds and the bank borrowings of subsiciary undertakings Further detas are provided in notes 33 and 34

d) Capital nsk management (cash fiow nisk)
The Group’s objectves when managmg capital are to safeguard s ability to continue as a going concemn in order to prowda retuns for shareholders
and meet 1ts habilities as they fall dus whilst mamntaining an appropnate capital structure

The Group manages as capital ts equity, as set out in the condensed consoldated staterment of changes in shareholders’ equity, s bank
borrowings (peing overdrafts, ioan notes and bank loans} and its private placernent notes, as set out N note 23

The Group 15 subject to the prevauling conditions of the UK economy and the Group's eamings are dependent upon the level of UK house pnces
UK house pnces are determined by the UK economy and economic condibons ncluding employment levels, interest rates consumer confidence,
mortgage avalabiity and competitor pncing The management of these operational nisks 1$ set out in the pancipal nsks and uncertaintes on pages
36t0 39

in addition, the other methods by which the Group can manage its shorl-term and long-term capital structure include adjusting the level of ordinary

dmidends paid to shareholders (assuming the Company s payng a dvidand), issuing new share capital, arranging debt io meet lability payments,
and selling assets to reduce dabt
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26 Retrement benefit ohhigations
The Group operates defined contnbution and defined bensfit pension schemes

Defined contnbittion schemes
2012 2011
£m fm

Contnbutions during the year
Group defined contnbution schemes consolidated ncome statement charge 67 64

At the balance sheet date there were outstanding contnbutions of £0 5m 2011 £0 5m), which were paid on or before the due date

Defined benefit scheme

The Group operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme in Great Bntain, the Barratt Group Pension & Life Assurance Scheme (the ‘Scheme’)
which, with effect from 30 June 2009, ceased to offer future accrual of defined benefit pensions Altemnative defined contnbution pension
arrangements are in place for curment employees

The most racent full actuana) valuation of the Scherme was camed out at 30 November 2010 The results of this valuabon have been updated to
30 June 2012 by & qualfied Independent actuary The Group has agraed with the Trustees to make contnbutions to the Scherne of £13 3m per
annun until 31 January 2017 to address the Scheme's deficit The Group also continuss to meet the Scheme’s administration expenses, death
N service premiums and Pension Protection Fund levy

Al the balance sheet date there were outstanding contributions of £1 1m 2011 £1 1m)

The assets of the defined benefit scheme have been calculated at far fid) value The liabiites of the Scheme have been calculated at each balance
sheet date using the following assumptions

Principal actuarial assurmnptions 2012 2011
Woeighted average assumptions to determine benefit gbligations

Discount rate 4 80% 550%
Rate of pnce inflation 2 90% 350%
Weighted average assumptions to determine net cost

Discount rate 5 50% 540%
Expected long-term rate of retum on plan assets 610% 596%
Rate of pnca inflation 3 50% 320%

Members are assumed to exchange 15% of their pension for cash on retrement The assumptions have been chosen by the Group following advice
from Mercer Human Resource Consulting Limited, the Group’s actuanal advisers

The followng table ilustrates the Iife expectancy for an average member on reaching age 65, according 1o the mortality assumptions used to
calcuiate the Scheme kabilities

Assumptions Male Female
Retired member bormn in 1935 {ife expectancy at age 65} 241years 26 5Svyears
Non-retired member borm in 1965 (ife expectancy at age 65) 25 Byeoars 286 years

The base mortality assumptions are based upon the SINA mortality tables The Group has carned out a mortality ivestigation of the Scheme's
membership to ensure that this 1s an approprate assumption In 2011 the base mortality assumptions were based upon the PAS2 mortalty tables
Allowancs for futurs ncreases in life expectancy s made in kne with the mediurn cohort projection, with anunderpin on the annual rate of
improvement n mortality of 125% (2011 10%)
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26. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
The sensitmties regarding the pancpal assumptions used 10 measure the Scheme liabiiles are set out below

Assumptions Change in assumption Increase in Scheme liabilities
Biscount rate Decrease by 01% £5 8m {2 196)
Rate of inflation Increase ty 01% £37m (1 3%)
Life expectancy increase by 1 year £74m {2 6%)
The amounts recogrised n the consolidated ncome statement were as follows
2012 201
£m tm
Interest cost 136 131
Expected retum on Scheme assels {14 8) {122
Totat pension {income)/cost recognised in net finance costs in the consolidated income statement {12 09
Total penston {income)/cost recognised n the consolidated income statement 12 09
The amounts recogrnised in the Group staterment of comprehensive income ware as follows
2012 2011
£m £m
Expected retum less actual returm on Scheme assets {07) {18 5}
LossAgain) ansing from changes in the assumptions underying the prasent value of benefit obligations 248 {3 5}
Total pension cost/{income) recogmised n the Group statement of comprehensive income 241 220}

The amount inchuded in the Group and Company balance sheets ansing from cbiigations in respect of the defined benefit pension scheme 1 as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
Present value of funded oblkgations 2805 25086
Farr valus of Scheme assets {259 1} {238 B)
Deficit for funded Scheme/net liability recognised in the Group and Company balance sheets at 30 June 214 18
2012 2011
£m £m
Net lability for defined benefit obligations at 1 July 1ns 461
Contnbutions pad to the Scheme (13 3) (132)
{incomepexpense recognised n the consolidated income statement (12) 0g
Amounts recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive Income 241 {220}
Net hiabiity for defined benefit obhgations at 30 June 214 118
A deferred tax asset of £5 2m 2011 £3 1m) has been recognised in the Group batance sheet in relation to the pension kability (note 16)
Movements n the present value of defined benefit cbligations were as follows
2012 2011
£m £m
Present value of benefit obligations at 1 July 2506 2483
Interasi cost 136 131
Actuanal loss/gan) 248 35
Benefits paid from Scheme (85) 73
Present value of benefit cbiigations at 30 June 2805 2506
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26 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
Moverments in the fair value of Scheme assets were as follows

2012 2011

£m fm

Far value of Scheme assets at 1 July 2388 2022
Expecied rstum on Scheme assets 148 22
Actuangl gan gn Scheme assets 07 185
Employer contnbutions 133 132
Benefits paid from Scheme {8 5} 73
Fauir value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2591 2388
The analysis of Scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date were as follows so12 -
Expect;d Expected

Percentage retumnon  Percentage return on
of Scheme Scheme o Scheme Scheme
assets assets assots assels

Equity secuntes 49 2% 6 20% 50 3% 730%
Debt secunties 50 2% 370% 49 5% 477%
Other 06% 0 50% 02% 050%
Total 100 0% 4 N% 100 0% 610%

To develop the expected long-term rate of retum on assets assumption, the Group considered the cument level of expected retums on nisk free
investments {prmanly Govermment bonds), the histoncal keve! of nsk premium associated with other asset classes in which the portiotio 1s invested
and the expactations for future retums of each asset class The expected retum for each asset class was then weighted based on the actual asset
allocation to develop the expected long-tenm rate of retum on assets assumption for the portfolio

The actual retumn on Scheme assets was as follows

2012 2011

£m £m

Actual return on Scherne assets 155 307

The five-year history of expenencs adjustiments ansing on Scheme (labilitiesyassets was as follows

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Prosent value of defined benefit obligations {fm) {280 5) (250 6) (248 3) (201 9) (2088
Far value of Scheme assets (£m) 2591 2388 2022 1704 1716
Deficit in the Scheme {£m} {21 4) {118} a6 1) (315) {37 2)
Expenence adustment n Scheme kabilities £m) - 68 - - 114
Percertage of Scheme liabilties (%) - 27 - - 55
Expenence adusiment n Scheme assets [Krm) 07 1856 176 {205) (173)
Percentage of Scheme assets (36} 03 77 87 (120) (101)
Amount recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive incoms {Em) 241 (220 263 141 (201)
Percentage of Scheme assets (%) 93 {92) 130 83 (117)

The curmulaive amaunt of actuanal gans and losses snce 30 June 2005 recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive ncome s a loss of £90m

The expectad empioyer contribution to the defined benefit pension scheme m the year ending 30 June 201315 £13 3m.
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27, Share capitat

2012 2011
£m £m

Allotted and 1ssued ordinary shares
10p each fully pad 975.790,605 ordinary shares (2011 965 341,126) 976 965

Bunng the year 8,313,562 (2011 6,841,830) awards of the Company’s shares were granted under the Company's Executrve Long-Term Performance
Plan, 6,896,472 (2011 1,491,892} options were granted under the Savings-Related Share Option Schemse ('SRS0S’) and 132,491 2011 nil} awards
were granted under the Co-Investment Plan

Ounng the year, 10,443,473 (2011 126,111) shares wers issued to salisty exercises under the 2009 SRS0S

The Barratt Developments PLC Employee Benefit Trust {the "EBT) holds 3,849,556 (2011 3,858.573) ordinary shares in the Company The
market value of the shares held by the EBT at 30 June 2012 at 139 1 pence per share (2011 114 2 pence per share) was £5,354,732 (2011
£4,406,490) The shares are hald n the EBT for the purpose of satisfying options that have been granted under The Barrat! Developments PLO
Exacutve and Employea Share Option Plans and Long-Term Performance Plans These ordinary shares do not rank for dividend and do not
count In the calculation of the weighted average number of shares used to calculate earmings per share untit such ime as they are vested to
the relevant employee

28 Share-based payments
Analysis of mcome statement charge/{crecit) ‘

2012 2011
£m £m
Equity-settled share-based payments
Long-Term Performance Plan 21 08
Savings-Related Share Option Scheme 05 15
Executive Share Option Scheme 04 04)
Senior Management Share Cption Plan 03 03
Cash-settled share-based payments {02 08
31 14

As at 30 June 2012, an accrual of 20 7m (2011 £18m) was recognised m respect of social securty iabilities on share-based payments
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28. Share-based payments {continued)

a) Details of the share-based payment schemes

i) Long-Term Performance Plan

The Long-Term Performance Plan (the ‘LTPP") was approved by shareholders at the Annual Generat Meeting held in November 2003 1o 1ake effect
from 1 July 2003 8,313,562 (2011 6,841,630} LTPP awards were granted in the fnancial year ended 30 June 2012 Awands under the LTPP are at
the discretion of the Remuneration Committee {the ‘Commitise’), taking into account ndividual performance and everall performance of the Group
An employee 1s not eligibie to receve options under the Executve Share Option Scheme and awards under the LTPP in the sarne financial year
Information on the performance condibons for the LTPP can be found on page 59

1) Savings-Retated Share Cption Scheme

In Novernber 2008, the Comparty adopted the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme (the SRS0OS’} Under the SRSOS, participants are required
to maks monthly contnbutions to a HM Treasury approved savings contract with a bank or building society for a penod of three or five years On
entenng into the savings coniract participants were granted an option to acquire ordinary shares n the Company at an exercise pnce determined
under the rules of the SRSOS The exercise of options under the SRSOS 1s not subject to the satisfaction of a perfonmance condition as the SRSOS
15 HM Revenus and Customs approved and open to all elgible employees The first grant under the SRSOS was made on 3 February 2009 at an
exercise price of 8705 pencea per share fwhich was subsequently adjusted to reflect the Fightts Issue to 57 05 pence per sharg) The second grant
under tha SRSOS was made on 30 March 2010 at an exercise price of 116 18 pence per share The third grant under the SRS0S was made

on 28 March 2011 at an exercise pnce of 104 59 pence per share The fourth grant under the SRSOS was made on 28 March 2012 at an exercise
pnce of 125 00 pence per share

) Executive Share Option Scheme

In November 2008, the Company adopted the Executive Share Option Scheme {the ESOS') The grant of share options under the ESOS 15 at
the discreton of the Commitiee, taking into account Indmdual performance and the overall performance of the Group Options must be held for
a minmum of three years from the date of grant before they can be exercised and lapse If not exercised within ten years from the date of grant
The exercise of options granted under the ESOS 1s subject to the achievement of an objective performance condition set ty the Committee,
which for options granted in 2009/10 was based upon total shareholder retum and eamings per share performance conditions More information
can ba found on page 60

) Sensor Management Share Option Plan

In December 2009, the Company adopted the Senior Managearment Share Option Plan 2008-2012 (the 'SMSOP’) The Board approved the grant
of share options to empioyees under the SMSOP which are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant, provded
the emplayee remains employed by the Group [t 1s intended that the grant of options under the SMSCP will be a one-off event and those

who paricipate i the SMSOP are not eligible to participate n the LTPP or ESOS, therefore Executive Directors are not eligible to partcipate

n the SMSOP

v) Executive Share Option Plan

In Novernber 1997, the Company adopted the Exacutve Share Option Plan (the ‘ESOP") The grant of share options under the ESOP 15 at the
discretion of the Committes, taking into account ndndual performancs and the overall performance of the Group Options must be held for
a mirmmurm of three years from the date of grant before they can be exercised and lapse If not exercised within ten years from the date of grant
The exercise of options granted under the ESOP 1s subject to the achievernent of an objective performance condtion set by the Committee

vi) Employee Share Option Plan

In November 1999, the Company adopted an Employee Share Option Plan {the 'Employee Plan’) The Board approved the grant of share opuons
to employees under this Employee Plan which are normatty exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant The exercise of the
ophons granied under the Empioyse Plan 1s subject to the achievemant of an objective performance condition set by the Board, namely that the
growth in the basic eamings per share of the Company over a penod of three consecutive financial years should exceed the growth n the Retall
Price Index by at least 9% No options may be grantad under the Employes Plan after 10 Apnl 2010 Those who have participated in the ESOP
do not participate in the Employee Plan

wii) Senior Management Incentive Plan

In May 2009, the Company adopted the Senior Management Incentve Plan 2008-2011 (the ‘SMIP7) The SMIP entitles participants to a cash bonus
Inked %o the Company’s share prce, subject to the achievernent of an objectve performance condition set by the Committes
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28. Share-based payments {continued)

a) Details of the share-based payment schemes {continuedj

vui) Go-Investment Plan

The Co-nvesiment Plan (the ‘Plan’) was approved by shareholders at the Annuat General Meeting held in November 2005 and is currently utiised
to hold shares awarded in respect of any bonus eamec In excess of 100% of base salary There are no matching shares awarded against these
shares In previous years any annual bonus eamad above target was normally computsonly defered mnto shares held under this Plan The Executive
Directors also have the opportunity to voluntanly defer addiional amounts of annual bonus up to a maxmum of 25% of basic salary info the Plan
Further detaills are on page 58

b) Outstanding equity-setiled share-based payments
At 30 June 2012, the following options were outstanding

Option price 2012 Not exercisable
Date of grant pence Number after
Executive Share Option Plan
22 October 2002 285 120,466 21 October 2012
10 October 2003 357 559,517 9 October 2013
Total Executive Share Opticn Plan options 679,983
Executive Share Option Scheme
10 December 2009 (approved®) 118 25,458 9 December 2019
10 December 2009 (unapproved™) 121 5,957,584 9 December 2018
Total Executive Share Option Scheme options 6,023,042
Senior Management Share Option Plan
10 Decernber 2008 {approved®) 118 2,665,786 9 December 2019
10 December 2000 (unapproved®) 121 964,411 9 December 2019
Total Semor Management Share Option Plan options 3,630,197
Empioyee Share Option Plan
14 May 2004 387 417,801 13 May 2014
Total Employee Share Option Plan options 417,801
Savings-Related Share Cption Scheme
3 February 2009 57 1,188,852 30 September 2012
30 March 2010 16 1,386,804 30 November 2013
29 March 2011 105 1,207,780 30 November 2014
28 March 2012 — 3 year plan 125 5,186,501 30 Novemnber 2015
28 March 2012 — 5 year plan 125 1,662,384 30 November 2017
Total Savings-Related Share Option Scheme options 10,632,321
Total share options 21,383,344
Long-Term Performance Plan
14 October 2010 - 6,516,830 -
20 October 2011 — 8,313,562 -
Total Long-Term Performance Plan awards 14,830,392
Co-Investment Plan
18 October 2011 - 123,474 -
Total Co-Investment Plan awards 123,474
Tota) 36,337,210

Tha Exacuitve Share Option Scheme anc the Serior Managernert Share Opton Plan are dvidad o tweo sub-schemes. one of which s apgraved Undar the Income Tax (Earmings and Pensions) Act 2003 and he other which 5 nol
and the axarcse prce 1 cakcutabed duHerently far each sub-scherme m accordance with the nukes of the sub-scheme

The exercise prices and the number of shares under option were adjusted following the Rights Issue in November 2009
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28, Share-based payments (continued)
¢) Outstanding cash-settled share-based payments

At 30 June 2012, the following awards ssued n accordance with the rules of the Servor Management incentive Plan were outstanding

Award price 202 20m
Date of grant pence Number Number
Senior Management Incentive Plan
6 May 2009 57 - 7,850,718
Total Senior Management Incentive Plan - 7850,718
d} Number and weighted average exercise price of outstanding share-based payments
The number and weighted average exercise pnces of options issued under the Executive Share Option Plan were as follows
Weighted Weighted
avarage average
exercise 2012 exXerciss 2011
price In Number of pricain Number of
pence optiong pence options
Qutstanding at 1 July 333 1,186,487 328 1,280,193
Forferted dunng the year 320 {5086,504) 276 (103,706)
QOutstanding at 30 June 344 679,983 333 1,186,487
Exercisable at 30 June 344 679,983 333 1,186,487
The number and weighted average exercise paces of options issued under the Emplayee Share Option Plan were as follows
Weighted Wenghted
average average
exarcise 2012 exercise 2011
pricein Number of pnce n Number of
pence options pence options
Qutstanding at 1 July 380 497,065 376 551178
Forfeited dunng the year kL)) {79,264} 342 {54,111)
Qutstanding at 30 June 387 417,801 380 497065
Exercisable at 30 June 387 417,801 380 497065
The number and wexghted average exercise prces of awards made under the Long-Term Performance Plan were as follows
Welghted Weighted
average average
exercige 2012 XRFCISe 201
price in Number of prcamn Number of
pence award units pence award unis
Quistanding at 1 July - 6,516,830 - 3,613,185
Forfetted dunng the year - - - {3,838,185)
Granted dunng the year - 8,313,562 - 6 841,830
Outstanding at 30 June - 14,830,392 - 6.516.830
Exercisable at 30 June - - - -
The number and weighted average exercisa pnces of aptions granted under the Executve Share Option Scheme were as follows
Weighted Weghted
average average
axarcise 202 xercise 201
pricein Number of prca in Number of
pence oplions pence options
Qutstanding at 1 July 69 15,699,125 B8 16,917,153
Forferted during the year ar (3,676,083) 59 {1218 028}
Qutstanding at 30 June 121 6,023,042 69 15.699,125

Exercisable at 30 June -
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28 Share-based payments {continued)
d) Number and weighted average exercise pnce of outstanding share-based payments (continued)
The number and weighted average exercise pnces of ophions granted under the Seror Management Sharg Option Plan were as follows

Weighted Wesghted
average average
exercise 2012 exercse 2011
prcen Number of prce m Nurnber of
pence options pence ophions
Qutstanding at 1 July 119 3,834,687 119 4,065,683
Forfeited dunng the year 119 (204,480) 119 (230,996)
Outstanding at 30 Juneg 119 3,630,197 119 3,834,687
Exercisable at 30 June - - - -
The number and weighted average exercise pnces of options granted under the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme were as follows
‘Weighted ‘Weighted
average average
exercise 20n2 EXercISe 2019
pRce In Number of price in Nurnber of
pence options pence oplons
Qutstanding at 1 July 68 15,303,105 65 15,350,256
Forterted dunng the year 84 (1,117,777} 78 {1412,932)
Granted durng the year 125 6,896,472 105 1,491,802
Exercised dunng the vear 57 10,449,479} 57 (126,111)
Qutstanding at 30 June 114 10,632,321 68 15,303,105
Exercisable at 30 June 57 1,188,852 - -
The number and werghted average award pnce of awards made under the Seruor Management incentive Plan were as follows
Weighted Waighted
average average
exercise 2012 EXercise 201
pnce n Number of price n Number of
pence award units pence award units
Qutstandng at 1 July 57 7,850,718 &7 8,000 282
Forferted dunng the year 57 (7,850,718) 57 (158,664)
Qutstanding at 30 June - - 57 7.850,718
Exercisable at 30 June - = = -
The number and weighted average award pnce of awards mads under the Co-Investment Plan were as follows
Weghted Waighted
average average
exercise 2012 exereise 201
price in Number of prican Number of
pence award units pence award unns
Qutstanding at 1 July - - - 126,532
Forferted dunng the year - - - (55.791)
Exercised dunng the year - {9,017} - (70,741}
Granted during the year - 132,49 - —
Outstanding at 30 June - 123,474 = =
Exercigable at 30 June - ~ - -

The weighted average share price, at the date of exercise, of share options exercised dunng the year was 1351p 2011 82 4p) The weighted

average Iife for all schemes outstanding at the end of the year was 3 5 years (2011 4 6 years)
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28. Share-based payments (continued)
e) Income statement charge

A charge o the ncome statement has been made for the awards issued on or after 7 November 2002 that had not vested at 1 January 2005

N accordance with IFRS2 ‘Share-based Payments’

i} Savings-Related Share Option Scheme

The weighted average fair valug of the options granted durng 2012 was 377p (2011 29 0p) per award The awards have been valued using

a Black-Scholes model
The werghted average inputs to the Black-Scholes model were as follows
Grants Grants
2012 20N
Awverage share price 145p 113p
Average exercise price 125p 105p
Expected volatiity 32 2% 307%
Expected Ife 35years 30vyears
Risk free interast rate 077% 133%
Expected dwidends 191% -

Expected volatiity was detenmined by reference to the histoncal volatility of the Group's share price over a penod conststent with the expected lite
of the options The expected fe used n the models has been adjusted, based on the Directors” best estirmate, for the effects of non-transferabiiity,

exercise restnctions and behavioural considerations

n) Long-Term Parformance Plan
The weighted average farr value of the optons granted dunng 2012 was 50 Op (2011 51 2p)

The awards have been valuad using a Black-Scholes madel for the earmings per share elarment of the schema and a Monte Carlo model for the total

shareholdar retum element of the scheme

The wenghted average inputs 10 the Black-Scholes and Monts Carlo models were as follows

Grants Grants
2012 2011
Average share price 86p 88p
Average exercise pnce - -
Expected volatihty 32 2% 307%
Expected Ifg 38years 3 0years
Rigk free miarest rate 217% 108%
Expected dvidends 191% —
29 Reserves
Hedging reserve

The hadging reserve reprasents the cumulative effective portion of deferred farr value gains or losses on denvative financial instruments that have

been designated as cash flow hedges by the Company, where the hedged cash fiows are still expected to ocour

Transfers to the hedging reserve n the period equate to losses of £21 1m (2011 £23 6m) This boss compnses losses of £25 7m 2011 £15 4m)

relating 10 :nterest rate swaps and gans of £4 6m (2011 losses of £8 2m) on cross currency interest rate swaps

Transfers from the hedging reserve to the ncome statement for the penod are gans of £5 1m (2011 £58 3m)

Transfers arose from continuing cash flow hedges of interest rite nsks and foregn exchange nsks where the hedged nsk impacted profit or loss I
the penod Of thesa costs £9 1m {2011 £21 5m related to hedged interest cash flows and a loss of £4 Om (2011 gain of £7 Om} refated 1o hedged

foreign currancy cash flows

in the pnor yaar, an amount of £29 8m, relating to deferred losses on nierest rate swaps that prevmously hedged floating rate nterest payments
{on £288m of debt that was repaid and not refinanced} which are no longer expected to occur, was recognised in the income statement as an

exceptional tem
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29 Reserves (continued)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve compnses the non-statutory premium ansing on shares issued as consideration for acquisition of subsidianes where merger
relief under section 812 of the Companies Act 2006 applies

Own shares
The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Barratt Developments PLC purchased in the market and held by the EBT on behalf
of the Company In order to satisfy options and awards under the Comipany’s mcenive schemes

Share-based payments reserve
The share-based payments reserve represents the obligation of the Group in relation to equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Parent Company ncome statement
In accordance with the provisions of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a separate income statement for the Company has not been
presented The Company's loss for the year was £36 5m (2011 £73 1m)

30. Cash flows from operating activities

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Notes £m £m £m £m
Profit/floss) for the year from continuing operations 674 {13 8) (36 5) 731)
Tax 326 23 {77} (25 4)
Finance ncome (16 9} {180} (38 5) (401
Finance costs 977 1569 731 1306
Share of post-tax profit from jont ventures {0 5) {01) - -
Share of post-tax loss from associates 0t - - ~
Loss on re-measurement of joint venture interest on acquisition of control 107 - - -
Profit/{loss) from operations 1911 1273 (9 6) 80O
Depreciation 12 16 18 05 05
Impatrment of inventonegs — non excephional 17 66 54 - =
Impament of available for sale financial assets 15 118 183 - -
Share-based payments charge/credi) 28 31 14 27 (01)
Imputed interest on deferred term land payables 5 (28 8} (276) - -
Imputed interest on avalable for sale financial assets 5,15 120 136 - -
Amortisation of facility fees 5 (3 5) 62 {359 6 2)
Imputed nterest on Kickstart equity funding 5 02 {09 - -
\Write-off of previous faciity unamortised fees 5 - 81 - 81)
Finance income/costs) related to emploves benefils 5,26 12 {0 9) 12 {05}
Total non-cash items 42 5 2) 09 {14 8}
Decrease In inventones n7 721 - -
Decreasa in trade and cther recervables 140 25 215 1577
{Decrease)increase in frace and other payvables (39 9) 232 {21 5) B89
Incraase n available ior salg financial assels (35 0) 46 7) - —
Total movements in working capital 108 511 2200 148 8
Interest paid (60 3) (77 5} {68 7) (79 5)
Tax recenved 39 45 - -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1497 1002 1426 46 5

The balance shest movements in land and avallable for sale financial assets include non-cash movaments due to imputed interest Imputed interest
15 therefore Included within non-cash items i the note above
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31. Operating lease obligations

a) The Group as lessee

At 30 June 2012, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall
due as follows

Group
2012 201

Land and Land and
bulldings Other buikkhngs Other
£rm £m [¥})) £m
Within one year 110 50 109 45
More than one year and no later than five years 201 41 202 57
In five years or morg 54 - 74 -
365 g1 385 102

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain office propertias and motor veticles Motor vehicls leases have an
average term of 17 years (2011 2 2 years) to expiry Property leases have an average term of 1 @ years (2011 21 years) to expiry

At 30 June 2012, the Comparty had outstanding commitments for future mirraurm lease payments under nen-cancellable operatng leases, which
fall due as follows

Company
2012 201

Land and Land and
buildings Other buiidings Other
£m £m £m T
Within one year 08 04 07 03
More than one year and no later than five years 20 03 20 04
In five years or more o1 - 04 -
27 07 31 07

Operating lease payments reprasent rentals payable by the Company for certan office properties and motor vehicles Motor vehicle leases have an
average term of 15 years (2011 2 2 years) fo expiry Property leases have an average term of 51 years (2011 4 4 years) to expiry

b} The Group as lessor
Property rental moome eamed during the year was £3 4m 2011 £41m)

The Group has leass agreements with thed parties for certan commertsa! properies erther n the process of development or wiich have been developed
by the Group and units on land o be subsaquently devetoped for residential use It s Intended that the commercial properties, with therr future rental mcome
will be soid 1o thurd parties n the nomaal course of business and therefore they are classified as work i progress until the date of sale At 30 June 2012,
these properties had a camyng value of £144m 2011 £18 4m), and land with rental units had a camying vatue of £5 6m 2011 £176m) At 30 June 2012,
thesa rental agreements had an average term of 2 6 years (2011 21 years) to expry and total rental recenvables aver the remarng lease penod are £6.9m
(2011 £7 4m)with £2 2m 2011 £2 Brmi) within one yser, £3 9m (2011 £3 8 m more than one year and no fater than five years and £0 8m (2011 £08m)

n five years or more
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32 Acquasthons

In 2006 the Group entered into a joint venture agresment to develop sites In Greater Manchester nchuding one in Hattersley The Group's interest
compnsed 50% of Base Regeneration LLP and its subsichanes, Base East Central Rochdale LLP, Base Hattersley LLP and Base Wemeth Oldham
LLP The Group's joint venture partner went mto iquidation n March 2012 and on 9 May 2012 the Group acquired their 50% share for £1 Foliowing
this transaction the Group wholly owns these entities In accordance with IFRS3 (Revised) ‘Business Combinations' the Group has disposed of its
share n the joint venture and acquired the entities as subsidianes The tatat cost of nvastment to the Group of the 100% equity holding was £25 5m
On consolidation the Group has reviewed the far value of the assets and labilites of the entilies acquired This resulted in a{oss on re-measurement
of the jont venture nterest on acquisition of control of £10 7m in the year ended 30 June 2012 The cash inflow in respect of this acquisition dunng
the year ended 30 June 2012 was £16m which 15 net of consideration of £1 paid to Artday LLP

The recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and kabilities assumed are set out In the table below

Provisicnal
fair value
2012
£m
Net assets acquired
Inventones 162
Trade and other recevables 07
Cash and cash equivalents 16
Trade and other payables 29
Deferred tax habilites {12
Total consideration paid 148
Satisfied by
Cash -
Farr valug of joint venture interest previously owned 148
148
Net cash inflow ansing on acquisition
Cash consideration -
Cash and cash equwvalents 16
16

The accounting for this business combimation has been prepared on a provisional basis as new niormation regarding the dentifiable assets
and liabilties as at the acquisibon date may anse dunng the measurement penod, being no rore than one yaar from the date of acquistion

The prowisional farr value adjustments recognised on acqussition relate to the value of nventones and pnmanly the carrying value of land,
the wnte off In respect of loans from the former joint venture party and tax adustments

The Group mcurred professional fees of £O 2m n connection with the acquisibon of the busmess  These costs wers expensed 1o the income statement
Base Regeneration LLP contnbuted £1 9m in revenue and a toss after tax of £0 4m smce acquisition on 8 May 2012 If the acquisition had baen

complated on the first day of the financial year, Group revenues for tha penod would have been £2,327 0m and Group profit afler tax for the year
woutld have been £65 6m
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33. Contingent habilihes
a) Cortngent habiirties related to subsidiares
The Company has guaranteed certain bank bomowings of its subsidiary undertakings

Certain subsidiary undentakings have commitments for the purchase of trading stock entered nto in the nommal course of business

In the normal course of business the Group has given counter ndernities N respect of performance bonds and financeal guarantees Management
estmate that the bonds and guarantees amount to £424 8m (2011 £434 tim), and confirm that at the date of these financial statements the possibility
of cash outflow 1s consderad minimal and no provision 1s required

b} Contgent habilties related to jomt ventures
At 30 June 2012, the Group has an obbgation to repay £0 9m {2011 £0 9m) of grant monees receved by a ot venture upon certain future disposals
of land

The Group also has a number of perfarmance guaranteas n respect of its joint ventures, requinng the Group to complete development agreement
contractual obhgatons in the event that the jent ventures do not perforrm their obligations under the terms of the related contracts

¢} Contingent liabitties related to associates
Dunng the year, the Group provided bank guarantees to the value of £2 8m 2011 £3 1m} to one of its associates

d) Contingent liabiities related to subsidianes, joint ventures and associates

Prowision i made for the Directors’ best estimate of all known legal clams and all legal actions n progress  The Group takes legal adwice as to the
Iikellhood of success of clams, counterclaims and all other actions and no provision 1s made where the Directors consider, based on that adwvice,
that the action, claim or counterclaim s unlikely to succeed, or a sufficiently relable estimate of the potential obligations cannot be made

i} Incrdent at Battersea Park Read, London

One of the pancipal subsidianes within the Group s BDW Trading Limited (BOW) On 26 September 2006 at Battersea Park Road, London, a tower
crane supphed to BDW {with operater) by a third party contractor collapsed The collapse of the crane was not contained withun the boundanes of the
site and the crane operator and a member of the public were kiled In March 2012 a Jury came to a verthct that the deaths were acoxiental and
1ssued a narrative wath their verdict that made no cnticism of BDW There 1s an ongoing cnmnal nvestigation by the London Metropoldan Police and
the Health and Safety Executive to ascertam whather any of the parties involved are enmmally hatie for manstaughter or under refevant health and
safety legistation Although no assurance can be given, the Board has besn advised that on the informabion available as at 11 September 2012, being
the last practicable date prior to the publication of the Annual Report and Accounts, the nsk of a finding of cnminal kability against BOW 1s low

ti} Incident at Bedfont Azure Lakes

On 28 February 2008, a resident was found dead and another resident senously inured in housmg assocation accommodation at the Bedfont Azure
Lakes site, that was developed by BDW It 1s believed that the cause of both the death and the senous injury was carbon monexide poisoning
Foliowing investigations by the Police and the Health and Safety Executive cnminal proceedings were pursued agamnst the plumbing and heatng
sub-contractor, and aganst an ndwdual registered gas engreer The criminal charges included allegad manstaughter caused by gross neglgence
and breach of gas legislation The cnminal tnal aganst these defendants began n March 2012 and after a tnal lasting for circa 75 days the jury retumed
unanimous verdicts of not guilty against both defendants on all charges Following the conclusion of the cnminal case an inquast will be aranged Cvl
claims have been made aganst BOW by both the housing association and by vanous residents on the estate wher the ncident occurmed A number
of claims have been settied by the Group's msurers but the remamder are still outstanding and are being dealt with by the Group's msurers, afthough
the extent 1o which these are recoverable or to which they are covered by the Group's msurance or the insurance of other parties cannot, at present,
be clearly ascertaned

u) Barratt Amencan Incorporated

A former ndirect subsidiary of the Company Bamatt Amencan Incomporated {Amencan'’), 1s one of a number of defendants n a construction defect
clam commenced in Califorria The Comparny has aiso been narmed as a defendant m this construcbon defect claumn, as well as n a separate class
action ciam which anses out of the same alleged facts (The construction defect clam and the class action claim wil be referred o fontly as the
‘Clams’) Amencan was soid 5 August 2004 and subsequently became insoivernt, atthough it has significant nsurance and 1s represented by counsel

The Company asserted that the courts in Caliiomia have no junsdiction over it Ultmately the Californta Supreme Court disagreed Nevertheless,

the rmajonty of the events n ssue N both of the Clams post-date the 2004 safe and the Company asserts that it had no imvolvement in these
post-sale avents The Company and the Directors believe that the Comparty has good defences o both Clams, atthough the cutcome of the Claims
remans uncertan and may not be known for soma time
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34. Related party transactions

a) Remuneration of key personnel

Dhsclosures related o the remuneration of key personnel as defined n 1AS24 “Related Party Disclosures’ are gven innote 8 There 1s no difference
between transactions with key management persorne! of the Comparny and the Group

b} Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes

The Company has entered inio transachions with its subsidiary undertalangs in respect of funding and Group services (which nclude management
accounting and audt, sales and marketing, IT, company secretanal, architects and purchasing) Recharges are made to the subsidianes based

on utisation of these sericas

The amount outstanding o the Company from subsidiary undsrtakings at 30 June 2012 totafled £556 4m (2011 £7807m)

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2012, the Company macie management charges to subsidianes of £33 9m (2011 £318m) and receved net interest
on Group loans from subskhianes of £25 4m (2011 £28 8m)

The Company and Group have entered nto counter-indemnitigs in the narmal course of business i raspect of parformance bonds

¢) Transactions between the Group and its joint ventures

The Group has entered into transactions with its jomt ventures in respect of funding and development management services (with charges made
based on the utilsation of these services) These transactions totalted £2 Om 2011 £2 4m) and £2 1m (2011 £0 3my Inaddition, one of the Group’s
subsdianes, BOW Trading bimited, contracts with a number of the Group's joint ventures to prowide construchon servicas

The amount of outstanding loans and mterest due to the Group from its joint ventures at 30 June 201218 disclosed in note 13 The amount of other
outstanding payables to the Group from its joint ventures at 30 June 2012 totalled £nil 2011 £nil) The Group provided bank guarantees to the value
of Eril 2011 £rul} 10 its jont venture partners dunng the year

d) Transactions between the Group and its associates

The amount of outstanding loans due to the Group from its associates at 30 June 2012 was £0 3m {2011 £ni} The amounts outstanding are unsecured
and will be settled ncash The Group has prowided bank guarantees to the value of £2 8m (2011 £3 1m) in relation to one of its associates dumng the
year There were no other amounts outstanding to the Group from its assocates at 30 June 2012

e) Property purchases by Directors of BOW Trading Limited
The Board and certain members of servor management are related parties within the definition of LAS24 (Revised) ‘Related Party Disclosures’
and Chapter 11 of the UK Listing Rules There 1s no difference between transactions with key personnel of the Company and the Group

Dunng the year the Group entered into the following ‘smaller related party transactions’ as defined i Listing Rute 111 10R

* in Novermber 2011, the partner of Gary Enrus, a Dvector of the Company’s mamn trading subsidiary company, BDW Trading Limited { BDW)
purchased an apartment from BDW at a purchase price of £242,250

+ In December 2011, the spouse of Richard Brooks, a Director of BOW, purchased three properties from BDW at a combined purchase pnce of
£231,950

* In February 2012, the son of Douglas McLeod, a Director of the Company's Scottsh trading entity, BOW East Scotland Limited {East Scotland’),
purchased an apartment from East Scotland at a purchase price of £176.025

Each of the aforementioned purchases was conducted at a farr and reasonable market pnce based on similar comparable iransactions at that tme
There were no amounts outstanding at 30 June 2012 in relation {o these transactions

35 Past Balance Sheet Events

On 6 September 2012, the Group gave voluntary notice to cance! the £90m revolving credit facility with effect from 12 September 2012, which
reduces the Group's total commutted faciiies and private placement notes to £1,00im The committed faciities and private placemeant notes now in
place provide appropnate headroom above our current forecast debt requirements
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OTHER INFORMATION

FIVE-YEAR RECORD, FINANCIAL CALENDAR, GROUP ADVISERS,
COMPANY INFORMATION AND LIFE PRESIDENT

Five-year record

2008

2012 2011 2010 2009 {frestated’)
Group revenue {£m) 2,3234 20354 20352 22852 35547
Profit{loss) before tax £m) 1000 (115 (iB29) 678 9) 1373
Share capital and equity £m) 2,973 8 29301 29002 23316 28678
Per ordinary share
Basic sammgsAloss) per share (pence?) 70 14 (14 5) (89 1) 16 4
Dmdend paid {pence) - — - - 3653
1 The reslts for (e years ended 30 Juna 2008 have bean res.ated a3 ciaciosed N prviows Annual Repor
2 Exmg;pumhmmmaummmmmmwbmtmmmmzsmmmNumwm E2migs per Share
Financial calendar
The tollowing dates have been announced or are indicatve of future dates
Annguncemeant
2012 Annual General Meeting and [ntenm Management Staterment 14 Novemnber 2012
2012713 Intenm/half year results February 2013
Intenm Managerment Staternent May 2013
2012/13 Annual Results Announcement September 2013

Group adwisers
Registrars

Capita Regrstrars
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 47U

Registered Audrtor
Deloitte LLP
London

Solicitors
Slaughter and May

Brokers and Investment Bankers
Credit Suisse Secunties (Europe) Limited
UBS Investment Bank

Company information
Regstered n England and Wales Company number 604574

Registered address Barmatt House, Cartwnght Way, Forest Business Park, Bardon Hill, Coatville, Lexcestershwe LES7 1UF

Life President

Sir Lawrence Barratt founded the first Barratt company n 1958 and was knighted for his services {0 the inclustry n 1982

He retired as Non-Exacutive Chaimman i Novernber 1997 assunng the role of Titular Life President.
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Barratt Developments PLC
Barratt House
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